## **SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION**

Washington, D.C. 20549

# **FORM 10-Q**

X	RK ONE) QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SE OF 1934	ECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
	For the quart	erly period ended June 30, 2003
		OR
	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SE OF 1934	ECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
	For the transition period fromto	_
	Comm	ission file number 1-9321
	<del></del>	
		TH REALTY INCOME TRUST e of registrant as specified in its charter)
	MARYLAND	23-6858580
	(State or other jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization)	(I. R. S. Employer Identification No.)
	UNIVERSAL CORPORATE CENTER 367 SOUTH GULPH ROAD KING OF PRUSSIA, PENNSYLVANIA	19406
	(Address of principal executive offices)	(Zip Code)
	Registrant's telephone n	number, including area code (610) 265-0688

# UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST INDEX

	PAGE NO.
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1. Financial Statements	
Consolidated Statements of Income – Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002	3
Consolidated Balance Sheets – June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002	4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows – Six Months Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002	5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	6 through 12
Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	13 through 19
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION AND SIGNATURES	20 through 22

Part I. Financial Information
Universal Health Realty Income Trust
Consolidated Statements of Income
(amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)

	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months Ended June 30,	
	2003	2002	2003	2002
Revenues (Note 2):				
Base rental—UHS facilities	\$ 3,183	\$ 3,253	\$ 6,436	\$ 6,506
Base rental, tenant reimbursements and other—Non-related parties	2,678	2,877	5,410	5,757
Bonus rental—UHS facilities	1,157	1,034	2,365	2,027
	7,018	7,164	14,211	14,290
Expenses:				
Depreciation and amortization	1,130	1,107	2,242	2,216
Interest expense	590	615	1,175	1,236
Advisory fees to UHS	362	343	712	686
Other operating expenses	819	786	1,646	1,612
Loss on derivatives	44	19	79	7
	2,945	2,870	5,854	5,757
Income before equity in limited liability companies ("LLCs")	4,073	4,294	8,357	8,533
Equity in income of LLCs (including gain on sale of real property of \$365 in first quarter of 2003 and				
\$1,179 in first quarter of 2002)	1,242	885	2,628	2,924
Net Income	\$ 5,315	\$ 5,179	\$10,985	\$11,457
Net Income per share—Basic	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.44	\$ 0.94	\$ 0.98
Net Income per share—Diluted	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.44	\$ 0.93	\$ 0.98
Weighted average number of shares outstanding—Basic	11,708	11,685	11,704	11,682
Weighted average number of share equivalents	67	59	66	58
weighted average number of share equivalents				
Weighted average number of shares and equivalents outstanding—Diluted	11,775	11,744	11,770	11,740

See accompanying notes to these condensed financial statements.

<u>Universal Health Realty Income Trust</u>
<u>Consolidated Balance Sheets</u>
(dollar amounts in thousands) (unaudited)

	June 30, 2003	December 31, 2002
Assets:		
Real Estate Investments:		
Buildings and improvements	\$ 160,019	\$ 159,767
Accumulated depreciation	(50,012)	(47,810)
	110,007	111,957
Land	22,929	22,929
Net Real Estate Investments	132,936	134,886
Investments in limited liability companies ("LLCs")	49,045	48,314
Other Assets:		
Cash	569	598
Bonus rent receivable from UHS	1,157	1,101
Rent receivable from non-related parties	84	137
Deferred charges and other assets, net	561	81
	\$ 184,352	\$ 185,117
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:		
Liabilities:		
Bank borrowings	\$ 29,843	\$ 30,493
Accrued interest	243	282
Accrued expenses and other liabilities	1,764	1,761
Fair value of derivative instruments	3,171	3,233
Tenant reserves, escrows, deposits and prepaid rents	360	446
Minority interest	44	40
Shareholders' Equity:		
Preferred shares of beneficial interest, \$.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none outstanding Common shares, \$.01 par value; 95,000,000 shares authorized; issued and outstanding: 2003—11,712,933;	_	_
2002— 11,698,163	117	117
Capital in excess of par value	185,124	184,772
Cumulative net income	207,643	196,658
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(2,892)	(3,033)
Cumulative dividends	(241,065)	(229,652)
Total Shareholders' Equity	148,927	148,862
	\$ 184,352	\$ 185,117

See accompanying notes to these condensed financial statements.

Universal Health Realty Income Trust
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(amounts in thousands, unaudited)

	Six mont June	
	2003	2002
Cash flows from operating activities:		
Net income	\$10,985	\$ 11,457
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:	4 - 2 %	4,,
Depreciation & amortization	2,242	2,216
Loss on derivatives	79	7
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Rent receivable	(3)	(63)
Accrued expenses & other liabilities	3	(126)
Tenant escrows, deposits & prepaid rents	(86)	88
Accrued interest	(39)	(1)
Other, net	(6)	9
Net cash provided by operating activities	13,175	13,587
F to state of the		
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Investments in limited liability companies ("LLCs")	(2,101)	(3,144)
Cash distributions in excess of income from LLCs	630	1,106
Cash distributions from sale or refinancing proceeds	733	1,335
Advances received from LLCs, net	_	700
Acquisitions and additions to land and buildings	(252)	(11)
Net cash used in investing activities	(990)	(14)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Net repayments on revolving credit facility	(603)	(1,202)
Fees for new revolving credit facility	(500)	(1,202)
Repayments of mortgage notes payable	(47)	(45)
Repayment of note payable to UHS	_	(1,446)
Dividends paid	(11,413)	(11,157)
Issuance of shares of beneficial interest	349	277
Net cash used in financing activities	(12,214)	(13,573)
The cash about in interioring activities	(12,211)	(15,575)
Decrease in cash	(29)	
Cash, beginning of period	598	629
Cush, beginning of period		
Cash, end of period	\$ 569	\$ 629
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:		
Interest paid	\$ 1,214	\$ 1,237
•	<u> </u>	

See accompanying notes to these condensed financial statements.

#### UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2003

(unaudited)

#### (1) General

The financial statements included herein have been prepared by the Trust, without audit, pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and reflect all normal and recurring adjustments which, in the opinion of the Trust, are necessary to fairly present results for the interim periods. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations, although the Trust believes that the accompanying disclosures are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. It is suggested that these financial statements be read in conjunction with the financial statements, accounting policies and the notes thereto included in the Trust's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

In this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the term "revenues" does not include the revenues of the unconsolidated limited liability companies in which the Trust has various non-controlling equity interests ranging from 33% to 99%. The Trust currently accounts for its share of the income/loss from these investments by the equity method. Pursuant to the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities", an Interpretation of ARB No. 51, beginning in the third quarter of 2003, the Trust will begin to consolidate the results of operations, assets, liabilities, third-party debt that is non-recourse to the Trust and minority interest liability of three of its LLC investments that meet the criteria of a variable interest entity and the Trust is determined to be the primary beneficiary. There will be no impact on the Trust's net income as a result of the consolidation of these LLCs.

#### (2) Relationship with Universal Health Services, Inc. ("UHS")

UHS of Delaware, Inc. (the "Advisor"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of UHS, serves as Advisor to the Trust under an Advisory Agreement dated December 24, 1986 between the Advisor and the Trust (the "Advisory Agreement"). The Advisory Agreement expires on December 31 of each year, however, it is renewable by the Trust, subject to a determination by the Trustees who are unaffiliated with UHS, that the Advisor's performance has been satisfactory. The Advisory Agreement may be terminated for any reason upon sixty days written notice by the Trust or the Advisor. The Advisory Agreement has been renewed for 2003. The Advisory Agreement provides that the Advisor is entitled to receive an annual advisory fee equal to .60% of the average invested real estate assets of the Trust, as derived from its consolidated balance sheet from time to time. The Advisory fee is payable quarterly, subject to adjustment at year end based upon audited financial statements of the Trust. The Trust's officers are all employees of UHS of Delaware, Inc., and although the Trust has no salaried employees, certain officers do receive stock-based compensation from time to time. Advisory fees paid to UHS amounted to \$362,000 and \$343,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and \$712,000 and \$686,000 for the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Approximately 62% and 60% for the three month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and 62% and 60% for the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002,

respectively, of the Trust's consolidated revenues were earned under the terms of the leases with wholly-owned subsidiaries of Universal Health Services, Inc. ("UHS"). UHS has unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of its subsidiaries under the leases. Pursuant to the terms of its leases with subsidiaries of UHS, the Trust earns fixed monthly base rents plus bonus rents based upon each facility's net patient revenue in excess of base amounts. The bonus rents are computed and paid on a quarterly basis based upon a computation that compares current quarter revenue to the corresponding quarter in the base year.

The lease with Chalmette Medical Center, a subsidiary of UHS, was scheduled to expire in March, 2003. The lessee gave the Trust the required notice to exercise its renewal option and extend the lease for another five-year term. In accordance with the terms of the lease, the renewal rate was based upon the five year Treasury rate on March 29, 2003 plus a spread and based upon the Treasury rate on that date, the annual base rental on this facility was reduced from \$1.2 million to \$1.0 million.

UHS owned approximately 6.6% percent of the Trust's outstanding shares of beneficial interest as of June 30, 2003. The Trust has granted UHS an option to purchase Trust shares in the future at fair market value to enable UHS to maintain a 5% interest in the Trust.

#### (3) Dividends

A dividend of \$.49 per share or \$5.7 million in the aggregate was declared by the Board of Trustees on June 2, 2003 and was paid on June 30, 2003 to shareholders of record as of June 16, 2003.

#### (4) Financial Instruments

#### **Cash Flow Hedges**

The Trust recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income ("AOCI"), (losses)/income of (\$2,000) and (\$620,000) for the three month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and \$142,000 and (\$166,000) for the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, to recognize the change in fair value of the effective portion of all derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedging instruments. The income or losses will be reclassified into earnings as the underlying hedged item affects earnings, such as when the forecasted interest payments occur. Assuming market rates remain unchanged from June 30, 2003, it is expected that approximately \$1.5 million of net losses in AOCI will be reclassified into earnings within the next twelve months. The Trust also recorded losses of (\$44,000) and (\$19,000) for the three month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and (\$79,000) and (\$7,000) for the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, in earnings to recognize the ineffective portion of these cash flow hedging instruments. The maximum amount of time over which the Trust is hedging a portion of its exposure to the variability in future cash flows for forecasted transactions is through November, 2006.

#### (5) New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations". The Statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and associated asset retirement costs. The Statement requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred. The asset retirement obligations will be capitalized as part of the

carrying amount of the long-lived asset. The Statement applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and normal operation of long-lived assets. This Statement, which became effective for the Trust on January 1, 2003, did not have a material effect on the Trust's financial statements.

In April, 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, which rescinds SFAS No. 4 "Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt", SFAS No. 44, "Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers", and SFAS No. 64, "Extinguishment of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking Fund Requirements" (SFAS 145). SFAS No. 145 also amends SFAS No. 13, "Accounting for Leases" to eliminate an inconsistency between the required accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions. This Statement was adopted by the Trust on January 1, 2003 and did not have a material effect on the Trust's financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities." The Statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)." The Statement generally requires that a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized and measured initially at its fair value in the period in which the liability is incurred. The Statement is effective for all exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002, and did not have a material effect on the Trust's financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees; including Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others." This Interpretation requires that a liability must be recognized at the inception of a guarantee issued or modified after December 31, 2002 whether or not payment under the guarantee is probable. For guarantees entered into prior to December 31, 2002, the Interpretation requires certain information related to the guarantees be disclosed in the guarantor's financial statements. This provision did not have a material effect on the Trust's financial statements

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123". This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation", to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements. Certain of the disclosure modifications are required for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002 and are included in the notes to these consolidated financial statements, if applicable.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities", an Interpretation of ARB No. 51. This Interpretation addresses the consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities as defined in the Interpretation. The Interpretation applies immediately to variable interests in variable interest entities created or obtained after January 31, 2003. The provisions of this Interpretation will be applicable to the Trust for all its existing entities beginning in the third quarter of 2003 (See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

In May, 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity" ("SFAS 150"). SFAS 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures in its statement of financial position certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances) because that financial instrument embodies an obligation of the issuer. This statement is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Trust believes that the adoption of SFAS 150 will have no material effect on the Trust's financial position or results of operations.

In April, 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". This Statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities under FASB Statement No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". Most provisions of this are effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. This Statement is not expected to have a material effect on the Trust's financial statements.

#### (6) Subsequent Events

Subsequent to the end of the second quarter, the Trust invested approximately \$9 million for the purchase of a 98% non-controlling equity interest in a limited liability company that simultaneously purchased three medical office buildings on the campus of Valley Hospital Medical Center in Las Vegas, Nevada. These medical office buildings were purchased from a LLC in which UHS holds a 72% ownership interest and has tenants which include subsidiaries of UHS. These buildings contain approximately 109,000 rentable square feet and are 100% leased.

#### (7) Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income represents net income plus the results of certain non-shareowners' equity changes not reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The components of comprehensive income are as follows (amounts in thousands):

		June 30,		e 30,
	2003	2002	2003	2002
Net income	\$5,315	\$5,179	\$10,985	\$11,457
Other comprehensive income:				
Adjustment for losses reclassified into income	348	349	693	699
Unrealized derivative losses on cash flow hedges	(350)	(969)	(551)	(865)
Comprehensive income	\$ 5,313	\$4,559	\$11,127	\$11,291

#### (8) Stock-Based Compensation

At June 30, 2003, the Trust has two stock-based compensation plans. The Trust accounts for these plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and related Interpretations. No compensation cost is reflected in net income for most stock option grants, as all options granted under the plan had an original exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying shares on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Trust had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," to stock-based compensation for the three and six months ending June 30, 2003 and 2002. The Trust recognizes compensation cost related to restricted share awards over the respective vesting periods. As of June 30, 2003 there were no unvested restricted share awards outstanding.

	Three Months Ended June 30,		Six Months Ended June 30,	
	2003	2002	2003	2002
	(	in thousands, exc	cept per share data	·)
Net income	\$5,315	\$5,179	\$10,985	\$11,457
Add: total stock-based compensation expenses included in net income:	51	48	101	97
Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation expenses determined under fair value based				
methods for all awards:	(61)	(60)	(121)	(122)
Pro forma net income	\$5,305	\$5,167	\$10,965	\$ 11,432
Basic earnings per share, as reported	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.44	\$ 0.94	\$ 0.98
Basic earnings per share, pro forma	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.44	\$ 0.94	\$ 0.98
Diluted earnings per share, as reported	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.44	\$ 0.93	\$ 0.98
Diluted earnings per share, pro forma	\$ 0.45	\$ 0.44	\$ 0.93	\$ 0.97

#### (9) Summarized Financial Information of Equity Affiliates

The consolidated financial statements of the Trust include the consolidated accounts of its controlled investments. In accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants' Statement of Position 78-9 "Accounting for Investments in Real Estate Ventures" and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 96-16, "Investor's Accounting for an Investee When the Investor Has a Majority of the Voting Interest but the Minority Shareholder or Shareholders Have Certain Approval or Veto Rights", the Trust accounts for its investment in LLCs which it does not control using the equity method of accounting. These investments, which represent 33% to 99% non-controlling ownership interests, are recorded initially at the Trust's cost and subsequently adjusted for the Trust's share of equity in the net income, cash contributions to and distributions from these investments.

Since inception through June 30, 2003, the Trust made total initial cash investments of \$57.9 million in LLCs, in which the Trust owns various non-controlling equity interests. Including the cumulative adjustments for the Trust's share of equity in the net income of the LLCs and cash contributions to and distributions from these investments, the Trust's net investments in these LLCs was \$49.0 million as of June 30, 2003.

Upon application of FASB Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities", the Trust believes that three of its LLC investments meet the criteria of a variable interest entity and the Trust is determined to be the primary beneficiary. Beginning in the third quarter of 2003, the Trust will be required to consolidate the results of operations, assets, liabilities, third-party debt that is non-recourse to the Trust and minority interest liability (to reflect the portion of the LLCs held by other third-party members) related to these LLCs in its consolidated financial statements. The estimated annual revenue for these three LLCs is approximately \$6.3 million and the combined assets total approximately \$38.9 million. On a combined basis, these three LLCs have approximately \$22.8 million in third-party debt that is non-recourse to the Trust. There will be no impact on the Trust's net income as a result of consolidating these LLCs.

As of June 30, 2003, the Trust has investments in twenty limited liability companies ("LLCs") accounted for by the equity method. The following tables represent summarized financial information related to these LLCs:

Name of LLC	Ownership	Property Owned by LLC
DSMB Properties	76%	Desert Samaritan Hospital MOBs
DVMC Properties	95%	Desert Valley Medical Center
Parkvale Properties	60%	Maryvale Hospital MOBs
Suburban Properties	33%	Suburban Medical Plaza II
Litchvan Investments (a.)	89%	Papago Medical Park
Paseo Medical Properties II	75%	Thunderbird Paseo Medical Plaza I & II
Willetta Medical Properties	95%	Edwards Medical Plaza
DesMed (b.)	99%	Desert Springs Medical Plaza
PacPal Investments	95%	Pacifica Palms Medical Plaza
RioMed Investments	80%	Rio Rancho Medical Center
West Highland Holdings	48%	St. Jude Heritage Health Complex
Santa Fe Scottsdale	95%	Santa Fe Professional Plaza
Bayway Properties	75%	East Mesa Medical Center
653 Town Center Drive (b.)	98%	Summerlin Hospital MOB
575 Hardy Investors	73%	Centinela Medical Building Complex
653 Town Center Phase II (b.)	98%	Summerlin Hospital MOB II
23560 Madison	95%	Skypark Professional Medical Building
Brunswick Associates	74%	Mid Coast Hospital MOB
Deerval Properties (c.)	90%	Deer Valley Medical Office II
PCH Medical Properties (d.)	85%	Rosenberg Children's Medical Plaza

<sup>(</sup>a) As a result of a like-kind exchange transaction, Litchvan Investments acquired the real estate assets of Papago Medical Park located in Phoenix, Arizona in exchange for cash and the real estate assets of Samaritan West Valley Medical Center located in Goodyear, Arizona.

<sup>(</sup>b) Tenants of this medical office building include a subsidiary of UHS.

<sup>(</sup>c) As of June 30, 2003, Trust has invested \$3.4 million in the Deer Valley Medical Office II, a newly constructed building which was opened during the third quarter of 2002.

(d) The Trust has committed to invest a total of \$2.8 million in exchange for a 85% non-controlling interest in a LLC that constructed and owns the Rosenberg Children's Medical Plaza, a medical office building in Phoenix, Arizona, which was opened in February, 2003. As of June 30, 2003, the Trust had invested \$1.9 million in this project.

Below is a summary of combined financial information for the LLCs in which the Trust owns various non-controlling ownership interests:

			June 30, 2003	December 31, 2002
		(	amounts in i	thousands)
Net property		\$ 1	171,614	\$169,636
Other assets			11,515	13,266
Liabilities			4,946	5,129
Third-party debt, non-recourse to the Trust		1	27,851	128,658
Equity			50,332	49,115
UHT's share of equity			49,045	48,314
		Months June 30,		nths Ended ne 30,
	2003	2002	2003	2002
		(amounts	in thousands	,
Revenues	\$8,118	\$7,352	\$16,002	\$14,805
Operating expenses	3,175	2,824	6,216	
Depreciation & amortization	1,380	1,219	2,737	
Interest, net	2,340	2,183	4,570	4,373
Net income before gain	1,223	1,126	2,479	2,124
Gain on disposal	0	0	643	1,346
Net income	\$1,223	\$1,126	\$ 3,122	\$ 3,470
UHT's share of net income before gain on disposal	\$ 1,242	\$ 885	\$ 2,263	\$ 1,745
UHT's share of gain on disposal			365	1,179
	0.4.0.40	A 00 -		

#### (10) Segment Reporting

UHT's share of net income

The Trust's primary segment is leasing of healthcare and human service facilities, and all revenues from external customers related to the same segment. Additionally, the Trust may, from time to time, loan funds to external parties. Operating results and assessment of performance are reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker on a company-wide basis and no discrete financial information is available or produced on any one component of the business. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of SFAS 131 are not relevant to the Trust.

\$1,242 \$ 885

\$ 2,628 \$ 2,924

#### Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

#### Forward-Looking Statements and Certain Risk Factors

The matters discussed in this report, as well as the news releases issued from time to time by the Trust, include certain statements containing the words "believes", "anticipates", "intends", "expects", and words of similar import, which constitute "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the Trust's or industry results to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among other things, the following: a substantial portion of the Trust's revenues are dependent on one operator, Universal Health Services, Inc., ("UHS"); UHS of Delaware, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of UHS, is Advisor to the Trust and the Trust's officers are all employees of the Advisor which may create the potential for conflicts of interest; a substantial portion of the Trust's leases are involved in the healthcare industry which is undergoing substantial changes and is subject to possible changes in the levels and terms of reimbursement from third-party payors and government reimbursement programs, including Medicare and Medicaid; the Trust's ability to finance its growth on favorable terms; liability and other claims asserted against the Trust or operators of the Trust's facilities; the fact that the Trust has majority ownership interests in various LLCs in which it holds non-controlling equity interests, and other factors referenced in the Trust's 2002 Form 10-K.

A large portion of the Trust's non-hospital properties consist of medical office buildings which are either directly or indirectly affected by the factors discussed above as well as general real estate factors such as the supply and demand of office space and market rental rates. Additionally, the operators of the Trust's facilities, including UHS, are confronted with other issues such as: industry capacity; demographic changes; existing laws and government regulations and changes in or failure to comply with laws and governmental regulations; the ability to enter into managed care provider agreements on acceptable terms; competition; the loss of significant customers; technological and pharmaceutical improvements that increase the cost of providing, or reduce the demand for healthcare; and the ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, including physicians. In addition, operators of the Trust's facilities, particularly UHS, have experienced a significant increase in property insurance (including earthquake insurance in California) and general and professional liability insurance. As a result, certain operators have assumed a greater portion of their liability risk and there can be no assurance that a continuation of these unfavorable trends, or a sharp increase in claims asserted against the operators of the Trust's facilities, which are self-insured, will not have a material adverse effect on their future results of operations.

In order to qualify as a real estate investment trust ("REIT") the Trust must comply with certain highly technical and complex requirements. Although the Trust intends to remain so qualified, there may be facts and circumstances beyond the Trust's control that may affect the Trust's ability to qualify as a REIT. Failure to qualify as a REIT may subject the Trust to income tax liabilities, including federal income tax at regular corporate rates. The additional income tax incurred may significantly reduce the cash flow available for distribution to shareholders and for debt service. In addition, if disqualified, the Trust might be barred from qualification as a REIT

for four years following disqualification. Although the Trust believes it has been qualified as a REIT since its inception, there can be no assurance that the Trust has been so qualified or will remain qualified in the future.

Management of the Trust is unable to predict the effect, if any, these factors will have on the operating results of its lessees, including the facilities leased to subsidiaries of UHS. Given these uncertainties, prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. Management of the Trust disclaims any obligation to update any such factors or to publicly announce the result of any revisions to any of the forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect future events or developments.

#### **Results of Operations**

The Trust commenced operations on December 24, 1986. The Trust has investments or commitments in forty-three facilities located in fifteen states. The Trust invests in healthcare and human service related facilities including acute care hospitals, behavioral healthcare facilities, rehabilitation hospitals, sub-acute care facilities, surgery centers, child-care centers and medical office buildings. The term "revenues" referred to herein does not include the revenues of the unconsolidated limited liability companies in which the Trust has various non-controlling equity interests ranging from 33% to 99%. The Trust accounts for its share of the income/loss from these investments by the equity method. Beginning in the third quarter of 2003, the Trust will be required to consolidate the results of operations, assets, liabilities, third-party debt that is non-recourse to the Trust and minority interest liability (to reflect the portion of the LLCs held by other third-party members) of three of its LLC investments that meet the criteria of a variable interest entity. There will be no impact on the Trust's net income as a result of consolidating these LLCs.

The third quarter dividend of \$.49 per share or \$5.7 million in the aggregate was paid on June 30, 2003.

For the quarters ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, net income totaled \$5.3 million and \$5.2 million or \$.45 and \$.44 per share (diluted), on revenues of \$7.0 million and \$7.2 million, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, net income totaled \$11.0 million and \$11.5 million or \$.93 and \$.98 per share (diluted) on net revenues of \$14.2 million and \$14.3 million, respectively. Included in the net income per diluted share for the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, are gains of \$365,000 or \$.03 per diluted share and \$1.2 million or \$.10 per diluted share, respectively, recorded on the sale of properties by LLCs in which the Trust holds non-controlling ownership interests.

The \$146,000 decrease in net revenue during the three month period ended June 30, 2003 as compared to the comparable 2002 period was primarily due to: (i) a \$70,000 decrease in base rentals from UHS facilities resulting from the lease renewal at Chalmette Medical Center; (ii) a \$199,000 decrease in base rental and tenant reimbursements from non-related parties, partially due to vacancy at one of the Trust's medical office buildings, and; (iii) a \$123,000 increase on bonus rental revenue from UHS facilities. The \$79,000 decrease in net revenue during the six month period ended June 30, 2003 as compared to the comparable 2002 period was primarily due to: (i) a \$70,000 decrease in base rentals from UHS facilities, as mentioned above; (ii) a \$347,000 decrease in base rental and tenant reimbursements from non-related parties, as mentioned above, and; (iii) a \$338,000 increase in bonus rental revenue from UHS facilities.

For the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, interest expense decreased 4% or \$25,000 and 5% or \$61,000, respectively, as compared to the comparable prior year periods. The reduction in interest expense was due primarily to a reduction in the average outstanding borrowings during the three and six month periods of 2003 as compared to the same periods in the prior year.

Included in the Trust's other operating expenses were the expenses related to the medical office buildings in which the Trust has a controlling ownership interest which totaled \$628,000 and \$590,000 for the three month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and \$1.3 million and \$1.2 million for the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. A portion of the expenses associated with the medical office buildings are passed on directly to the tenants, which reimburse the Trust, and therefore are included as revenues in the Trust's statements of income.

Included in the Trust's financial results was income generated from the Trust's ownership in LLCs which own medical office buildings in Arizona, California, Kentucky, New Mexico, Nevada and Maine (see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements) amounting to \$1.2 million and \$885,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and \$2.3 million (excluding a \$365,000 gain on a LLC's sale of real property) and \$1.7 million (excluding a \$1.2 million gain on a LLC's sale of real property) for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2003 as compared to the comparable prior year periods resulted primarily from increased revenues from straight-line rent adjustments.

Funds from operations ("FFO"), is a widely recognized measure of REIT performance. Although FFO is a non-GAAP financial measure, the Trust believes that information regarding FFO is helpful to shareholders and potential investors. The Trust computes FFO in accordance with standards established by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts ("NAREIT"), which may not be comparable to FFO reported by other REITs that do not compute FFO in accordance with the NAREIT definition, or that interpret the NAREIT definition differently than the Trust. NAREIT defines FFO as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles), excluding gains (losses) on sales of property, plus depreciation and amortization (excluding amortization of deferred financing costs and depreciation of non-real estate assets), and after adjustment for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures. Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures are calculated to reflect funds from operations on the same basis. The GAAP measure that the Trust believes to be most directly comparable to FFO, net income, includes depreciation and amortization expenses and gains or losses on property sales. In computing FFO, the Trust eliminates substantially all of these items because, in the Trust's view, they are not indicative of the results from the Trust's property operations. To facilitate a clear understanding of the Trust's historical operating results, FFO should be examined in conjunction with net income, determined in accordance with GAAP, as presented in the financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. FFO does not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and should not be considered to be an alternative to net income, determined in accordance with GAAP, as an indication of the Trust's financial performance or to be an alternative to cash flow from operating activities, determined in accordance with GAAP, as a measure of the Trust'

FFO increased 3% to \$7.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2003 as compared to \$7.2 million in the comparable prior year quarter. FFO increased 4% to \$14.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003, as compared to \$14.3 million in the comparable prior year period. Below is a reconciliation of the Trust's reported net income to FFO:

	En	Months ded e 30,	Six Months Ended June 30,	
	2003	2002	2003	2002
Net income	\$5,315	\$5,179	\$10,985	\$11,457
Depreciation expense:				
Consolidated investments	1,103	1,094	2,202	2,190
Unconsolidated affiliates	997	912	1,983	1,812
Gain on LLC's sale of real property	0	0	(365)	(1,179)
Funds from operations (FFO)	\$7,415	\$7,185	\$ 14,805	\$ 14,280

#### General

Since the majority of the Trust's income is derived from lease payments on acute care services hospitals and medical office buildings, the Trust is substantially dependent on such things as healthcare regulations and reimbursement to healthcare facilities since these factors, among other things, affect the lease payments to the Trust and the underlying property values. A significant portion of the revenues from the Trust's hospital facilities are derived from the Medicare and Medicaid programs as well as managed care plans which include health maintenance organizations ("HMOs") and preferred provider organizations ("PPOs"). Generally, the Trust's hospital facilities continue to experience an increase in revenues attributable to managed care payors as pressures to control healthcare costs, as well as a shift away from traditional Medicare to Medicare managed care plans, have resulted in an increase in the number of patients whose healthcare coverage is provided under managed care plans. Typically, the Trust's hospital facilities receive lower payments per patient from managed care payors than from traditional indemnity insurers. However, during the past few years, many of the Trust's acute care hospital facilities secured price increases from many of its commercial payors including managed care companies. The consequent growth in managed care networks and the resulting impact of these networks on the operating results of the Trust's facilities vary among the markets in which the Trust's facilities operate.

Outpatient treatment and diagnostic facilities, outpatient surgical centers and freestanding ambulatory surgical centers also impact the healthcare marketplace. Many of the Trust's facilities continue to experience an increase in outpatient revenues which is primarily the result of advances in medical technologies and pharmaceutical improvements, which allow more services to be provided on an outpatient basis, and increased pressure from Medicare, Medicaid, HMOs, PPOs and insurers to reduce hospital stays and provide services, where possible, on a less expensive outpatient basis. The hospital industry in the United States, as well as the Trust's hospital facilities, continue to have significant unused capacity which has created substantial competition for patients. Inpatient utilization continues to be negatively affected by payor-required, pre-admission authorization and by payor pressure to maximize outpatient and alternative healthcare delivery services for less acutely ill patients. The Trust expects its hospital facilities to continue to experience increased competition and admission constraints.

The federal government makes payments to participating acute care hospitals under its Medicare program based on various formulas. The operators of the Trust's general acute care hospitals are subject to a prospective payment system ("PPS"). For inpatient services, PPS pays acute care hospitals a predetermined amount per diagnostic related group ("DRG"), for which payment amounts are adjusted to account for geographic wage differences. Beginning August 1, 2000 under an outpatient prospective payment system ("OPPS") mandated by the Balanced Budget Act of 1997 ("BBA-97"), general acute care hospitals are paid for outpatient services included in the OPPS according to ambulatory procedure codes ("APC") which group together services that are comparable both clinically and with respect to the use of resources. The payment for each item or service is determined by the APC to which it is assigned. The APC payment rates are calculated on a national basis and adjusted to account for certain geographic wage differences. The Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999 ("BBRA of 1999") included "transitional corridor payments" through fiscal year 2003, which provide some financial relief for any hospital that generally incurs a reduction to its Medicare outpatient reimbursement under the new OPPS.

In addition to the trends described above that continue to have an impact on the operating results of the Trust's hospital facilities, there are a number of other more general factors affecting the operators of the Trust's acute care hospital facilities. BBA-97 called for the government to trim the growth of federal spending on Medicare by \$115 billion and on Medicaid by \$13 billion over the ensuing 5 years. This legislation also called for reductions in the future rate of increases to payments made to hospitals and reduced the amount of payments for outpatient services, bad debt expense and capital costs. Some of these reductions were temporarily reversed with the passage of the Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP Benefits Improvement and Protection Act of 2000 ("BIPA") which, among other things, increased Medicare and Medicaid payments to healthcare providers by \$35 billion over the ensuing 5 years with approximately \$12 billion of this amount targeted for hospitals and \$11 billion for managed care payors. However, many of the payment reductions reversed by Congress in BIPA are expiring. In fiscal year 2003, hospitals are receiving less than a full market basket inflation adjustment for services paid under the inpatient PPS (inpatient PPS update of the market basket minus 0.55 percentage points is 2.95% in fiscal year 2003), although the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS") estimates that for the same time period, Medicare payment rates under OPPS will increase, for each service, by an average of 3.7%. In February, 2003, the federal fiscal year 2003 omnibus spending federal legislation was signed into law. This legislation includes approximately \$800 million in increased spending for hospitals. More specifically, \$300 million of this amount is targeted for rural and certain urban hospitals effective for the period of April, 2003 through September, 2003. One of the Trust's hospital facilities is eligible for and is expected to receive the increased Medicare reimbursement resulting from this legislation, however, the impact is not expected to have a material effect on the future results of operations of the facility. For federal fiscal year 2004, CMS will increase the inpatient Medicare unadjusted standard base rate by a full market basket increase of 3.4%, absent any legislative action by Congress. However, this Medicare payment increase will be mitigated by changes in other factors that directly impact a hospital's DRG payment including, but not limited to, annual Medicare wage index updates, expansion of the DRG transfer payment policy and the annual recalibration of DRG relative payment weights.

The Trust can provide no assurance that the above mentioned factors will not adversely affect the operators of the Trust's facilities. However, within certain limits, a hospital can manage its costs, and, to the extent this is done effectively, a hospital may benefit from the DRG system. However, many hospital operating costs are incurred in order to satisfy licensing laws, standards

of the Joint Commission on the Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations ("JCAHO") and quality of care concerns. In addition, hospital costs are affected by the level of patient acuity, occupancy rates and local physician practice patterns, including length of stay, judgments and number and type of tests and procedures ordered. A hospital's ability to control or influence these factors which affect costs is, in many cases, limited.

A large portion of the Trust's non-hospital properties consist of medical office buildings which are located either close to or on the campuses of hospital facilities. These properties are either directly or indirectly affected by the factors discussed above as well as general real estate factors such as the supply and demand of office space and market rental rates.

The Trust anticipates investing in additional healthcare related facilities and leasing the facilities to qualified operators, perhaps including UHS and subsidiaries of UHS.

#### **Liquidity and Capital Resources**

Net cash provided by operating activities was \$13.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and \$13.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2002. The \$412,000 net unfavorable change during the first six months of 2003 as compared to the comparable prior year period was primarily attributable to a \$374,000 unfavorable change in net income plus the non-cash adjustments (depreciation and amortization and loss on derivatives). This unfavorable change in net income plus the non-cash adjustments was due primarily to a \$296,000 decrease in equity in income from LLCs due primarily to: (i) a \$1.2 million gain on a LLC's sale of real property during the six month period ended June 30, 2002 as compared to a \$365,000 gain on a LLC's sale of real property recorded during the six month period ended June 30, 2003, and; (ii) a \$518,000 increase during the 2003 six month period as compared to the comparable prior year period due primarily to increased revenues from straight-line rent adjustments.

During the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Trust spent \$252,000 and \$11,000, respectively, for capital additions at its facilities. During the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, the Trust invested \$2.1 million and \$3.1 million, respectively, in LLCs in which it owns non-controlling equity interests. Also, the Trust received \$1.4 million during the six month period ended June 30, 2003 (consisting of \$630,000 of cash distributions in excess of net income and \$733,000 of cash distributions from refinancing proceeds) and \$3.1 million during the six month periods ended June 30, 2002 (consisting of \$1.1 million of cash distributions in excess of net income, \$1.3 million of cash distributions from sale proceeds and \$700,000 of returned advances).

The Trust paid dividends of \$11.4 million during the six month period ended June 30, 2003 and \$11.2 million during the six month period ended June 30, 2002. The Trust also made net debt repayments of \$650,000 and \$2.7 million during the six month periods ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Also during 2003, the Trust paid \$500,000 in fees related to its new \$80 million revolving credit agreement which commenced during the second quarter of 2003.

During the second quarter of 2003, the Trust entered into a new \$80 million revolving credit agreement ("Revolver") that expires on May 28, 2007, at which time all amounts then outstanding are required to be repaid. The interest rate on the Revolver is determined at the Trust's option at the prime rate plus 0% to 4.0%, or LIBOR plus 1.0% to 1.4%. A commitment

fee ranging from .25% to .35% is required on the unused commitment. The margins over LIBOR rates and the commitment fee are based upon the Trust's debt to total capital ratio. At June 30, 2003, the applicable prime rate margin was 0%, the LIBOR margin was 1.0% and the commitment fee was .25%. As of June 30, 2003, the Trust had approximately \$50 million of unused borrowing capacity under the terms of the Revolver, net of \$4 million of letters of credit outstanding against the agreement.

#### Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

There have been no material changes in the quantitative and qualitative disclosures in 2003. Reference is made to Item 7 in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

#### Item 4. Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective in timely alerting them to material information relating to us (including our consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in our SEC filings. There have been no significant changes in our internal control over financial reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting during the period covered by this report.

#### PART II. OTHER INFORMATION UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST

#### <u>Item 4.</u> <u>Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders</u>

- (a.) The following information related to matters submitted to the shareholders of Universal Health Realty Income Trust (the "Trust") at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on June 2, 2003.
- (b.) Not applicable.
- (c.) At the meeting, the following proposals, as described in the proxy statement delivered to all the Trust's shareholders, were approved by the votes indicated:

Election by holders of Trust shares of two Class II Trustees

	Daniel M. Cain	James E. Dalton
Votes cast in favor	10,690,608	10,688,024
Votes withheld	81.716	84,300

(d.) Not applicable.

#### Item 5. Other Information

Not applicable.

#### Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

- (a) Exhibits:
- 31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- 31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- 32.1 Certification of Periodic Financial Report by Chief Executive Officer under Section 906 Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 32.2 Certification of Periodic Financial Report by Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 10.1 REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT as of May 28, 2003 among (i) UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST, a real estate investment trust organized under the laws of the State of Maryland and having its principal place of business at 367 South Gulph Road, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 (the "Company"), the financial institutions from time to time party hereto (individually a "Bank" and collectively the "Banks"), FLEET NATIONAL BANK,

as syndication agent (the "Syndication Agent"), and WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as administrative agent for the Banks (the "Agent").

- (b) Reports on Form 8-K:
  - 1) Report on Form 8-K dated April 17, 2003, reported under Item 9, Regulation FD Disclosure, that the Trust issued a press release announcing the Trust's financial results for the quarter ended March 31, 2003.
- 11. Statement re computation of per share earnings is set forth on page 3, the Trust's Consolidated Statements of Income.

All other items of this Report are inapplicable.

Page 21 of 22

#### Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 12, 2003

UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST
(Registrant)

By: /s/ ALAN B. MILLER

Alan B. Miller,
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President

By: /s/ CHARLES F. BOYLE

Charles F. Boyle,

Charles F. Boyle,
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Controller
(Principal Financial Officer and
Duly Authorized Officer.)

Exhibit 10.1

### UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST

#### REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT

Dated as of May 28, 2003

by and among

#### UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST,

THE BANKS PARTY HERETO

and

### WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

as Agent

### FLEET NATIONAL BANK,

as Syndication Agent

#### **WACHOVIA SECURITIES, INC.,**

as Arranger

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

			<u>Page</u>
BACKGROU	<u>ND</u>		1
ARTICLE I	DEFINITION	<u>ns</u>	1
	Section 1.1	<u>Defined Terms</u>	1
	Section 1.2	Other Definitional Provisions	14
	Section 1.3	Accounting Terms	14
ARTICLE II	LOANS; AN	MOUNTS AND TERMS	15
	Section 2.1	Commitment	15
	Section 2.2	Loan Borrowings	15
	Section 2.3	Repayment	16
	Section 2.4	Interest.	16
	Section 2.5	Notes.	16
	Section 2.6	Increase Of Revolving Committed Amount; Additional Banks	16
	Section 2.7	<u>Letters of Credit</u>	18
	Section 2.8	<u>Fees</u>	21
	Section 2.9	Commitment Reductions	22
	Section 2.10	<u>Prepayments</u>	22
	Section 2.11	Minimum Principal Amount of Tranches; Lending Offices	23
	Section 2.12	Default Rate and Payment Dates	23
	Section 2.13	<u>Conversion Options</u>	23
ARTICLE III	TAXES; PA	YMENTS AND COMPUTATIONS, FEES	24
	Section 3.1	Computation of Interest and Fees	24
	Section 3.2	Pro Rata Treatment and Payments	24
	Section 3.3	Non-Receipt of Funds by the Agent	26
	Section 3.4	Inability to Determine Interest Rate	27
	Section 3.5	Illegality	27
	Section 3.6	Requirements of Law	28
	Section 3.7	<u>Indemnity</u>	29
	Section 3.8	<u>Taxes</u>	30
	Section 3.9	Indemnification; Nature of Issuing Bank's Duties	31
ARTICLE IV	REPRESEN	ITATIONS AND WARRANTIES	33
	Section 4.1	Corporate Existence	33
	Section 4.2	<u>Subsidiaries</u>	33
	Section 4.3	Authority, Etc	33
	Section 4.4	Binding Effect Of Documents, Etc	34
	Section 4.5	No Events Of Default, Etc	34
	Section 4.6	<u>Title To Properties; Leases</u>	34
	Section 4.7	<u>Financial Statements</u>	34
	Section 4.8	No Material Changes, Full Disclosure, Etc	35

Section 4.10 35

i

	Section 4.11	Compliance With Other Instruments, Laws, Etc	35
	Section 4.12	<u>Tax Status</u>	36
	Section 4.13	Holding Company And Investment Company Acts	36
	Section 4.14	Absence Of Financing Statements, Etc	36
	Section 4.15	<u>Certain Transactions</u>	36
	Section 4.16	Pension Plans	37
	Section 4.17	Margin Regulations	37
	Section 4.18	Environmental Matters	37
	Section 4.19	<u>Use of Proceeds</u>	38
	Section 4.20	<u>Indebtedness</u>	38
	Section 4.21	Solvency	38
	Section 4.22	<u>Investments</u>	39
	Section 4.23	<u>Labor Matters</u>	39
	Section 4.24	Accuracy and Completeness of Information	39
	Section 4.25	<u>Material Contracts</u>	39
	Section 4.26	Insurance	39
ARTICLE V	EFFECTIVE	DATE	40
ARTICLE VI	CONDITION	IS TO LOANS	43
	Section 6.1	Conditions To Loans	43
ARTICLE VII	COVENANT	S OF THE COMPANY	44
	Section 7.1	Punctual Payment	44
	Section 7.2	Legal Existence, Etc	44
	Section 7.3	<u>Financial Statements, Etc.</u>	44
	Section 7.4	<u>Health Care Facilities - Financial Statements, Etc</u>	46
	Section 7.5	Tangible Net Worth	47
	Section 7.6	Ratio Of Debt To Total Capital	47
	Section 7.7	Debt Service Coverage Ratio	47
	Section 7.8	Debt To Cash Flow Available For Debt Service	47
	Section 7.9	<u>Indebtedness</u>	47
	Section 7.10	Security Interests And Liens; Negative Pledge	48
	Section 7.11	No Further Negative Pledge	49
	Section 7.12	<u>Guarantees</u>	49
	Section 7.13	Notice Of Litigation And Judgments	50
	Section 7.14	Notice Of Defaults; Material Adverse Effect	50
	Section 7.15	Notices With Regard To Health Care Operators	50
	Section 7.16	Books And Records	50
	Section 7.17	Maintenance Of Properties	51
	Section 7.18	Insurance	51
	Section 7.19	<u>Taxes</u>	51
	Section 7.20	Compliance With Laws, Contracts, And Licenses	51

Section 7.21	<u>Access</u>	52
Section 7.22	ERISA Compliance	52
Section 7.23	<u>Reserves</u>	52
Section 7.24	<u>Distributions</u>	52

	Section 7.25	<u>Investments</u>	53
	Section 7.26	Mortgage Loans	53
	Section 7.27	Construction Loans	54
	Section 7.28	Environmental Audits	54
	Section 7.29	Merger, Consolidation And Disposition Of Assets	54
	Section 7.30	Sale And Leaseback	55
	Section 7.31	<u>Use Of Proceeds</u>	55
	Section 7.32	Fiscal Year; Organizational Documents; Material Contracts	55
	Section 7.33	<u>Subsidiary Guarantors</u>	55
	Section 7.34	<u>Further Assurances</u>	56
ARTICLE VIII	EVENTS OF	DEFAULT; ACCELERATION	56
ARTICLE IX	IX <u>SETOFF; SHARING</u>		59
ARTICLE X	THE AGENT		59
	Section 10.1	Appointment	59
	Section 10.2	<u>Delegation of Duties</u>	60
	Section 10.3	Exculpatory Provisions	60
	Section 10.4	Reliance by Agent	60
	Section 10.5	Notice of Default	61
	Section 10.6	Non-Reliance on Agent and Other Banks	61
	Section 10.7	<u>Indemnification</u>	62
	Section 10.8	Agent in Its Individual Capacity	62
	Section 10.9	Successor Agent	62
	Section 10.10	Other Agents	62
ARTICLE XI	MISCELLANEOUS		63
	Section 11.1	<u>Expenses</u>	63
	Section 11.2	<u>Indemnification</u>	63
	Section 11.3	Survival of Covenants	64
	Section 11.4	Parties in Interest	64
	Section 11.5	<u>Notices</u>	64
	Section 11.6	Governing Law	65
	Section 11.7	Entirety of Agreement, Etc	66
	Section 11.8	Waiver of Jury Trial; Damages	66
	Section 11.9	Consents, Waivers, Amendments, Etc	66
	Section 11.10	<u>Severability</u>	68
	Section 11.11	Confidentiality	68
	Section 11.12	Acknowledgments	69
	Section 11.13	Successors and Assigns; Participations; Purchasing Banks	69
	Section 11.14	Compliance with Usury Laws	71

#### **EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES**

EXHIBIT 1.1-1	Notice of Account Designation
EXHIBIT 2.2	Notice of Borrowing
EXHIBIT 2.5	Form of Note
EXHIBIT 2.6	New Commitment Agreement
EXHIBIT 2.10	Notice of Prepayment
EXHIBIT 2.13	Notice of Conversion/Extension
EXHIBIT 5.1(b)	Form of Opinion of Company Counsel
EXHIBIT 5.1(n)	Solvency Certificate
EXHIBIT 7.3(d)	Compliance Certificate
EXHIBIT 11.13(c)	Commitment Transfer Supplement
SCHEDULE 2.1(a)	Banks; Commitments; Commitment Percentages
SCHEDULE 4.2	Subsidiaries; Corporate and Capital Structure
SCHEDULE 4.6	Title to Properties; Leases
SCHEDULE 4.18	Environmental Matters
SCHEDULE 4.25	Material Contracts
SCHEDULE 4.26	Insurance
SCHEDULE 7.9	Indebtedness
SCHEDULE 7.11(e)	Liens
SCHEDULE 11.5	Notice Addresses for Banks

#### **REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT**

This **REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT** is made as of May 28, 2003 among **UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST**, a real estate investment trust organized under the laws of the State of Maryland and having its principal place of business at 367 South Gulph Road, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 (the "Company"), the financial institutions from time to time party hereto (individually, a "Bank" and collectively, the "Banks"), **FLEET NATIONAL BANK**, as syndication agent (the "Syndication Agent"), and **WACHOVIA BANK**, **NATIONAL ASSOCIATION**, as administrative agent for the Banks (the "Agent").

#### **BACKGROUND**

- A. The Company has requested that the Banks provide an \$80 million revolving credit facility (which may be increased to up to \$100 million on the terms and conditions set forth herein) for the purposes hereinafter set forth;
- B. The Banks have agreed to make the requested revolving credit facility available to the Company on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth;

**NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION** of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

# ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS

#### Section 1.1 Defined Terms.

The following terms shall have the meanings set forth in this Article I or elsewhere in the provisions of this Agreement referred to below:

"Account Designation Letter" shall mean the Notice of Account Designation Letter dated the Closing Date from the company to the Agent substantially in the form of Exhibit 1.1-1.

"Additional Bank" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.6.

"Affiliate" shall mean as to any Person, any other Person (excluding any Subsidiary) which, directly or indirectly, is in control of, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. For purposes of this definition, a Person shall be deemed to be "controlled by" a Person if such Person possesses, directly or indirectly, power either (a) to vote 10% or more of the securities having ordinary voting power for the election of directors of such Person or (b) to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person whether by contract or otherwise. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Agent nor any Bank shall be deemed an affiliate of the Company solely by reason of the relationship created by the Loan Documents.

"Agent" shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

"Agreement" shall mean this Revolving Credit Agreement, including the Exhibits and Schedules hereto, as originally executed, or if this Agreement is amended, varied or supplemented from time to time, as so amended, varied or supplemented.

"Applicable Margin" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum set forth below opposite the applicable Level then in effect, it being understood that the Applicable Margin for (a) Loans that are Base Rate Loans shall be the percentage set forth under the column "Base Rate Margin for Loans", (b) Loans that are LIBO Rate Loans shall be the percentage set forth under the column "LIBO Rate Margin for Loans", (c) the Letter of Credit Fee shall be the percentage set forth under the column "Letter of Credit Fee" and (d) the Commitment Fee shall be the percentage set forth under the column "Commitment Fee":

<u>Level</u>	Ratio of Debt to Total Capital	Base Rate <u>Margin</u>	LIBO Rate <u>Margin</u>	Letter of <u>Credit Fee</u>	Commitment <u>Fee</u>
1	less than 30%	0.0 bps	100.0 bps	100.0 bps	25.0 bps
II	greater than or equal to 30% but less than 40%	10.0 bps	110.0 bps	110.0 bps	25.0 bps
III	greater than or equal to 40% but less than 50%	25.0 bps	125.0 bps	125.0 bps	30.0 bps
IV	greater than or equal to 50%	40.0 bps	140.0 bps	140.0 bps	35.0 bps

The Applicable Margin shall, in each case, be determined and adjusted quarterly on the date five (5) Business Days after the date on which the Agent has received from the Company the financial information and certifications required to be delivered to the Agent and the Banks in accordance with the provisions of Sections 7.3 (each an "Interest Rate Determination Date"). Such Applicable Margin shall be effective from such Interest Rate Determination Date until the next such Interest Rate Determination Date. The initial Applicable Margins shall be based on Level I (which corresponds to the ratio of Debt to Total Capital of the Company calculated based on the financial information of the Company as of December 31, 2002) and shall remain at such level until the first Interest Rate Determination Date occurring after the delivery of the officer's compliance certificate pursuant to Section 7.3 for the quarter ended March 31, 2003. After the Closing Date, if the Company shall fail to provide the quarterly financial information and certifications in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.3, the Applicable Margins from such Interest Rate Determination Date shall, on the date five (5) Business Days after the date by which the Company was so required to provide such financial information and certifications to the Agent and the Banks, be based on Level IV until such time as such information and certifications are provided, whereupon the Level shall be determined by the then current Debt to Total Capital Ratio.

"Arranger" shall mean Wachovia Securities, Inc.

"Banks" shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

"Base Rate" shall mean, for any day, a rate per annum equal to the greater of (a) the Prime Rate in effect on such day and (b) the Federal Funds Effective Rate in effect on such day

plus 1/2 of 1%. For purposes hereof: "Prime Rate" shall mean, at any time, the rate of interest per annum publicly announced from time to time by Wachovia at its principal office in Charlotte, North Carolina as its prime rate. Each change in the Prime Rate shall be effective as of the opening of business on the day such change in the Prime Rate occurs. The parties hereto acknowledge that the rate announced publicly by Wachovia as its Prime Rate is an index or base rate and shall not necessarily be its lowest or best rate charged to its customers or other banks; and "Federal Funds Effective Rate" shall mean, for any day, the weighted average of the rates on overnight federal funds transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by federal funds brokers, as published on the next succeeding Business Day by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or, if such rate is not so published on the next succeeding Business Day, the average of the quotations for the day of such transactions received by the Agent from three federal funds brokers of recognized standing selected by it. If for any reason the Agent shall have determined (which determination shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest error) that it is unable to ascertain the Federal Funds Effective Rate, for any reason, including the inability or failure of the Agent to obtain sufficient quotations in accordance with the terms thereof, the Alternate Base Rate shall be determined without regard to clause (b) of the first sentence of this definition, as appropriate, until the circumstances giving rise to such inability no longer exist. Any change in the Alternate Base Rate due to a change in the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Effective Rate shall be effective on the opening of business on the date of such change.

"Base Rate Loans" shall mean Loans that bear interest based on the Base Rate.

"Business" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.18(b).

"Business Day" shall mean any day on which commercial banks in Charlotte, North Carolina or New York, New York are authorized or required by law to close, it being recognized that a Business Day relating to interest calculated or payable by reference to the LIBO Rate shall also exclude any day on which banks in London, England are not open for dealings in Dollar deposits in the London interbank market.

"Cash Available For Distributions" shall mean with respect to any fiscal period of the Company, (i) Net Income of the Company and its Subsidiaries, plus (ii) depreciation and amortization, plus (iii) provision for investment losses, plus (iv) any loss on marketable securities, minus (v) any gain on marketable securities, in each case determined for such period and in accordance with GAAP.

"Cash Flow Available For Debt Service" shall mean for any fiscal period of a Person, Net Income for such period plus (i) expenses for interest on Indebtedness and for Commitment Fees, Letter of Credit Fees and any other fees in connection with the borrowing of money or the maintenance of letters of credit by such Person, plus (ii) depreciation and amortization plus (iii) losses on the sale of real estate, less (iv) gains on the sale of real estate, in each case determined for such period and in accordance with GAAP.

"CERCLA" shall mean the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980.

"Closing Date" shall mean the date of this Agreement.

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Commitment" shall mean the Revolving Commitment and the LOC Commitment, individually or collectively, as appropriate.

"Commitment Fee" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.8.

"Commitment Percentage" shall mean the Revolving Commitment Percentage and the LOC Commitment Percentage, individually or collectively, as appropriate.

"Commitment Transfer Supplement" shall mean a Commitment Transfer Supplement, substantially in the form of Exhibit 11.13(c).

"Company" shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

"Consolidated Subsidiary" shall mean any Subsidiary or other entity the results of whose operations are, for financial accounting purposes, consolidated with the results of the operations of the Company and its other Consolidated Subsidiaries in accordance with GAAP.

"Construction Loans" shall mean secured loans from time to time made by the Company to various borrowers the proceeds of which are designated for the construction of Health Care Facilities or for the acquisition of real estate and the construction thereon of Health Care Facilities.

"Contractual Obligation" shall mean, as to any Person, any provision of any security issued by such person or of any agreement, instrument or undertaking to which such Person is a party or by which it or any of its property is bound.

"Debt" shall mean with respect to any Person, all Indebtedness of such Person for borrowed money other than Non-Recourse Debt of such Person.

"Debt Service Charges" shall mean for any fiscal period of the Company, the sum of (i) the expenses of the Company and its Subsidiaries for such period for interest on Indebtedness and for Commitment Fees, Letter of Credit Fees and any other fees in connection with the borrowing of money by the Company or its Subsidiaries or the maintenance of Letters of Credit for the account of the Company or its Subsidiaries plus (ii) required principal payments to be made by the Company or its Subsidiaries for such period on Indebtedness of the Company or its Subsidiaries (excluding any principal payments made by the Company pursuant to Section 2.10 hereof), in each case determined in accordance with GAAP plus (iii) fifteen percent (15%) of the sum of the amount of the Extensions of Credit outstanding as of the end of such period.

"<u>Debt Service Coverage Ratio</u>" shall mean, at any date of determination thereof, the ratio of Cash Flow Available for Debt Service of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the period of

the four most recently ended fiscal quarters of the Company to Debt Service Charges for such period.

"Default" shall mean any event which but for the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would constitute an Event of Default.

"<u>Distribution</u>" shall mean (i) the declaration or payment of any dividend on or in respect of any shares of any class of capital stock of the Company or any Subsidiary other than dividends payable solely in shares of common stock of the Company or such Subsidiary; (ii) the purchase, redemption, or other retirement of any shares of any class of capital stock of the Company or any Subsidiary directly or otherwise; (iii) the return of capital by the Company or any Subsidiary to its shareholders as such; or (iv) any other distribution on or in respect of any shares of any class of capital stock of the Company or any Subsidiary.

"Dollars" or "\$" shall mean dollars in lawful currency of the United States of America.

"<u>Domestic Lending Office</u>" shall mean, initially, the office of each Bank designated as such Bank's Domestic Lending Office shown on <u>Schedule 15</u>; and thereafter, such other office of such Bank as such Bank may from time to time specify to the Agent and the Company as the office of such Bank at which Base Rate Loans of such Bank are to be made.

"Drawdown Date" shall mean the date on which any Loan is made or is to be made.

"Environmental Laws" shall mean any and all applicable foreign, Federal, state, local or municipal laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes, ordinances, codes, decrees, requirements of any Governmental Authority or other Requirement of Law (including common law) regulating, relating to or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning protection of human health or the environment, as now or may at any time be in effect during the term of this Agreement.

"ERISA" shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, and regulations thereunder, as amended from time to time.

"ERISA Affiliate" shall mean any Person which is treated as a single employer with the Company under Section 414 of the Code.

"Eurodollar Reserve Percentage" shall mean for any day, the percentage (expressed as a decimal and rounded upwards, if necessary, to the next higher 1/100th of 1%) which is in effect for such day as prescribed by the Federal Reserve Board (or any successor) for determining the maximum reserve requirement (including without limitation any basic, supplemental or emergency reserves) in respect of Eurocurrency liabilities, as defined in Regulation D of such Board as in effect from time to time, or any similar category of liabilities for a member bank of the Federal Reserve System in New York City.

"Event Of Default" shall mean any event described in Section 8 hereof.

"Extension of Credit" shall mean, as to any Bank, the making of a Loan by such Bank or the issuance of, or participation in, a Letter of Credit by such Bank.

"Facility Cash Flow Available For Debt Service" shall mean for any fiscal period of an owner or operator of a Health Care Facility, the Net Income of such Person plus (i) expenses for interest on Indebtedness and for Commitment Fees, Letter of Credit Fees and any other fees in connection with the borrowing of money by such person plus (ii) depreciation and amortization plus (iii) rental expenses plus (iv) management fees plus (v) intercompany interest expenses, in each case to the extent attributable to such Health Care Facility and determined for such period and in accordance with GAAP.

"Facility Coverage Ratio" shall mean for any fiscal period of an owner or operator of a Health Care Facility, the ratio of (a) Cash Flow Available for Debt Service attributable to such Health Care Facility to (b) interest expense plus current maturities of long-term debt plus rental expense, in each case to the extent attributable to such Health Care Facility and determined for such period and in accordance with GAAP.

"Federal Funds Effective Rate" shall have the meanings set forth in the definition of Base Rate.

"Fee Letter" shall mean that certain fee letter agreement dated April 16, 2003 by and among the Agent, the Arranger and the Company, as amended, modified or otherwise supplemented.

"GAAP" shall mean generally accepted accounting principles as in effect from time to time in the United States, consistently applied, subject, however, in the case of determination with the financial covenants set forth in Sections 7.5, 7.6, 7.7, 7.8 and 7.9 to the provisions of Section 1.3.

"Government Acts" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.9(a).

"Government Authority" shall mean any nation or government, any state or other political subdivision thereof and any entity exercising executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to government.

"<u>Health Care Facility</u>" or "<u>Health Care Facilities</u>" shall mean, individually or collectively as appropriate, real estate and improvements thereon used exclusively or primarily for the delivery of health or human services, including but not limited to hospitals, clinics, long term care facilities, custodial care facilities (including but not limited to childcare centers), congregate care facilities, assisted living facilities, surgery centers and medical office buildings.

"<u>Hedging Agreements</u>" means, with respect to any Person, any agreement entered into to protect such Person against fluctuations in interest rates, or currency or raw materials values, including, without limitation, any interest rate swap, cap or collar agreement, or similar arrangement between such Person and one or more counterparties, any foreign currency

exchange agreement, currency protection agreements, commodity purchase or option agreements, or other interest or exchange rate or commodity price hedging agreements.

"Increased Commitment" shall mean the amount of any increase in the aggregate Revolving Committed Amount of the Banks under Section 2.6, which Increased Commitment shall not exceed \$20,000,000 in the aggregate.

"Indebtedness" shall mean, without duplication, with respect to any Person, all indebtedness, liabilities and other obligations of such Person which would, in accordance with GAAP, be classified upon a balance sheet of such Person as liabilities but in any event including:

- (a) all debt and similar monetary obligations, whether direct or indirect;
- (b) all guaranties of such Person, endorsements and other contingent liabilities and other obligations of such Person, whether direct or indirect in respect of indebtedness of others, to purchase indebtedness, or to assure the owner of indebtedness against loss, through an agreement to purchase goods, supplies or services for the purpose of enabling the debtor to make payment of the indebtedness held by such owner or otherwise, and any obligations to reimburse the issuer in respect of any letters of credit;
- (c) all liabilities and other obligations to the extent not, included in (a) secured by any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or other encumbrance in respect of property owned by such Person, whether or not such Person has assumed or become liable for the payment of such obligations;
- (d) all indebtedness, liabilities and other obligations of such Person arising under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement, whether or not the rights and remedies of the seller or lender under such agreement in the event of default are limited to repossession or sale of such property;
- (e) all indebtedness, liabilities and other obligations of such Person in respect of leases of real and personal property (whether or not required to be capitalized);
  - (f) all cash obligations of such Person then due under Hedging Agreements; and
- (g) the principal balance outstanding under any synthetic lease, tax retention operating lease, off-balance sheet loan or similar off-balance sheet financing product plus any accrued interest thereon (excluding operating leases).

"Interest Rate Determination Date" shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the definition of Applicable Margin.

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean (a) as to any Base Rate Loan, the last Business Day of each March, June, September and December during the term of this Agreement and on the applicable Maturity Date, (b) as to any LIBO Rate Loan having an Interest Period of three

months or less, the last day of such Interest Period, (c) as to any LIBO Rate Loan having an Interest Period longer than three months, each day which is three months after the first day of such Interest Period and the last day of such Interest Period and (d) as to any Loan which is the subject of a mandatory prepayment required pursuant to Section 2.10(b), the date of such prepayment.

"Interest Period" shall mean, with respect to any LIBO Rate Loan,

- (i) initially, the period commencing on the Drawdown Date or conversion date, as the case may be, with respect to such LIBO Rate Loan and ending one, two, three or six months thereafter, as selected by the Company in the notice of borrowing or notice of conversion given with respect thereto; and
- (ii) thereafter, each period commencing on the last day of the immediately preceding Interest Period applicable to such LIBO Rate Loan and ending one, two, three or six months and, if available, nine or twelve months thereafter, as selected by the Company by irrevocable notice to the Agent not less than three Business Days prior to the last day of the then current Interest Period with respect thereto:

provided that the foregoing provisions are subject to the following:

- (A) if any Interest Period pertaining to a LIBO Rate Loan would otherwise end on a day that is not a Business Day, such Interest Period shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day unless the result of such extension would be to carry such Interest Period into another calendar month in which event such Interest Period shall end on the immediately preceding Business Day;
- (B) any Interest Period pertaining to a LIBO Rate Loan that begins on the last Business Day of a calendar month (or on a day for which there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month at the end of such Interest Period) shall end on the last Business Day of the relevant calendar month:
- (C) if the Company shall fail to give notice as provided above, the Company shall be deemed to have selected a Base Rate Loan to replace the affected LIBO Rate Loan;
  - (D) no Interest Period in respect of any Loan shall extend beyond the applicable Maturity Date for such Loan; and
- (E) no more than ten (10) LIBO Rate Loans may be in effect at any time; <u>provided</u> that, for purposes hereof, LIBO Rate Loans with different Interest Periods shall be considered as separate LIBO Rate Loans, even if they shall begin on the same date and have the same duration, although borrowings, extensions and conversions may, in accordance with the provisions hereof, be combined at the end of existing Interest Periods to constitute a new LIBO Rate Loan with a single Interest Period.

"Investments" shall mean all expenditures made and all liabilities incurred (contingently or otherwise) for the acquisition of stock, partnership or limited liability company interests or Indebtedness of, or for loans, advances, capital contributions or transfers of property to, or in respect of any guaranties (or other commitments as described under Indebtedness), or obligations of, any Person, or for the acquisition of real estate or interests therein. In determining the aggregate amount of Investments outstanding at any particular time: (a) the amount of any Investment represented by a guaranty shall be taken at not less than the principal amount of the obligations guaranteed; (b) there shall be included as an Investment all interest accrued with respect to Indebtedness constituting an Investment unless and until such interest is paid; (c) there shall be deducted in respect of each such investment any amount received as a return of capital (but only by repurchase, redemption, retirement, repayment, liquidating dividend or liquidating distribution); (d) there shall not be deducted in respect of any Investment any amounts received as earnings on such Investment, whether as dividends, interest or otherwise, except that interest included as provided in the foregoing clause (b) may be deducted when paid; and (e) there shall not be deducted from the aggregate amount of Investments any decrease in the value thereof.

"Issuing Bank" shall mean Wachovia Bank, National Association.

"Letter of Credit Fee" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.8(b).

"<u>Letters Of Credit</u>" shall mean any letter of credit issued by the Issuing Bank for the account of the Company pursuant to this Agreement and the LOC Documents, as such Letters of Credit may be amended, modified, extended, renewed or replaced from time to time.

"<u>LIBO</u>" shall mean, for any LIBO Rate Loan for any Interest Period therefor, the rate per annum (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the nearest 1/100 of 1%) appearing on Telerate Page 3750 (or any successor page) as the London interbank offered rate for deposits in Dollars at approximately 11:00 A.M. (London time) two Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Period for a term comparable to such Interest Period. If for any reason such rate is not available, the term "LIBO" shall mean, for any LIBO Rate Loan for any Interest Period therefor, the rate per annum (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the nearest 1/100 of 1%) appearing on Reuters Screen LIBO Page as the London interbank offered rate for deposits in Dollars at approximately 11:00 A.M. (London time) two Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Period for a term comparable to such Interest Period; provided, however, if more than one rate is specified on Reuters Screen LIBO Page, the applicable rate shall be the arithmetic mean of all such rates (rounded upwards, if necessary, to the nearest 1/100 of 1%). If, for any reason, neither of such rates is available, then "LIBO" shall mean the rate per annum at which, as determined by the Agent, Dollars in an amount comparable to the Loans then requested are being offered to leading banks at approximately 11:00 A.M. London time, two (2) Business Days prior to the commencement of the applicable Interest Period for settlement in immediately available funds by leading banks in the London interbank market for a period equal to the Interest Period selected.

"LIBO Rate" shall mean a rate per annum (rounded upwards	s, if necessary, to the next higher	$^{\circ}$ 1/100 $^{ ext{th}}$ of 1%) determined by the Ag	ent
oursuant to the following formula:			

"<u>LIBO Lending Office</u>" shall mean, initially, the office of each Bank designated as such Bank's LIBO Lending Office shown on <u>Schedule 15</u>; and thereafter, such other office of such Bank as such Bank may from time to time specify to the Agent and the Company as the office of such Bank at which the LIBO Rate Loans of such Bank are to be made.

"LIBO Rate Loans" shall mean Loans that bear interest at an interest rate based on the LIBO Rate.

"Loans" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.

"Loan Documents" shall mean collectively, this Agreement, the Notes, the LOC Documents and any document or instrument delivered pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement or the LOC Documents (including, without limitation, any guaranty delivered in connection with this Agreement), each as amended and in effect from time to time.

- "LOC Commitment" shall mean the commitment of the Issuing Bank to issue Letters of Credit and with respect to each Bank, the commitment of such Bank to purchase participation interests in the Letters of Credit up to such Bank's LOC Committed Amount as specified in <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u>, as such amount may be reduced from time to time in accordance with the provisions hereof.
- "LOC Commitment Percentage" shall mean, for each Bank, the percentage identified as its LOC Commitment Percentage on Schedule 2.1(a), as such percentage may be modified in connection with any assignment made in accordance with the provisions of Section 11.13(c).
- "LOC Committed Amount" shall mean, collectively, the aggregate amount of all of the LOC Commitments of the Banks to issue and participate in Letters of Credit as referenced in Section 2.5 and, individually, the amount of each Bank's LOC Commitment as specified in Schedule 2.1(a).
- "LOC Documents" shall mean, with respect to any Letter of Credit, such Letter of Credit, any amendments thereto, any documents delivered in connection therewith, any application therefor, and any agreements, instruments, guarantees or other documents (whether general in application or applicable only to such Letter of Credit) governing or providing for (i) the rights and obligations of the parties concerned or (ii) any collateral security for such obligations.
- "LOC Obligations" shall mean, at any time, the sum of (i) the maximum amount which is, or at any time thereafter may become, available to be drawn under Letters of Credit then outstanding, assuming compliance with all requirements for drawings referred to in such Letters

of Credit plus (ii) the aggregate amount of all drawings under Letters of Credit honored by the Issuing Bank but not theretofore reimbursed.

"Mandatory LOC Borrowing" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.7(d).

"Material Adverse Effect" shall mean a material adverse effect on (a) the business, operations, properties, operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, (b) the ability of the Company to perform its obligations, when such obligations are required to be performed, under this Agreement, any of the Notes or any other Loan Document or (c) the validity or enforceability of this Agreement, any of the Notes or any of the other Loan Documents or the rights or remedies of the Agent or the Banks hereunder or thereunder.

"Material Contract" shall mean any contract or other arrangement, whether written or oral, to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party as to which the breach, nonperformance, cancellation or failure to renew by any party thereto could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

"<u>Materials of Environmental Concern</u>" shall mean any gasoline or petroleum (including crude oil or any fraction thereof) or petroleum products or any hazardous or toxic substances, materials or wastes, defined or regulated as such in or under any Environmental Law, including, without limitation, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls and urea-formaldehyde insulation.

"Majority Banks" shall mean, as of any date, the Banks holding in the aggregate at least two-thirds (66.66%) of (i) the Commitments (and Participation Interests therein) or (ii) if the Commitments have been terminated, the outstanding Loans and Participation Interests (including the Participation Interests of the Issuing Bank in any Letters of Credit.

"Maturity Date" shall mean May 28, 2007.

"Mortgage Loans" shall mean loans from time to time made by the Company, in each case secured by a first mortgage lien on a Health Care Facility.

"Net Income" shall mean for any fiscal period of a Person, the net income (or loss), after income taxes, of such Person determined in accordance with GAAP.

"Non-Recourse Debt" shall mean Indebtedness of the Company or its Subsidiaries which is at all times non-recourse in nature to the Company or any of its wholly-owned Subsidiaries, except to the extent of any recourse to an asset of the Company or a Subsidiary purchased or otherwise financed by such Indebtedness including, without limitation, Indebtedness of multi-member limited liability companies in which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has an ownership interest, but only to the extent that such Indebtedness remains non-recourse to the Company or any of its wholly-owned Subsidiaries.

"Notes" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.5.

"Obligations" shall mean all Indebtedness, obligations and liabilities to the Agent and the Banks, existing on the date of this Agreement or arising thereafter, direct or indirect, joint or several, absolute or contingent, matured or unmatured, liquidated or unliquidated, secured or unsecured, arising by contract, operation of law or otherwise of the Company arising or incurred under this Agreement, the LOC Documents or in respect of any Loans, Notes or Letters of Credit or other instruments at any time evidencing any of the foregoing.

"Participation Interest" shall mean the purchase by a Bank of a participation interest in Letters of Credit as provided in Section 2.7.

"PBGC" shall mean the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation and any successor entity or entities having similar responsibilities.

"Pension Plan" shall mean pension plan shall include (a) any multi employer plan within the meaning of Section 3(37) of ERISA, (b) any employee benefit plan within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA, other than plans described in (a) above and (c) any employee pension benefit plan within the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA the benefits of which are guaranteed on termination in full or in part by PBGC pursuant to Title IV of ERISA, other than plans described in (a) above, each as maintained or contributed to by the Company or any ERISA Affiliate.

"<u>Person</u>" shall mean any corporation, unincorporated association, partnership, trust, organization, business, individual or other legal entity and any government or any governmental agency or political subdivision thereof.

"Related Fund" shall mean, with respect to any Bank, any fund or trust or entity that invests in commercial bank loans in the ordinary course of business and is advised or managed by (i) such Bank, (ii) an affiliate of a Bank, (iii) any other Bank or Affiliate thereof or (iv) the same investment advisor as any Person described in clauses (i)-(iii).

"Requirement of Law" shall mean, as to any Person, the certificate of incorporation, trust documents and by-laws or other organizational or governing documents of such Person, and each law, treaty, rule or regulation or determination of an arbitrator or a court or other Governmental Authority, in each case applicable to or binding upon such Person or any of its property or to which such Person or any of its property is subject.

"Revolving Commitment" shall mean, with respect to each Bank, the commitment of such Bank to make Loans in an aggregate principal amount at any time outstanding up to such Bank's Revolving Committed Amount.

"Revolving Commitment Percentage" shall mean, for each Bank, the percentage identified as its Revolving Commitment Percentage on Schedule 2.1(a), as such percentage may be increased pursuant to Section 2.6 or modified in connection with any assignment made in accordance with the provisions of Section 11.13(c).

"Revolving Committed Amount" shall mean the amount of each Bank's Revolving Commitment as specified on Schedule 2.1(a), as such amount may be reduced or increased from time to time in accordance with the provisions hereof.

"Significant Subsidiary" shall mean any Subsidiary of the Company with assets totaling more than 3.5% of the total assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole.

"Subsidiary" shall mean with respect to any Person, any corporation, association, trust or other business entity with respect to which such Person owns directly, or indirectly through a subsidiary, at least a majority of voting interest entitling such Person to direct the management and policies of such entity.

"Syndication Agent" shall have the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

"Tangible Net Worth" shall mean the aggregate of the capital stock (but excluding treasury stock and capital stock subscribed and unissued) and surplus (including earned surplus, capital surplus and the balance of the current profit and loss account not transferred to surplus) of the Company and its Subsidiaries as the same properly appears on a balance sheet of the Company prepared in accordance with GAAP, less the sum of the total book value of all assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries which would be treated as intangibles under GAAP including without limitation, such items as good will, leasehold improvements, trademarks, trade names, service marks, brand names, copyrights, patents and licenses, and rights with respect to the foregoing.

"Total Capital" shall mean the aggregate of the capital stock (but excluding treasury stock and capital stock subscribed and unissued) and surplus (including earned surplus, capital surplus and the balance of the current profit and loss account not transferred to surplus) of the Company and its Subsidiaries as the same properly appears on a balance sheet of the Company prepared in accordance with GAAP, plus all Debt of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

"UHS" Universal Health Services, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

"<u>UHS Subsidiaries</u>" shall mean at the relevant time of reference hereto, any Subsidiary or other entity the accounts of which would be consolidated with those of Universal Health Services, Inc. in its consolidated financial statements if such statements were prepared as of such date

"<u>Unencumbered Property</u>" shall mean any property owned or held under capital lease by the Company which is not subject to any form of mortgage, deed of trust, or other lien or encumbrance; provided that for purposes of this definition, leases shall not be deemed to be encumbrances.

"Wachovia" shall mean Wachovia Bank, National Association and its successors and assigns.

## Section 1.2 Other Definitional Provisions.

- (a) Unless otherwise specified therein, all terms defined in this Agreement shall have the defined meanings when used in the Notes or other Loan Documents or any certificate or other document made or delivered pursuant hereto.
- (b) The words "hereof", "herein" and "hereunder" and words of similar import when used in this Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement, and Section, subsection, Schedule and Exhibit references are to this Agreement unless otherwise specified.
- (c) Any reference to a "Bank party to a Hedging Agreement" or similar phrase shall include any Person (or affiliate of such Person) that was a Bank at the time it entered into a Hedging Agreement permitted pursuant to Section 7.9 and has ceased to be a Bank under this Agreement.
  - (d) The meanings given to terms defined herein shall be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such terms.
  - (e) Unless otherwise expressly indicated, each time reference in any Loan Document shall be to Charlotte, North Carolina time.

#### Section 1.3 Accounting Terms.

Unless otherwise specified herein, all accounting terms used herein shall be interpreted, all accounting determinations hereunder shall be made, and all financial statements required to be delivered hereunder shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on a basis consistent with the most recent audited consolidated financial statements of the Company delivered to the Banks; provided that, if the Company notifies the Agent that it wishes to amend any covenant in Sections 7.5, 7.6, 7.7, 7.8 and 7.9 to eliminate the effect of any change in GAAP on the operation of such covenant (or if the Agent notifies the Company that the Majority Banks wish to amend any of Sections 7.5, 7.6, 7.7, 7.8 and 7.9 for such purpose), then the Company's compliance with such covenant shall be determined on the basis of GAAP in effect immediately before the relevant change in GAAP became effective, until either such notice is withdrawn or such covenant is amended in a manner satisfactory to the Company's and the Majority Banks.

The Company shall deliver to the Agent and each Bank at the same time as the delivery of any annual or quarterly financial statements given in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.3, (a) a description in reasonable detail of any material change in the application of accounting principles employed in the preparation of such financial statements from those applied in the most recently preceding quarterly or annual financial statements as to which no objection shall have been made in accordance with the provisions above and (b) a reasonable estimate of the effect on the financial statements on account of such changes in application.

# ARTICLE II LOANS; AMOUNTS AND TERMS

#### Section 2.1 Commitment.

From the Closing Date through the Maturity Date, or such earlier date on which the Revolving Commitments hereunder are terminated, subject to the terms and conditions hereof, each Bank severally, but not jointly, agrees to make revolving credit loans ("Loans") to the Company from time to time in an aggregate principal amount of up to EIGHTY MILLION DOLLARS (\$80,000,000) (as such aggregate maximum amount may be reduced from time to time as provided in Section 2.9 and/or increased pursuant to Section 2.6) for the purposes hereinafter set forth; provided, however, that (i) with regard to each Bank individually, the sum of such Bank's Revolving Commitment Percentage of outstanding Loans plus Bank's LOC Commitment Percentage of LOC Obligations shall not exceed such Bank's Committed Amount, and (ii) with regard to the Banks collectively, the sum of the outstanding Loans plus LOC Obligations shall not exceed the aggregate Revolving Committed Amount of all of the Banks. Loans may consist of Base Rate Loans or LIBO Rate Loans, or a combination thereof, as the Company may request, and may be repaid and reborrowed in accordance with the provisions hereof. LIBO Rate Loans shall be made by each Bank at its LIBO Lending Office and Alternate Base Rate Loans at its Domestic Lending Office.

## Section 2.2 Loan Borrowings.

- (a) Notice of Borrowing. The Company shall request a Loan borrowing by written notice (or telephone notice promptly confirmed in writing which confirmation may be by fax or electronic mail) to the Agent not later than 11:00 A.M. (Charlotte, North Carolina time) on the Business Day of the requested borrowing in the case of Base Rate Loans, and on the third Business Day prior to the date of the requested borrowing in the case of LIBO Rate Loans. Each such request for borrowing shall be irrevocable and shall specify (A) that a Loan is requested, (B) the date of the requested borrowing (which shall be a Business Day), (C) the aggregate principal amount to be borrowed, (D) whether the borrowing shall be comprised of Base Rate Loans, LIBO Rate Loans or a combination thereof, and if LIBO Rate Loans are requested, the Interest Period(s) therefor. A form of Notice of Borrowing (a "Notice of Borrowing") is attached as Exhibit 2.2. If the Company shall fail to specify in any such Notice of Borrowing (I) an applicable Interest Period in the case of a LIBO Rate Loan, then such notice shall be deemed to be a request for an Interest Period of one month, or (II) whether such Loan is to be a Base Rate Loan or a LIBO Rate Loan, then such notice shall be deemed to be a request for an Base Rate Loan hereunder. The Agent shall give notice to each Bank promptly upon receipt of each Notice of Borrowing, the contents thereof and each such Bank's share thereof. All Loans made on the Closing Date and on any of the three (3) Business Days following the Closing Date shall bear interest at the Base Rate.
- (b) Minimum Amounts. Each Loan which is a Base Rate Loan shall be in a minimum aggregate amount of \$100,000 and in integral multiples of \$100,000 in excess thereof (or the remaining amount of the Committed Amount, if less). Each Loan which is a LIBO Rate

Loan shall be in a minimum aggregate amount of \$100,000 and in integral multiples of \$100,000 in excess thereof.

(c) Advances. Each Bank will make its Revolving Commitment Percentage of each Loan borrowing available to the Agent for the account of the Company at the office of the Agent specified in Section 11.5, or at such other office as the Agent may designate in writing, by 1:00 P.M. (Charlotte, North Carolina time) on the date specified in the applicable Notice of Borrowing in Dollars and in funds immediately available to the Agent. Such borrowing will then be made available to the Company by the Agent by crediting the account of the Company on the books of such office with the aggregate of the amounts made available to the Agent by the Banks and in like funds as received by the Agent.

## Section 2.3 Repayment.

The principal amount of all Loans shall be due and payable in full on the Maturity Date, unless accelerated sooner pursuant to <u>Article VIII</u>.

## Section 2.4 Interest.

Subject to the provisions of Section 2.12, Loans shall bear interest as follows:

- (i) <u>Base Rate Loans</u>. During such periods as Loans shall be comprised of Base Rate Loans, each such Base Rate Loan shall bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the sum of the Base Rate <u>plus the Applicable Margin</u>; and
- (ii) <u>LIBO Rate Loans</u>. During such periods as Loans shall be comprised of LIBO Rate Loans, each such LIBO Rate Loan shall bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the sum of the LIBO Rate <u>plus</u> the Applicable Margin.

Interest on Loans shall be payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date.

#### Section 2.5 Notes.

Each Bank's Revolving Committed Amount shall be evidenced by a duly executed promissory note of the Company to such Bank in substantially the form of Exhibit 2.5.

# Section 2.6 Increase Of Revolving Committed Amount; Additional Banks.

(a) From time to time (but no more than two times), the Company may, upon notice to the Agent (which shall promptly provide a copy of such notice to the Banks), propose to increase the aggregate Revolving Committed Amount. Each Bank party to this Agreement at such time shall have the right (but no obligation), for a period of 15 days following receipt of such notice, to elect by notice to the Company and the Agent to increase its Revolving Commitment by a principal amount which bears the same ratio to the Increased Commitment as its then Revolving Commitment bears to the aggregate Revolving Commitment then existing.

Any Bank not responding within fifteen (15) days of receipt of such notice shall be deemed to have declined to increase its Revolving Commitment.

- (b) If any Bank party to this Agreement shall not elect to increase its Revolving Commitment pursuant to subsection (a) of this Section, the Company may, within 10 days of the Banks' response, designate one or more of the existing Banks or other financial institutions acceptable to the Agent and the Company which at the time agree to (i) in the case of any such lender that is an existing Bank, increase its Revolving Commitment and (ii) in the case of any other such lender (an "Additional Bank"), become a party to this Agreement with a Revolving Commitment of not less than \$10,000,000 pursuant to the terms of a new commitment agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit 2.6 (a "New Commitment Agreement"). The sum of the increases in the Revolving Commitments of the existing Banks pursuant to this subsection (b) plus the Revolving Commitments of the Additional Banks shall not in the aggregate exceed the unsubscribed amount of the Increased Commitments.
- (c) Any increase in the Revolving Commitments pursuant to this Section 2.6 shall be subject to satisfaction of the following conditions:
  - (i) before and after giving effect to such increase, all representations and warranties contained in Article IV shall be true;
  - (ii) at the time of such increase, no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would result from such increase, and no event shall have occurred and be continuing that with notice or lapse of time or both would constitute a Default or an Event of Default; and
  - (iii) after giving effect to such increase, the aggregate amount of all increases in Revolving Commitments made pursuant to this Section 2.6 shall not exceed \$20,000,000.
- (d) An increase in the aggregate amount of the Revolving Commitments pursuant to this Section 2.6 shall become effective upon the receipt by the Agent of (i) an agreement in form and substance satisfactory to the Agent signed by the Company, by each Additional Bank and by each other Bank whose Revolving Commitments is to be increased, setting forth the new Revolving Commitments of such Banks and setting forth the agreement of each Additional Bank to become a party to this Agreement and to be bound by all the terms and provisions hereof, (ii) Notes duly executed by the Company, equal in principal amount to the respective amounts of the Revolving Commitments of the Additional Banks and the Banks that increased their Revolving Commitments (in which event the original Notes held by the latter Banks shall be returned to the Company); (iii) such evidence of appropriate corporate authorization on the part of the Company with respect to the Increased Commitments and such opinions of counsel for the Company with respect to the Increased Commitments as the Agent may reasonably request and (iv such evidence of the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in subsection (c) above as the Agent may reasonably request.

(e) Upon any increase in the aggregate amount of the Revolving Commitments pursuant to this Section 2.6, within five Business Days in the case of Base Rate Loans then outstanding and at the end of the then current Interest Period with respect to LIBO Rate Loans then outstanding, the Company shall prepay or repay such Loans in their entirety and, to the extent the Company elects to do so and subject to the conditions specified in Article II, the Company shall reborrow Loans from the Banks in proportion to their respective Revolving Commitments after giving effect to such increase, until such time as all outstanding Loans are held by the Banks in such proportion.

## Section 2.7 Letters of Credit.

- Issuance. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof and of the LOC Documents, if any, and any other terms and conditions which the Issuing Bank may reasonably require which are not inconsistent with this Agreement, from the Closing Date through the Maturity Date, the Issuing Bank shall issue, and the Banks shall participate in, Letters of Credit for the account of the Company from time to time upon request in a form acceptable to the Issuing Bank; provided, however, that (i) the aggregate amount of LOC Obligations shall not at any time exceed TWENTY MILLION DOLLARS (\$20,000,000) (the "LOC Committed Amount"), (ii) the sum of outstanding Loans plus outstanding LOC Obligations shall not at any time exceed the Revolving Committed Amount, (iii) all Letters of Credit shall be denominated in U.S. Dollars, (iv) Letters of Credit shall be issued for lawful corporate purposes and may be issued as standby letters of credit, including in connection with workers' compensation and other insurance programs, and trade letters of credit and (v) no Letter of Credit shall be issued after the occurrence and during the continuance of a Default or an Event of Default. Except as otherwise expressly agreed upon by all the Banks, no Letter of Credit shall have an original expiry date more than two years from the date of issuance; provided, however, so long as no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and subject to the other terms and conditions to the issuance of Letters of Credit hereunder, the expiry dates of Letters of Credit may be extended annually or periodically from time to time on the request of the Company or by operation of the terms of the applicable Letter of Credit to a date not more than one year from the date of extension; provided, further, that no Letter of Credit, as originally issued or as extended, shall have an expiry date extending beyond the date that is five (5) Business Days prior to the Maturity Date. Each Letter of Credit shall comply with the related LOC Documents. The issuance and expiry date of each Letter of Credit shall be a Business Day. Any Letters of Credit issued hereunder shall be in a minimum original face amount of \$50,000, or such lesser amount as the Company and the Administrative Agent shall agree.
- (b) Notice and Reports. The request for the issuance of a Letter of Credit shall be submitted to the Issuing Bank at least five (5) Business Days prior to the requested date of issuance. The Issuing Bank will promptly upon request provide to the Agent for dissemination to the Banks a detailed report specifying the Letters of Credit which are then issued and outstanding and any activity with respect thereto which may have occurred since the date of any prior report, and including therein, among other things, the account party, the beneficiary, the face amount, expiry date as well as any payments or expirations which may have occurred. The Issuing Bank will further provide to the Agent promptly upon request copies of the Letters of

Credit. The Issuing Bank will provide to the Agent promptly upon request a summary report of the nature and extent of LOC Obligations then outstanding.

- (c) Participations. Each Bank, upon issuance of a Letter of Credit, shall be deemed to have purchased without recourse a risk participation from the Issuing Bank in such Letter of Credit and the obligations arising thereunder and any collateral relating thereto, in each case in an amount equal to its LOC Commitment Percentage of the obligations under such Letter of Credit and shall absolutely, unconditionally and irrevocably assume, as primary obligor and not as surety, and be obligated to pay to the Issuing Bank therefor and discharge when due, its LOC Commitment Percentage of the obligations arising under such Letter of Credit. Without limiting the scope and nature of each Bank's participation in any Letter of Credit, to the extent that the Issuing Bank has not been reimbursed as required hereunder or under any LOC Document, each such Bank shall pay to the Issuing Bank its LOC Commitment Percentage of such unreimbursed drawing in same day funds on the day of notification by the Issuing Bank of an unreimbursed drawing pursuant to the provisions of subsection (d) hereof. The obligation of each Bank to so reimburse the Issuing Bank shall be absolute and unconditional and shall not be affected by the occurrence of a Default, an Event of Default or any other occurrence or event. Any such reimbursement shall not relieve or otherwise impair the obligation of the Company to reimburse the Issuing Bank under any Letter of Credit, together with interest as hereinafter provided.
- Reimbursement. In the event of any drawing under any Letter of Credit, the Issuing Bank will promptly notify the Company and the Agent. The Company shall reimburse the Issuing Bank on the day of drawing under any Letter of Credit (with the proceeds of a Loan obtained hereunder or otherwise) in same day funds as provided herein or in the LOC Documents. If the Company shall fail to reimburse the Issuing Bank as provided herein, the unreimbursed amount of such drawing shall bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the Base Rate plus 2% for so long as such amount shall be unreimbursed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless the Company shall immediately notify the Issuing Bank and the Agent of its intent to otherwise reimburse the Issuing Bank, the Company shall be deemed to have requested a Loan (a "Mandatory LOC Borrowing") in the amount of the drawing as provided in subsection (e) hereof, the proceeds of which will be used to satisfy the reimbursement obligations. The Company's reimbursement obligations hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional under all circumstances irrespective of any rights of set-off, counterclaim or defense to payment the Company may claim or have against the Issuing Bank, the Agent, the Banks, the beneficiary of the Letter of Credit drawn upon or any other Person, including without limitation any defense based on any failure of the Company to receive consideration or the legality, validity, regularity or unenforceability of the Letter of Credit. The Issuing Bank will promptly notify the other Banks of the amount of any unreimbursed drawing and each Bank shall promptly pay to the Agent for the account of the Issuing Bank in Dollars and in immediately available funds, the amount of such Bank's Commitment Percentage of such unreimbursed drawing. Such payment shall be made on the day such notice is received by such Bank from the Issuing Bank if such notice is received at or before 2:00 P.M. (Charlotte, North Carolina time), otherwise such payment shall be made at or before 12:00 Noon (Charlotte, North Carolina time) on the Business Day next succeeding the day such notice is received. If such Bank does not pay such amount to the Issuing Bank in full upon such request, such Bank shall, on demand, pay to the Agent for the account of the Issuing Bank interest on the unpaid amount during the period from the date of

such drawing until such Bank pays such amount to the Issuing Bank in full at a rate per annum equal to, if paid within two (2) Business Days of the date of drawing, the Federal Funds Effective Rate and thereafter at a rate equal to the Base Rate. Each Bank's obligation to make such payment to the Issuing Bank, and the right of the Issuing Bank to receive the same, shall be absolute and unconditional, shall not be affected by any circumstance whatsoever and without regard to the termination of this Agreement or the Commitments hereunder, the existence of a Default or Event of Default or the acceleration of the obligations hereunder and shall be made without any offset, abatement, withholding or reduction whatsoever.

- Repayment with Loans. On any day on which the Company shall have requested, or been deemed to have requested, pursuant to subsection (d) hereof, a Mandatory LOC Borrowing to reimburse a drawing under a Letter of Credit, the Agent shall give notice to the Banks that a Mandatory LOC Borrowing has been requested or deemed requested in connection with a drawing under a Letter of Credit, in which case a Mandatory LOC Borrowing comprised entirely of Base Rate Loans shall be immediately made (without giving effect to any termination of the Commitments pursuant to Article VIII) pro rata based on each Bank's respective Revolving Commitment Percentage (determined before giving effect to any termination of the Commitments pursuant to Article VIII). The proceeds of such Mandatory LOC Borrowing shall be paid by the Agent directly to the Issuing Bank for application to, or otherwise applied by the Agent to, the respective LOC Obligations. Each Bank hereby irrevocably agrees to make such Loans immediately upon any such request or deemed request on account of each Mandatory LOC Borrowing in the amount and in the manner specified in the preceding sentence and on the same such date notwithstanding (i) the amount of Mandatory LOC Borrowing may not comply with the minimum amount for borrowings of Loans otherwise required hereunder, (ii) whether any conditions specified in Article VI are then satisfied, (iii) whether a Default or an Event of Default then exists, (iv) failure for any such request or deemed request for Loan to be made by the time otherwise required in Section 2.2(b), (v) the date of such Mandatory LOC Borrowing, or (vi) any reduction in the Revolving Committed Amount after any such Letter of Credit may have been drawn upon; provided, however, that in the event any such Mandatory LOC Borrowing should be less than the minimum amount for borrowings of Loans otherwise provided in Section 2.2(b), the Company shall pay to the Agent for its own account an administrative fee of \$500. In the event that any Mandatory LOC Borrowing cannot for any reason be made on the date otherwise required above (including, without limitation, as a result of the commencement of a proceeding under the Bankruptcy Code), then each such Bank hereby agrees that it shall forthwith fund (as of the date the Mandatory LOC Borrowing would otherwise have occurred, but adjusted for any payments received from the Company on or after such date and prior to such purchase) its Participation Interests in the outstanding LOC Obligations; provided, further, that in the event any Bank shall fail to fund its Participation Interest on the day the Mandatory LOC Borrowing would otherwise have occurred, then the amount of such Bank's unfunded Participation Interest therein shall bear interest payable by such Bank to the Issuing Bank upon demand, at the rate equal to, if paid within two (2) Business Days of such date, the Federal Funds Effective Rate, and thereafter at a rate equal to the Base Rate.
- (f) <u>Modification, Extension</u>. The issuance of any supplement, modification, amendment, renewal, or extension to any Letter of Credit shall, for purposes hereof, be treated in all respects the same as the issuance of a new Letter of Credit hereunder.

(g) <u>Uniform Customs and Practices</u>. The Issuing Bank shall have the Letters of Credit be subject to The Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits, as published as of the date of issue by the International Chamber of Commerce (the "<u>UCP</u>"), in which case the UCP may be incorporated therein and deemed in all respects to be a part thereof.

## Section 2.8 Fees.

- (a) Commitment Fee. In consideration of the Revolving Commitments, the Company agrees to pay to the Agent for the ratable benefit of the Banks a commitment fee (the "Commitment Fee") in an amount equal to the Applicable Margin for the Commitment Fee per annum on the daily amount of the unused portion of the Revolving Committed Amount during the period from and including the Closing Date to but excluding the date on which the Revolving Commitment terminates. For purposes of computation of the Commitment Fee, LOC Obligations shall be considered usage of the Revolving Committed Amount. Accrued commitment fees shall be payable in arrears on the last day of March, June, September and December of each year and on the date on which the Revolving Commitment terminates, commencing on the first such date to occur after the date hereof; provided that any Revolving Commitment Fee accruing after the date on which the Commitments terminate shall be payable on demand.
- (b) <u>Letter of Credit Fees</u>. In consideration of the LOC Commitments, the Company agrees to pay to the Issuing Bank a fee (the "<u>Letter of Credit Fee</u>") equal to the Applicable Margin per annum for the Letter of Credit Fee on the average daily maximum amount available to be drawn under each Letter of Credit from the date of issuance to the date of expiration. In addition to such Letter of Credit Fee, the Issuing Bank may charge, and retain for its own account without sharing by the other Banks, an additional facing fee of one-eighth of one percent (0.125%) per annum on the average daily maximum amount available to be drawn under each such Letter of Credit issued by it. The Issuing Bank shall promptly pay over to the Agent for the ratable benefit of the Banks (including the Issuing Bank) the Letter of Credit Fee. The Letter of Credit Fee shall be payable quarterly in arrears on the 15th day following the last day of each calendar quarter for the prior calendar quarter.
- (c) <u>Issuing Bank Fees</u>. In addition to the Letter of Credit Fees payable pursuant to subsection (b) hereof, the Company shall pay to the Issuing Bank for its own account without sharing by the other Banks the reasonable and customary charges from time to time of the Issuing Bank with respect to the amendment, transfer, administration, cancellation and conversion of, and drawings under, such Letters of Credit (collectively, the "<u>Issuing Bank Fees</u>").
  - (d) Administrative Fee. The Company agrees to pay to the Agent the annual administrative fee as described in the Fee Letter.

## Section 2.9 Commitment Reductions.

- (a) <u>Voluntary Reductions</u>. The Company shall have the right to terminate or permanently reduce the unused portion of the aggregate Revolving Committed Amount of all of the Banks at any time or from time to time upon not less than five Business Days' prior notice to the Agent (which shall notify the Banks thereof as soon as practicable) of each such termination or reduction, which notice shall specify the effective date thereof and the amount of any such reduction which shall be in a minimum amount of \$500,000 or a whole multiple of \$250,000 in excess thereof and shall be irrevocable and effective upon receipt by the Agent, <u>provided</u> that no such reduction or termination of (i) the aggregate Revolving Committed Amount of all of the Banks shall be permitted if after giving effect thereto, and to any prepayments of the Loans made on the effective date thereof, the sum of the outstanding Loans <u>plus</u> LOC Obligations would exceed the aggregate Revolving Committed Amount of all of the Banks.
- (b) <u>Mandatory Reductions</u>. The aggregate Revolving Committed Amount of all of the Banks shall be automatically and permanently reduced by an amount equal to 50% of the net cash proceeds received by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries from the issuance of any equity securities.
  - (c) <u>Commitment Termination Date</u>. The Commitment shall automatically terminate on the Maturity Date.

## Section 2.10 Prepayments.

- (a) Optional Prepayments. The Company shall have the right to prepay Loans in whole or in part from time to time; provided, however, that (i) each partial prepayment of any Base Rate Loan shall be in a minimum principal amount of \$100,000 and integral multiples of \$100,000 in excess thereof and (ii) each partial prepayment of a LIBO Rate Loan shall be in a minimum principal amount of \$100,000 and integral multiples of \$100,000 in excess thereof. The Company shall notify the Agent of such prepayment by written notice in the form of Exhibit 2.10 (a "Notice of Prepayment"). The Company shall give three Business Days' irrevocable notice in the case of LIBO Rate Loans and one Business Day's irrevocable notice in the case of Base Rate Loans, to the Agent (which shall notify the Banks thereof as soon as practicable). Amounts prepaid under this Section 2.10(a) shall be applied to the outstanding Loans as the Company may elect; provided however, each prepayment shall be applied first to Alternate Base Rate Loans and then to LIBO Rate Loans in direct order of Interest Period maturities. All prepayments under this Section 2.10(a) shall be subject to Section 3.7, but otherwise without premium or penalty. Interest on the principal amount prepaid shall be payable on the next occurring Interest Payment Date that would have occurred had such Loans not been prepaid or, at the request of the Agent, interest on the principal amount prepaid shall be payable on any date that a prepayment is made hereunder through the date of prepayment. Amounts prepaid on the Loans may be reborrowed in accordance with the terms hereof.
- (b) <u>Mandatory Prepayments Revolving Committed Amount</u>. If at any time after the Closing Date, the sum of the outstanding Loans <u>plus</u> outstanding LOC Obligations shall exceed the aggregate Revolving Committed Amount of all of the Banks, the Company immediately shall

prepay the Loans and/or cash collateralize the LOC Obligations in an amount sufficient to eliminate such excess. All amounts required to be paid pursuant to this Section 2.10(b) shall be applied as follows: (1) <u>first</u>, to the Loans and (2) <u>second</u>, to a cash collateral account in respect of outstanding LOC Obligations. Within the parameters of the applications set forth above, prepayments shall be applied first to Base Rate Loans and then to LIBO Rate Loans in direct order of Interest Period maturities. All prepayments under this Section 2.10(b) shall be subject to Section 3.7 and be accompanied by interest on the principal amount prepaid through the date of prepayment.

(c) <u>Hedging Agreements</u>. Any prepayment made pursuant to this Section 2.10 shall not affect the Company's obligations to continue making payments under any Hedging Agreement relating to the Loans hereunder between the Company and any Bank, or any Affiliate of a Bank, and any such Hedging Agreement shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding such prepayment, subject to the terms of such Hedging Agreement.

#### Section 2.11 Minimum Principal Amount of Tranches; Lending Offices.

All borrowings, payments and prepayments (other than amounts required to be paid pursuant to Section 2.10) in respect of Loans herewith shall be in such amounts and be made pursuant to such elections so that after giving effect thereto the aggregate principal amount of the Loans comprising any tranche shall be (a) with respect to LIBO Rate Loans, \$100,000 or a whole multiple of \$100,000 in excess thereof and (b) with respect to Base Rate Loans, \$100,000 or a whole multiple of \$100,000 in excess thereof.

#### Section 2.12 Default Rate and Payment Dates.

Upon the occurrence, and during the continuance, of an Event of Default, at the election of the Majority Banks, the principal of and, to the extent permitted by law, interest on the Loans and any other amounts owing hereunder or under the other Loan Documents shall bear interest, payable on demand, at a per annum rate 2% greater than the rate which would otherwise be applicable (or if no rate is applicable, the Base Rate plus 2%).

## Section 2.13 Conversion Options.

(a) The Company may, in the case of Loans, elect from time to time to convert Base Rate Loans to LIBO Rate Loans, by giving the Agent at least three Business Days' prior irrevocable written notice of such election. The Agent shall give prompt written notice to each Bank of any notice received by the Agent from the Company pursuant to this Section 2.13. A form of Notice of Conversion/Extension is attached as <a href="Exhibit 2.13">Exhibit 2.13</a>. If the date upon which an Base Rate Loan is to be converted to a LIBO Rate Loan is not a Business Day, then such conversion shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day and during the period from such last day of an Interest Period to such succeeding Business Day such Loan shall bear interest as if it were an Base Rate Loan. All or any part of outstanding Base Rate Loans may be converted as provided herein, provided that (i) no Loan may be converted into a LIBO Rate Loan when any Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and (ii) partial conversions shall be in an aggregate principal amount of \$100,000 or a whole multiple of \$100,000 in excess thereof.

(b) Any LIBO Rate Loans may be continued as such upon the expiration of an Interest Period with respect thereto by compliance by the Company with the notice provisions contained in Section 2.13(a); provided, that no LIBO Rate Loan may be continued as such when any Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, in which case such Loan shall be automatically converted to an Base Rate Loan at the end of the applicable Interest Period with respect thereto. If the Company shall fail to give timely notice of an election to continue a LIBO Rate Loan, or the continuation of LIBO Rate Loans is not permitted hereunder, such LIBO Rate Loans shall be automatically converted to Base Rate Loans at the end of the applicable Interest Period with respect thereto.

# ARTICLE III TAXES; PAYMENTS AND COMPUTATIONS, FEES.

## Section 3.1 Computation of Interest and Fees.

- (a) Interest payable hereunder with respect to Base Rate Loans based on the Prime Rate shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 365 days (or 366 days, as applicable) for the actual days elapsed. All other fees, interest and all other amounts payable hereunder shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year for the actual days elapsed. The Agent shall as soon as practicable notify the Company and the Banks of each determination of a LIBO Rate on the Business Day of the determination thereof. Any change in the interest rate on a Loan resulting from a change in the Base Rate shall become effective as of the opening of business on the day on which such change in the Base Rate shall become effective. The Agent shall as soon as practicable notify the Company and the Banks of the effective date and the amount of each such change.
- (b) Each determination of an interest rate by the Agent pursuant to any provision of this Agreement shall be conclusive and binding on the Company and the Banks in the absence of manifest error. The Agent shall, at the request of the Company, deliver to the Company a statement showing the computations used by the Agent in determining any interest rate.

# Section 3.2 Pro Rata Treatment and Payments.

(a) Each borrowing of Loans and any reduction of the Commitments shall be made <u>pro rata</u> according to the respective Commitment Percentages of the Banks. Each payment under this Agreement or any Note shall be applied, first, to any fees then due and owing by the Company pursuant to Section 2.8, second, to interest then due and owing in respect of the Notes of the Company and, third, to principal then due and owing hereunder and under the Notes of the Company. Each payment on account of any fees pursuant to Section 2.8 shall be made <u>pro rata</u> in accordance with the respective amounts due and owing (except as to the portion of the Letter of Credit retained by the Issuing Bank and the Issuing Bank Fees). Each payment (other than prepayments) by the Company on account of principal of and interest on the Loans shall be made <u>pro rata</u> according to the respective amounts due and owing in accordance with Section 2.10. Prepayments made pursuant to Section 3.5 shall be applied in accordance with such section.

Each optional prepayment on account of principal of the Loans shall be applied in accordance with Section 2.10(a) and each mandatory prepayment on account of principal of the Loans shall be applied in accordance with Section 2.10(b). All payments (including prepayments) to be made by the Company on account of principal, interest and fees shall be made without defense, set-off or counterclaim (except as provided in Article IX) and shall be made to the Agent for the account of the Banks at the Agent's office specified in Article XV in Dollars and in immediately available funds not later than 1:00 P.M. (Charlotte, North Carolina time) on the date when due. The Agent shall distribute such payments to the Banks entitled thereto promptly upon receipt in like funds as received. If any payment hereunder (other than payments on the LIBO Rate Loans) becomes due and payable on a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day, and, with respect to payments of principal, interest thereon shall be payable at the then applicable rate during such extension. If any payment on a LIBO Rate Loan becomes due and payable on a day other than a Business Day, the maturity thereof shall be extended to the next succeeding Business Day unless the result of such extension would be to extend such payment into another calendar month, in which event such payment shall be made on the immediately preceding Business Day.

(b) Allocation of Payments After Event of Default. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, after the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, all amounts collected or received by the Agent or any Bank on account of the obligations of the Company or any other amounts outstanding under any of the Loan Documents shall be paid over or delivered as follows:

FIRST, to the payment of all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees) of the Agent in connection with enforcing the rights of the Banks under the Loan Documents;

SECOND, to payment of any fees owed to the Agent;

THIRD, to the payment of all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses (including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees) of each of the Banks in connection with enforcing its rights under the Loan Documents or otherwise with respect to the obligations owing by the Company hereunder to such Bank;

FOURTH, to the payment of all of the obligations by the Company hereunder consisting of accrued fees and interest and including with respect to any Hedging Agreement between the Company and any Bank, or any Affiliate of a Bank, to the extent such Hedging Agreement is permitted by Section 7.9, any fees, premiums and scheduled periodic payments due under such Hedging Agreement;

FIFTH, to the payment of the outstanding principal amount of the Obligations owing by the Company hereunder and the payment or cash collateralization of the outstanding LOC Obligations and including with respect to any Hedging Agreement between the Company and any Bank or any Affiliate of a Bank, to the extent such Hedging Agreement is permitted by Section 7.9, any interest accrued thereon and any

breakage, termination or other payments due under such Hedging Agreements and any interest accrued thereon;

SIXTH, to all other obligations owing by the Company hereunder and other obligations which shall have become due and payable under the Loan Documents or otherwise and not repaid pursuant to clauses "FIRST" through "FIFTH" above;

SEVENTH, to the payment of the surplus, if any, to whoever may be lawfully entitled to receive such surplus.

In carrying out the foregoing, (i) amounts received shall be applied in the numerical order provided until exhausted prior to application to the next succeeding category; (ii) each of the Banks shall receive an amount equal to its pro rata share (based on the proportion that the then outstanding Extension of Credit and obligations outstanding under the Hedging Agreements (if any) permitted by Section 7.9 held by such Bank (and its Affiliates, in the case of Hedging Agreement obligations) bears to the aggregate then outstanding Extensions of Credit and obligations outstanding under the Hedging Agreements (if any) permitted by Section 7.9) of amounts available to be applied pursuant to clauses "THIRD", "FOURTH", "FIFTH" and "SIXTH"; and (iii) to the extent that any amounts available for distribution pursuant to clause "FIFTH" above are attributable to the issued but undrawn amount of outstanding Letters of Credit, such amounts shall be held by the Agent in a cash collateral account and applied (A) first, to reimburse the Issuing Bank from time to time for any drawings under such Letters of Credit and (B) then, following the expiration of all Letters of Credit, to all other obligations of the types described in clauses "FIFTH" and "SIXTH" above in the manner provided in this Section 3.2(b).

## Section 3.3 Non-Receipt of Funds by the Agent.

(a) Unless the Agent shall have been notified in writing by a Bank prior to the date a Loan is to be made by such Bank (which notice shall be effective upon receipt) that such Bank does not intend to make the proceeds of such Loan available to the Agent, the Agent may assume that such Bank has made such proceeds available to the Agent on such date, and the Agent may in reliance upon such assumption (but shall not be required to) make available to the Company a corresponding amount. If such corresponding amount is not in fact made available to the Agent, the Agent shall be able to recover such corresponding amount from such Bank. If such Bank does not pay such corresponding amount forthwith upon the Agent's demand therefor, the Agent will promptly notify the Company, and the Company shall, without in any way waiving any rights it may have against such defaulting Bank as a result of not making such amounts available to the Agent, pay such corresponding amount to the Agent within two (2) Business Days. The Agent shall also be entitled to recover from the Bank or the Company, as the case may be, interest on such corresponding amount in respect of each day from the date such corresponding amount was made available by the Agent to the Company to the date such corresponding amount is recovered by the Agent at a per annum rate equal to (i) from the Company at the applicable rate for the applicable borrowing pursuant to the Notice of Borrowing and (ii) from a Bank at the Federal Funds Effective Rate.

- (b) Unless the Agent shall have been notified in writing by the Company, prior to the date on which any payment is due from it hereunder (which notice shall be effective upon receipt) that the Company does not intend to make such payment, the Agent may assume that such Company has made such payment when due, and the Agent may in reliance upon such assumption (but shall not be required to) make available to each Bank on such payment date an amount equal to the portion of such assumed payment to which such Bank is entitled hereunder, and if the Company has not in fact made such payment to the Agent, such Bank shall, on demand, repay to the Agent the amount made available to such Bank. If such amount is repaid to the Agent on a date after the date such amount was made available to such Bank shall pay to the Agent on demand interest on such amount in respect of each day from the date such amount was made available by the Agent to such Bank to the date such amount is recovered by the Agent at a per annum rate equal to the Federal Funds Effective Rate.
- (c) A certificate of the Agent submitted to the Company or any Bank with respect to any amount owing under this Section 3.3 shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest error.

# Section 3.4 Inability to Determine Interest Rate.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if (i) the Agent shall reasonably determine (which determination shall be conclusive and binding absent manifest error) that, by reason of circumstances affecting the relevant market, reasonable and adequate means do not exist for ascertaining LIBO for such Interest Period, or (ii) the Majority Banks shall reasonably determine (which determination shall be conclusive and binding absent manifest error) that the LIBO Rate does not adequately and fairly reflect the cost to such Banks of funding LIBO Rate Loans that the Company has requested be outstanding as a LIBO tranche during such Interest Period, the Agent shall forthwith give telephone notice of such determination, confirmed in writing, to the Company, and the Banks at least two Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Period. Unless the Company shall have notified the Agent upon receipt of such telephone notice that it wishes to rescind or modify its request regarding such LIBO Rate Loans, any Loans that were requested to be made as LIBO Rate Loans shall be made as Base Rate Loans and any Loans that were requested into or continued as LIBO Rate Loans shall remain as or be converted into Base Rate Loans. Until any such notice has been withdrawn by the Agent, no further Loans shall be made as, continued as, or converted into, LIBO Rate Loans for the Interest Periods so affected.

#### Section 3.5 Illegality.

Notwithstandingany other provision of this Agreement, if the adoption of or any change in any Requirement of Law or in the interpretation or application thereof by the relevant Governmental Authority to any Bank shall make it unlawful for such Bank or its LIBO Lending Office to make or maintain LIBO Rate Loans as contemplated by this Agreement or to obtain in the interbank eurodollar market through its LIBO Lending Office the funds with which to make such Loans, (a) such Bank shall promptly notify the Agent and the Company thereof, (b) the commitment of such Bank hereunder to make LIBO Rate Loans or continue LIBO Rate Loans as such shall forthwith be suspended until the Agent shall give notice that the condition or situation which gave rise to the suspension shall no longer exist, and (c) such Bank's Loans then

outstanding as LIBO Rate Loans, if any, shall be converted on the last day of the Interest Period for such Loans or within such earlier period as required by law to Base Rate Loans.

#### Section 3.6 Requirements of Law.

- (a) If the adoption of or any change in any Requirement of Law or in the interpretation or application thereof or compliance by any Bank with any request or directive (whether or not having the force of law) from any central bank or other Governmental Authority made subsequent to the date hereof, or in the case of any transferee of a Note, subsequent to the date of transfer:
  - (i) shall subject such Bank to any tax of any kind whatsoever with respect to any Letter of Credit or any application relating thereto, any LIBO Rate Loan made by it, or change the basis of taxation of payments to such Bank in respect thereof (except for changes in the rate of tax on the overall net income of such Bank);
  - (ii) shall impose, modify or hold applicable any reserve, special deposit, compulsory loan or similar requirement against assets held by, deposits or other liabilities in or for the account of, advances, loans or other extensions of credit by, or any other acquisition of funds by, any office of such Bank which is not otherwise included in the determination of the LIBO Rate hereunder; or
    - (iii) shall impose on such Bank any other similar condition;

and the result of any of the foregoing is to increase the cost to such Bank of making or maintaining LIBO Rate Loans or the Letters of Credit or to reduce any amount receivable hereunder or under any Note, then, in any such case, the Company shall promptly pay such Bank, upon its demand (which decrease shall be accompanied by a statement setting forth the basis for such demand and a calculation of the amount thereof in reasonable detail), any additional amounts necessary to compensate such Bank for such additional cost or reduced amount receivable which such Bank reasonably deems to be material as determined by such Bank with respect to its LIBO Rate Loans or Letters of Credit. A certificate as to any additional amounts payable pursuant to this Section (which certificate shall state that such amounts are being demanded of the Company by such Bank on a nondiscriminatory basis, consistent with other requests being made by such Bank in connection with other similar loans held by such Bank) submitted by such Bank, through the Agent, to the Company shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest error. Each Bank agrees to use reasonable efforts (including reasonable efforts to change its Domestic Lending Office or LIBO Lending Office, as the case may be) to avoid or to minimize any amounts which might otherwise be payable pursuant to this paragraph of this Section; provided, however, that such efforts shall not cause the imposition on such Bank of any additional costs or legal or regulatory burdens reasonably deemed by such Bank in its sole discretion to be material.

(b) If any Bank shall have reasonably determined that the adoption of or any change in any Requirement of Law regarding capital adequacy or in the interpretation or application thereof or compliance by such Bank or any corporation controlling such Bank with any request

or directive regarding capital adequacy (whether or not having the force of law) from any central bank or Governmental Authority made subsequent to the date hereof (or in the case of any transferee of a Note, subsequent to the date of transfer) does or shall have the effect of reducing the rate of return on such Bank's or such corporation's capital as a consequence of its obligations hereunder to a level below that which such Bank or such corporation could have achieved but for such adoption, change or compliance (taking into consideration such Bank's or such corporation's policies with respect to capital adequacy) by an amount reasonably deemed by such Bank in its sole discretion to be material, then from time to time, within fifteen (15) days after demand by such Bank (which demand shall be accompanied by a statement setting forth the basis for such demand and a calculation of the amount thereof in reasonable detail), the Company shall pay to such Bank such additional amount as shall be certified by such Bank as being required to compensate it for such reduction (which certificate shall state that such amounts are being demanded of the Company by such Bank on a nondiscriminatory basis, consistent with other requests being made by such Bank in connection with other similar loans held by such Bank). Such a certificate (which shall be accompanied by a statement setting forth the basis for such demand and a calculation of the amount thereof in reasonable detail) as to any additional amounts payable under this Section submitted by a Bank (which certificate shall include a description of the basis for the computation), through the Agent, to the Company shall be conclusive absent manifest error.

(c) The agreements in this Section 3.6 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and payment of the Notes and all other amounts payable hereunder.

#### Section 3.7 Indemnity.

The Company hereby agrees to indemnify each Bank and to hold such Bank harmless from any funding loss (excluding any loss of anticipated profits) or reasonable expense which such Bank may sustain or incur as a consequence of (a) default by the Company in payment of the principal amount of or interest on any Loan by such Bank in accordance with the terms hereof, (b) default by the Company in accepting a borrowing after the Company has given a notice in accordance with the terms hereof, (c) default by the Company in making any prepayment after the Company has given a notice in accordance with the terms hereof, and/or (d) the making by the Company of a prepayment of a Loan, or the conversion thereof, on a day which is not the last day of the Interest Period with respect thereto (except if pursuant to Section 3.3(a)), in each case including any loss or expense incurred by reason of the liquidation or reemployment of deposits or other funds acquired by such Bank or the termination of any other financial arrangement it may have entered into to fund or maintain or support such Bank's portion of the Loan through the conclusion of the applicable Interest Period). A certificate as to any additional amounts payable pursuant to this Section submitted by any Bank, through the Agent, to the Company (which certificate must be delivered to the Agent within thirty (30) days following such default, prepayment or conversion) shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest error. The agreements in this Section shall survive termination of this Agreement and payment of the Notes and all other amounts payable hereunder.

# Section 3.8 Taxes.

- All payments made by the Company hereunder or under any Note will be, except as provided in Section 3.8(b) or required by applicable law, made free and clear of, and without deduction or withholding for, any present or future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, assessments or other charges of whatever nature now or hereafter imposed by any Governmental Authority or by any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein with respect to such payments (but excluding any tax imposed on or measured by the net income or profits of a Bank pursuant to the laws of the United States of America, the jurisdiction in which it is organized or the jurisdiction in which the principal office or applicable lending office of such Bank is located, any jurisdiction in which a Bank books as interest in any Note for tax accounting purposes, any jurisdiction to which the Company is directed to make payments, or, in each preceding case, any subdivision thereof or therein) and all interest, penalties or similar liabilities with respect thereto (all such non-excluded taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, assessments or other charges being referred to collectively as "Taxes"). If any Taxes are required to be deducted or withheld by the Company (i) the sum payable shall be increased as may be necessary so that after making all required deductions (including deductions applicable to additional sums payable under this Section 3.8(a) such Bank receives an amount equal to the sum it would have received had no deductions been made, (ii) the Company shall make such deductions, and (iii) the Company shall pay the full amount deducted to the relevant taxing authority or other authority in accordance with applicable law. The Company will furnish to the Agent as soon as practicable after the date the payment of any Taxes is due pursuant to applicable law certified copies (to the extent reasonably available and required by law) of tax receipts evidencing such payment by the Company. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless each Bank, and reimburse such Bank upon its written request, for the amount of any Taxes that the Company failed to deduct and withhold, and which Taxes are paid by such Bank.
- (b) Each Bank that is not a United States person (as such term is defined in Section 7701(a)(30)(c) of the Code) agrees to deliver to the Company and the Agent on or prior to the Closing Date, or in the case of a Bank that is an assignee or transferee of an interest under this Agreement pursuant to Section 11.13(c) (unless the respective Bank was already a Bank hereunder immediately prior to such assignment or transfer), on the date of such assignment or transfer to such Bank, two accurate and complete original signed copies of Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN or W-8ECI (or successor forms) or other applicable form certifying such Bank's entitlement to a complete exemption from United States withholding tax with respect to payments to be made under this Agreement and under any Note. In addition, each Bank agrees that it will deliver upon the Company's request updated versions of the foregoing, as applicable, whenever the previous certification has become obsolete or inaccurate in any material respect, together with such other forms as may be required in order to confirm or establish the entitlement of such Bank to a continued exemption from or reduction in United States withholding tax with respect to payments under this Agreement and any Note. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Section 3.8(a), but subject to the immediately succeeding sentence, (x) the Company shall be entitled, to the extent it is required to do so by law, to deduct or withhold Taxes imposed by the United States (or any political subdivision or taxing authority thereof or therein) from interest, fees or other amounts payable hereunder for the account of any Bank which is not a United States person (as such term is defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code)

for U.S. Federal income tax purposes to the extent that such Bank has not provided to the Company U.S. Internal Revenue Service Forms that establish a complete exemption from such deduction or withholding and (y) the Company shall not be obligated pursuant to Section 3.8(a) hereof to make any payments to such Bank in respect of Taxes imposed by the United States if (I) such Bank has not provided to the Company the Internal Revenue Service Forms required to be provided to the Company pursuant to this Section 3.8(b) or (II) in the case of a payment, other than interest, to a Bank described in clause (x) above, to the extent that such Forms do not establish a complete exemption from withholding of such Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the preceding sentence, the Company agrees to pay additional amounts and to indemnify each Bank in the manner set forth in Section 3.8(a) (without regard to the identity of the jurisdiction requiring the deduction or withholding) in respect of any amounts deducted or withheld by it as described in the immediately preceding sentence solely as a result of any changes after the later of the Closing Date, the date on which such Bank acquires its respective interest in a Note or the date on which such Bank designates a new applicable lending office or principal office, in any applicable law, treaty, governmental rule or regulation governing the deduction or withholding of Taxes which precludes the affected Bank from providing to the Company U.S. I.R.S. forms establishing exemption therefrom.

- (c) Each Bank agrees to use reasonable efforts (including reasonable efforts to change its Domestic Lending Office or LIBO Lending Office, as the case may be) to avoid or to minimize any amounts which might otherwise be payable pursuant to this Section; provided, however, that such efforts shall not cause the imposition on such Bank of any additional costs or legal or regulatory burdens reasonably deemed by such Bank in its sole discretion to be material.
- (d) If the Company pays any additional amount pursuant to this Section 3.8 with respect to a Bank, such Bank shall use reasonable efforts to obtain a refund of tax or credit against its tax liabilities on account of such payment; provided that such Bank shall have no obligation to use such reasonable efforts if it believes in good faith that claiming a refund or credit would cause adverse tax consequences to it. In the event that such Bank receives such a refund or credit, such Bank shall pay to the Company an amount that such Bank reasonably determines is equal to the net tax benefit obtained by such Bank as a result of such payment by the Company. In the event that no refund or credit is obtained with respect to the Company's payments to such Bank pursuant to this Section 3.8, then such Bank shall upon request provide a certification that such Bank has not received a refund or credit for such payments. Nothing contained in this Section 3.8 shall require a Bank to disclose or detail the basis of its calculation of the amount of any tax benefit or any other amount or the basis of its determination referred to in the proviso to the first sentence of this Section 3.8(d) to the Company or any other party.
- (e) The agreements in this Section 3.8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the payment of the Notes and all other amounts payable hereunder.

## Section 3.9 Indemnification; Nature of Issuing Bank's Duties.

(a) In addition to its other obligations under Section 2.7, the Company hereby agrees to protect, indemnify, pay and save the Issuing Bank harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, damages, losses, costs, charges and expenses (including reasonable

attorneys' fees) that the Issuing Bank may incur or be subject to as a consequence, direct or indirect, of (i) the issuance of any Letter of Credit or (ii) the failure of the Issuing Bank to honor a drawing under a Letter of Credit as a result of any act or omission, whether rightful or wrongful, of any present or future de jure or de facto government or governmental authority (all such acts or omissions, herein called "Government Acts").

- (b) Subject to Section 3.9(e), as between the Company and the Issuing Bank, the Company shall assume all risks of the acts, omissions or misuse of any Letter of Credit by the beneficiary thereof. The Issuing Bank shall not be responsible for: (i) the form, validity, sufficiency, accuracy, genuineness or legal effect of any document submitted by any party in connection with the application for and issuance of any Letter of Credit, even if it should in fact prove to be in any or all respects invalid, insufficient, inaccurate, fraudulent or forged; (ii) the validity or sufficiency of any instrument transferring or assigning or purporting to transfer or assign any Letter of Credit or the rights or benefits thereunder or proceeds thereof, in whole or in part, that may prove to be invalid or ineffective for any reason; (iii) failure of the beneficiary of a Letter of Credit to comply fully with conditions required in order to draw upon a Letter of Credit, so long as the Issuing Bank acts with reasonable care in connection therewith; (iv) errors, omissions, interruptions or delays in transmission or delivery of any messages, by mail, cable, telegraph, telex or otherwise, whether or not they be in cipher; (v) errors in interpretation of technical terms; (vi) any loss or delay in the transmission or otherwise of any document required in order to make a drawing under a Letter of Credit or of the proceeds thereof; and (vii) any consequences arising from causes beyond the control of the Issuing Bank, including, without limitation, any Government Acts. None of the above shall affect, impair, or prevent the vesting of the Issuing Bank's rights or powers hereunder.
- (c) Subject to Section 3.9(e), in furtherance and extension and not in limitation of the specific provisions hereinabove set forth, any action taken or omitted by the Issuing Bank, under or in connection with any Letter of Credit or the related certificates, if taken or omitted in good faith, shall not put such Issuing Bank under any resulting liability to the Company. It is the intention of the parties that this Agreement shall be construed and applied to protect and indemnify the Issuing Bank against any and all risks involved in the issuance of the Letters of Credit, all of which risks are hereby assumed by the Company, including, without limitation, any and all risks of the acts or omissions, whether rightful or wrongful, of any Government Authority. The Issuing Bank shall not, in any way, be liable for any failure by the Issuing Bank or anyone else to pay any drawing under any Letter of Credit as a result of any Government Acts or any other cause beyond the control of the Issuing Bank.
- (d) Nothing in this Section 3.9 is intended to limit the reimbursement obligation of the Company contained in Section 2.7(d). The obligations of the Company under this Section 3.9 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. No act or omissions of any current or prior beneficiary of a Letter of Credit shall in any way affect or impair the rights of the Issuing Bank to enforce any right, power or benefit under this Agreement.
- (e) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 3.9, the Company shall have no obligation to indemnify any Issuing Bank in respect of any liability incurred by such Issuing Bank arising out of the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the

Issuing Bank (including action not taken by an Issuing Bank), as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or a final arbitration ruling.

# ARTICLE IV REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIS

The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Banks and the Agent as follows:

#### Section 4.1 Corporate Existence.

- (a) The Company (i) is a real estate investment trust duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Maryland, (ii) has adequate power and authority and full legal right to own or to hold under lease its properties and to carry on the business in which it is presently engaged; and (iii) is qualified, licensed, admitted or approved to do business as a foreign business entity in each jurisdiction wherein the character of the properties owned or held under lease by it, or the nature of the business conducted by it, makes such qualification necessary, except where such failure to qualify could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
- (b) The Company has adequate power and authority and has full legal right to enter into each of the Loan Documents to which it is or is to become a party, to perform, observe and comply with all of its agreements and obligations under each of such documents, and to make all of the borrowings contemplated by this Agreement.

# Section 4.2 Subsidiaries.

The Company has no Subsidiaries other than those Subsidiaries listed on <u>Schedule 4.2(a)</u> and such other Subsidiaries established by the Company from time to time in accordance with Section 7.33. The corporate and capital structure of the Company is set forth on <u>Schedule</u> 4.2(b).

## Section 4.3 Authority, Etc.

The execution and delivery by the Company of each of the Loan Documents to which it is or is to become a party, the performance by the Company of all of its agreements and obligations under each of such documents and the making by the Company of all of the borrowings contemplated by this Agreement as and when such borrowings are made, have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Company and its shareholders and do not (i) contravene any provision of its charter or by-laws, (ii) conflict with, or result in a breach of any material term, condition or provision of, or constitute a default under or result in the creation of any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or other encumbrance upon any of its property under, any agreement, trust deed, indenture, mortgage or other instrument to which it is or may become a party or by which it or any of its property is or may become bound or affected, (iii) violate or contravene any provision of any law, regulation, order or judgment of any court or governmental or regulatory, bureau, agency or official except where such violation or contravention could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, (iv) require

any waivers, consents or approvals by any of the creditors of the Company, (v) require any consents or approvals by any shareholders of the Company (except such as will be duly obtained on or prior to the Closing Date and will be in full force and effect on and as of the Closing Date), or (vi) require any approval, consent, order, authorization or license by, or giving notice to, or taking any other action with respect to, any governmental or regulatory authority or agency under any provision of any applicable law, except those actions which have been taken or will be taken prior to the Closing Date or where the failure to do so could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

## Section 4.4 Binding Effect Of Documents, Etc.

The Company has duly executed and delivered each of the Loan Documents to which it is a party and each of such documents is in full force and effect. The agreements and obligations of the Company contained in each of the Loan Documents to which it is a party constitute its legal, valid and binding obligations enforceable against it in accordance with their respective terms except as enforceability is limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws relating to or affecting generally the enforcement of creditors' rights and except to the extent that the availability of the remedy of specific performance or injunctive relief is subject to the discretion of the court before which any proceeding therefor may be brought.

# Section 4.5 No Events Of Default, Etc.

No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in default under or with respect to any of its Contractual Obligations in any respect which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. No event has occurred and is continuing, and no condition exists within the knowledge of the Company which would, with notice or the lapse of time, or both, constitute an Event of Default.

# Section 4.6 Title To Properties; Leases.

Except as indicated on <u>Schedule 4.6</u> hereto, the Company and its Subsidiaries own all of the assets reflected in the balance sheet of the Company as at December 31, 2002, or acquired since that date (except property and assets sold or otherwise disposed of in the ordinary course of business since that date), subject to no mortgages, leases, liens or other encumbrances except those permitted by Section 7.11 hereof.

## Section 4.7 Financial Statements.

The Company has delivered to the Agent and the Banks (a) the balance sheets and related statements of income and of cash flows of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2000, December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2002, audited by Arthur Andersen & Co. for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2000 and December 31, 2001 and KPMG for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, (b) a company-prepared unaudited balance sheet and related statement of income for the three months ending March 31, 2003, (c) a pro form a balance sheet as of April 30, 2003 reflecting the closing of the transactions contemplated hereby, (d) balance sheets and related statements of income for each of the Company's Health

Care Facilities which is leased to UHS, in each case for the year ended December 31, 2002 and (e) the three-year projections of the Company which have been prepared in good faith based upon reasonable assumptions. The financial statements referred to in clauses(a) and (b) above are complete and correct in all material respects and present fairly the financial condition of the Company and its Subsidiaries as of such dates. The financial statements referred to in clauses (a) and (b) above, including the related schedules and notes thereto, have been prepared in accordance with GAAP applied consistently throughout the periods involved (except as disclosed therein).

## Section 4.8 No Material Changes, Full Disclosure, Etc.

Since December 31, 2002, there has been no development or event which has had or could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. No representation or warranty made by the Company in this Agreement, the other Loan Documents or in any agreement instrument, document, certificate, statement or letter furnished to the Banks or the Agent by or on behalf of the Company in connection with any of the transactions contemplated by any of the Loan Documents contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained therein not misleading in light of the circumstances in which they are made. Except as disclosed in writing to the Banks and the Agent, there is no fact known to the Company or its Subsidiaries which, in the Company's reasonable belief, has had or could be reasonably expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

## Section 4.9 Permits; Patents; Copyrights.

The Company and is Subsidiaries possess all franchises, patents, copyrights, trademarks, tradenames, licenses and permits and rights in respect of the foregoing, adequate for the conduct of their respective businesses substantially as now conducted without known conflict with any rights of others.

# Section 4.10 Litigation.

There are no actions, suits, proceedings or investigations of any kind pending or threatened against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or against any of their properties or revenues before any court, tribunal or administrative agency or board which, if adversely determined, could be reasonably expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

# Section 4.11 Compliance With Other Instruments, Laws, Etc.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in violation of any provision of its declaration of trust (or corporate charter or similar document) or by-laws or any agreement or instrument by which it or any of its properties may be bound or any decree, order, judgment, or, to the knowledge of the Company's officers, any statute, license, rule or regulation, including without limitation, the provisions of the Code and related regulations governing real estate investment trusts, ERISA and environmental laws, in a manner which could result in the imposition of substantial penalties or could be reasonably expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

## Section 4.12 Tax Status.

The Company and its Subsidiaries have made or filed all federal and state income and, all other material tax returns, reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject; and has paid all taxes and other governmental assessments and charges shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and declarations, except those being contested in good faith; and has set aside on its books provisions reasonably adequate for the payment of all taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations apply. There are no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the officers of the Company know of no basis for any such claim.

#### Section 4.13 Holding Company And Investment Company Acts.

Neither the Compan nor any of its Subsidiaries is a "holding company", or a "subsidiary company" of a "holding company", or an "affiliate" of a "holding company", as such terms are defined in the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935; nor is it an "investment company", or an "affiliated company" or a "principal underwriter" of an "investment company", as such terms are defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to regulation under the Public Utility Holdings Company Act of 1935, as amended, the Federal Power Act, the Interstate Commerce Act, or any federal or state statute or regulation limiting its ability to incur the Indebtedness hereunder.

## Section 4.14 Absence Of Financing Statements, Etc.

Except as indicated on <u>Schedule 7.11(e)</u> hereto, there is no financing statement, security agreement, chattel mortgage, real estate mortgage or other document executed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries filed or recorded with any filing records, registry, or other public office of any jurisdiction, which purports to cover, affect or give notice of any present or possible future lien on, or security interest in, any assets or property of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or rights thereunder.

## Section 4.15 Certain Transactions.

Except for arm's length transactions pursuant to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries makes payments in the ordinary course of business upon terms no less favorable than the Company or such Subsidiary could obtain from third parties, none of the officers, directors, or employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is presently a party to any transaction with the Company or any of its Subsidiaries having a value in excess of \$250,000 (other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by, providing for rental of real or personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the knowledge of the Company, any corporation, partnership, trust or other entity in which any officer, director, or any such employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner.

## Section 4.16 Pension Plans.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries maintains nor contributes to any Pension Plan.

## Section 4.17 Margin Regulations.

No part of the proceeds of any Loan hereunder will be used directly or indirectly for any purpose which violates, or which would be inconsistent with, the provisions of Regulation T, U or X of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System as now and from time to time hereafter in effect. The Company does not own "margin stock" except as identified in the financial statements of the Company delivered to Agent pursuant to Section 7.3 and the aggregate value of all "margin stock" owned by the Company does not exceed 25% of the value of its assets.

## Section 4.18 Environmental Matters.

- (a) To the best knowledge of the Company, the facilities and properties owned, leased or operated by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Properties") do not contain any Materials of Environmental Concern in amounts or concentrations which (i) constitute a violation of, or (ii) could reasonably be expected to give rise to liability under, any Environmental Law except to the extent such violation or liability could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
- (b) To the best knowledge of the Company, (i) the Properties and all operations of the Company at the Properties are in compliance, and have in the last five years been in compliance, in all material respects with all applicable Environmental Laws, and (ii) there is no contamination at, under or about the Properties or violation of any Environmental Laws with respect to the Properties or the business operated by the Company (the "Business") except to the extent such noncompliance or violation could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
- (c) Except as set forth on <u>Schedule 4.18</u>, the Company has not received any written or actual notice of violation, alleged violation, non-compliance, liability or potential liability regarding environmental matters or compliance with Environmental Laws with regard to any of the Properties or the Business, nor does the Company have knowledge or reason to believe that any such notice will be received or is being threatened.
- (d) To the best knowledge of the Company, Materials of Environmental Concern have not been transported or disposed of from the Properties in violation of, or in a manner or to a location which could reasonably be expected to give rise to material liability under any Environmental Law, nor have any Materials of Environmental Concern been generated, treated, stored or disposed of at, on or under any of the Properties in violation of, or in a manner that could reasonably be expected to give rise to material liability under, any applicable Environmental Law.

- (e) No judicial proceeding or governmental or administrative action is pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, under any Environmental Law to which the Company is or will be named as a party with respect to the Properties or the Business, nor are there any consent decrees or other decrees, consent orders, administrative orders or other orders, or other administrative or judicial requirements outstanding under any Environmental Law with respect to the Properties or the Business.
- (f) To the best knowledge of the Company, there has been no release or threat of release of Materials of Environmental Concern at or from the Properties, or arising from or related to the operations of the Company in connection with the Properties or otherwise in connection with the Business, in violation of or in amounts or in a manner that could reasonably be expected to give rise to material liability under Environmental Laws.

#### Section 4.19 Use of Proceeds

The proceeds of the Loans and Letters of Credit shall be used solely by the Company as follows:

- (a) with respect to the Loans, (i) to refinance certain existing indebtedness of the Company, (ii) to pay any fees and expenses, (iii) to provide for the working capital and general corporate requirements of the Company and its Subsidiaries (including to make Investments permitted by Section 7.25(e)), (iv) to provide mortgage and construction financing permitted by Sections 7.26 and 7.27, (v) to make Distributions permitted by Section 7.24, and (vi) for other general corporate purposes.; and
- (b) the Letters of Credit shall be used only for or in connection with appeal bonds, reimbursement obligations arising in connection with surety and reclamation bonds, reinsurance, domestic or international trade transactions and obligations not otherwise aforementioned relating to transactions entered into by the applicable account party in the ordinary course of business.

#### Section 4.20 Indebtedness.

Except as otherwise permitted under Sections 7.9, the Company and its Subsidiaries have no Indebtedness.

# Section 4.21 Solvency.

The fair saleable value of the assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries, measured on a going concern basis, exceeds all probable liabilities, including those to be incurred pursuant to this Agreement. The Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, do not (a) have unreasonably small capital in relation to the business in which it is or proposes to be engaged or (b) have incurred, or believes that it will incur after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they become due.

## Section 4.22 Investments.

All Investments of the Company and its Subsidiaries are Investments permitted under Section 7.26.

#### Section 4.23 <u>Labor Matters</u>.

There are no collective bargaining agreements or multiemployer plans covering the employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries as of the Closing Date and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries (i) has suffered any strikes, walkouts, work stoppages or other material labor difficulty within the last five years, or (ii) has knowledge of any potential or pending strike, walkout or work stoppage. No unfair labor practice complaint is pending against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or, to the best knowledge of the Company, before any Governmental Authority.

## Section 4.24 Accuacy and Completeness of Information.

All factual information (which does not include projections) heretofore, contemporaneously or hereafter furnished by or on behalf of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or the Agent or any Bank for purposes of or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document, or any transaction contemplated hereby or thereby, is or will be true and accurate in all material respects and not incomplete by omitting to state any material fact necessary to make such information not misleading. There is no fact now known to the Company which has, or could reasonably be expected to have, a Material Adverse Effect which fact has not been set forth herein, in the financial statements of the Company furnished to the Agent and/or the Banks, or in any certificate, opinion or other written statement made or furnished by the Company to the Agent and/or the Banks.

#### Section 4.25 Material Contracts.

<u>Schedule 4.25</u> sets forth a true and correct and complete list of all Material Contracts currently in effect. All of the Material Contracts are in full force and effect and no material defaults currently exist thereunder.

# Section 4.26 Insurance.

The present insurance coverage of the Company and its Subsidiaries and of the lessees of each Health Care Facility is outlined as to carrier, policy number, expiration date, type and amount on <u>Schedule 4.26</u> and such insurance coverage complies with the requirements set forth in Section 7.18.

## ARTICLE V EFFECTIVE DATE

- **Section 5.1** Conditions Precedent to Closing. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date on which all of the conditions set forth below shall have been satisfied or waived in writing by the Agent and each of the Banks:
  - (a) Execution of Agreement. Each Bank, the Agent and the Company shall have executed and delivered this Agreement.
  - (b) <u>Corporate Documents</u>. The Agents shall have received from the Company:
  - (i) a certificate of recent date of the Secretary of State of Maryland as to the good standing of the Company and a certificate of recent date of the Secretary of State of each foreign jurisdiction in which the company is qualified as a foreign corporation, unless the failure to be so qualified could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;
  - (ii) a certificate from the President, Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer of the Company certifying that the representations and warranties of the Company set forth herein are true and correct as of the date hereof;
  - (iii) a certificate from the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Company certifying as to the declaration of trust and bylaws of the Company and the resolutions of the Board of Directors of the Company authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement;
  - (iv) an incumbency certificate from the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Company certifying to the signatures and status of the officers signing this Agreement;
  - (v) Notes, each duly executed by the Company and dated the Closing Date, equal in principal amount to the respective amounts of the Commitments; and
  - (vi) an opinion of the general counsel for the Company, substantially in the form of Exhibit 5.1(b)(vi) hereto and otherwise satisfactory to the Agent and the Banks.
  - (c) <u>Arranger Fee</u>. The Company shall have paid to the Wachovia Securities, Inc., all structuring and arrangement fees due and payable to such Arranger.
  - (d) Fees. The Company shall have paid to the Banks and the Agent all fees due and payable pursuant to the Fee Letter and Section 2.8 and any other fees required to be paid prior to or on the Closing Date in connection with the execution and delivery of

this Agreement, together with all legal fees and expenses incurred by the Agent in connection with this Agreement.

- (e) <u>Proceedings And Documents</u>. All corporate, governmental and other proceedings in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Loan Documents and all instruments and documents incidental thereto shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Agent and the Agent shall have received (with copies for each Bank) all such counterpart originals or certified or other copies of all such instruments and documents as the Agent shall have reasonably requested.
- (f) <u>Consents</u>. The Company shall have provided to the Agent evidence satisfactory to the Agent that all governmental, shareholder and third party consents and approvals necessary in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby have been obtained and remain in effect.
- (g) <u>Corporate Structure and Other Matters</u>. The corporate, capital and ownership structure of the Company and its Subsidiaries shall be as described on Schedule 4.2 and shall otherwise be satisfactory to the Agent and the Banks.
- (h) <u>No Material Adverse Change</u>. No material adverse change shall have occurred in the business, properties, prospects, operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
- (i) <u>No Material Litigation</u>. There shall be no material pending or threatened litigation, bankruptcy or insolvency, injunction, order or claim with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
- (j) Repayment of Existing Indebtedness. All of the existing indebtedness for borrowed money of the Company and its Subsidiaries shall be repaid in full and all liens relating thereto extinguished on or prior to the Closing Date other than Non-Recourse Debt and the Indebtedness set forth on Schedule 7.9.
- (k) <u>Due Diligence</u>. The Agent and Arranger shall have completed in form and scope satisfactory thereto their business, legal, financial and environmental due diligence on the Company and its Subsidiaries (including due diligence related to management, strategy, material customers and contracts) and shall be satisfied with the corporate and capital structure of the Company and its Subsidiaries in all material aspects.
- (I) <u>Financial Statements</u>. All financial statements referred to in Section 4.7 shall have been received by the Agent and shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the Agent and the Banks.
- (m) <u>Insurance</u>. The Agent shall have received a report from an insurance appraiser regarding the insurance status and coverage of the Company and its Subsidiaries in form, scope and substance satisfactory to the Agent.

- (n) <u>Solvency</u>. The Agent shall have received a certificate from the Company executed by the Chief Financial Officer as to the financial condition, solvency and related matters of the Company, in each case after giving effect to the initial borrowings under the Loan Documents, in substantially the form of Exhibit 5.1(n).
- (o) <u>Maximum Debt to Total Capital</u>. The Agent shall have received evidence from the Company that demonstrates that the ratio of Debt to Total Capital as of the Closing Debt after giving effect to the Loans on a pro forma basis does not exceed .55 to 1.0.
- (p) <u>Account Designation Letter</u>. The Agent shall have received the executed Account Designation Letter in the form of <u>Exhibit 1.1-1</u> hereto.
- (q) <u>Compliance with Laws</u>. The financings and other transactions contemplated hereby shall be in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations (including all applicable securities and banking laws, rules and regulations).
- (r) <u>Bankruptcy</u>. There shall be no bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings pending or threatened with respect to the Company or any of the Subsidiaries.
- (s) Officer's Certificates. The Agent shall have received a certificate executed by a the President, Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer of the Company as of the Closing Date stating that (i) no action, suit, investigation or proceeding is pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened in any court or before any arbitrator or governmental instrumentality that purports to affect the Company or any transaction contemplated by the Loan Documents, if such action, suit, investigation or proceeding could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect and (ii) immediately after giving effect to this Agreement (including the initial Loans made and Letters of Credit issued hereunder), the other Loan Documents and all the transactions contemplated herein and therein to occur on such date, (A) no Default or Event of Default exists, (B) all representations and warranties contained herein and in the other Loan Documents are true and correct in all material respects, and (C) the Company is in compliance with each of the financial covenants set forth in Section 7.5 7.9 on a pro forma basis, and demonstrating compliance with such financial covenants.
- (t) <u>Additional Matters</u>. All other documents and legal matters in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Agent and its counsel.

# ARTICLE VI CONDITIONS TO LOANS

# Section 6.1 Conditions To Loans.

The obligation of the Banks to make any Extension of Credit hereunder is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent:

- (a) <u>Legality Of Transactions</u>. It shall not be unlawful (a) for any Bank to perform any of its agreements or obligations under any of the Loan Documents to which such Bank is a party on the Drawdown Date of such Loan or (b) for the Company to perform any of its material agreements or obligations under any of the Loan Documents to which the Company is a party on such date
- (b) Representations And Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties made by or on behalf of the Company to the Banks in this Agreement, any other Loan Document or which are contained in any certificate furnished at any time under or in connection herewith or incorporated by reference herein or therein shall be true and correct in all material respects when made and shall, for all purposes of this Agreement, be deemed to be repeated on and as of the Company's Notice of Borrowing for such Loan and on and as of the Drawdown Date of such Loans and shall be true and correct in all material aspects on and as of each of such dates (except for those which express by relate to an earlier date, which shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date made.
- (c) Performance, Absence Of Default, Etc. The Company shall have duly and properly performed, complied with and observed in all material respects each of its covenants, agreements and obligations contained in Section 7 hereof, and shall have duly and properly performed, complied with and observed in all material respects its covenants, agreements, and obligations in all other articles of this Agreement and any of the other Loan Documents to which it is a party or by which it is bound on the Drawdown Date for such Loan and no Default or an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing on such date after giving effect to the borrowing to be made on the Drawdown Date unless such Default or Event of Default shall have been waived in accordance with this Agreement.
- (d) <u>Material Adverse Change</u>. There shall have been no material adverse change in the financial condition, assets, nature of the assets or operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole since the date of the most recent annual audited financial statements of the Company delivered pursuant to Section 7.3(a).
  - (e) Notice Of Borrowing. The Company shall provide the Agent and the Banks with a Notice of Borrowing.
- (f) <u>Compliance with Commitments</u>. Immediately after giving effect to the making of any such Extension of Credit (and the application of the proceeds thereof),

- (i) the sum of outstanding Loans <u>plus</u> outstanding LOC Obligations shall not exceed the aggregate Revolving Committed Amount of all of the Banks, and (ii) the outstanding LOC Obligations shall not exceed the LOC Committed Amount.
- (g) <u>Additional Conditions to Extensions of Credit</u>. If such Extension of Credit is made pursuant to Article II, all conditions set forth in such Article shall have been satisfied.

# ARTICLE VII COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY

The Company covenants and agrees that, so long as any portion of any Loan or Note or Letter of Credit is outstanding or the Banks have any obligation to make any Loan or issue any Letter of Credit hereunder, unless the Banks otherwise agree, in writing:

# Section 7.1 Punctual Payment.

The Company will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid the principal and interest on the Loans, the Commitment Fees, fees associated with the closing of this Agreement, any other fees payable in connection herewith and any other amounts payable hereunder, all in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Notes, and the LOC Documents.

# Section 7.2 Legal Existence, Etc.

The Company will maintain its legal existence as a real estate investment trust and qualify as such under the Code and will maintain its good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of organization, maintain its qualification to do business in each state in which the failure to do so could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, and maintain all of its rights and franchises reasonably necessary to the conduct of its business. The Company will furnish to the Agent and each Bank copies of all amendments to its declaration of trust, bylaws or other organizational documents promptly upon their adoption by the Company or its shareholders. The Company and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole will continue to engage in business of the same general type as now conducted by it on the Closing Date.

# Section 7.3 Financial Statements, Etc.

The Company will deliver to the Agent and each Bank:

(a) <u>Annual Financial Statements</u>. Within 90 days after the close of each fiscal year of the Company, a copy of the consolidated and consolidating balance sheet of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries as of the end of such fiscal year and the related statements of income and retained earnings and of cash flows of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for such year, including the notes thereto and audited, except with respect to the consolidating statements, by KPMG, in each case setting forth in comparative form consolidated and

consolidating figures for the preceding fiscal year, reported on without a "going concern" or like qualification or exception, or qualification indicating that the scope of the audit was inadequate to permit such independent certified public accountants to certify such financial statements without qualification and accompanied by a report and a certificate of KPMG or other firm of independent certified public accountants selected by the Company and acceptable to the Agent or other firm of independent certified public accountants selected by the Company and acceptable to the Agent reporting on such financial statements stating that in making the examination necessary therefor no knowledge was obtained of any Default or Event of Default, except as specified in such certificate;

- (b) Quarterly Financial Statements. Within 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter of the Company, other than the final quarter in a fiscal year, (i) unaudited company-prepared consolidated and consolidating balance sheet of the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries, as of the end of such period and related statements company prepared consolidated and consolidating statements of income and retained earnings and of cash flows for the Company and its Consolidated Subsidiaries for such quarterly period and for the portion of the fiscal year ending with such period, in each case, setting forth in comparative form consolidated and consolidating figures for the period or periods in the preceding fiscal year (subject to normal year-end audit adjustments) and including management discussion and analysis of operating results in comparative form;
- (c) Annual Budget Plan. As soon as available, but in any event within sixty (60) days of the end of each fiscal year, a copy of the detailed annual operating budget and cash flows or plan of the Company for the then fiscal year on a quarterly basis, in form and detail reasonably acceptable to the Agent and the Majority Banks, together with a summary of the material assumptions made in the preparation of such annual budget or plan;
- (d) <u>Compliance Certificate</u>. At the delivery of each quarterly and annual financial statement delivered pursuant to clauses (a) and (b) above, a compliance certificate, substantially in the form of <u>Exhibit 7.3(d)</u> hereto, showing compliance by the Company with the covenants set forth in Sections 7.5-7.9 hereof, together with a calculation showing the ratio of Debt to Total Capital as of the end of such quarter;
- (e) Officer's Certificate. At the time of delivery of each quarterly and annual statement, a certificate, executed by the chief executive officer or Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer of the Company, stating that such officer has caused this Agreement to be reviewed and has no knowledge of any Default by the Company during such quarter or at the end of such year or, if such officer has such knowledge, specifying each Default and the nature thereof;
- (f) <u>Management Letters</u>. Promptly upon receipt thereof, copies of all management letters and other material reports which are submitted to the Company by its independent accountants in connection with any annual or interim audit of the Company made by such accountants:
- (g) <u>SEC Reports, Etc.</u> As soon as practicable but, in any event, within ten (10) Business Days after the issuance thereof, copies of such other financial statements and reports

sent by the Company to its shareholders, copies of all press releases, and copies of all regular and periodic reports which the Company may be required to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (including any certifications required under The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) or any similar or corresponding governmental commission, department or agency substituted therefor;

- (h) <u>Prospectus Update</u>. Promptly after the effective date, copies of any new, revised or updated prospectus used by the Company to effect sales of its shares; and
- (i) Other Matters. With reasonable promptness, such other information related to the Company as the Agent or any Bank may reasonably request in writing.

All such financial statements to be complete and correct in all material respects (subject, in the case of interim statements, to normal recurring year-end audit adjustments) and to be prepared in reasonable detail and, in the case of the annual and quarterly financial statements provided in accordance with subsections (a) and (b) above, in accordance with GAAP applied consistently throughout the periods reflected therein and further accompanied by a description of, and an estimation of the effect on the financial statements on account of, a change, if any, in the application of accounting principles as provided in Section 1.3.

# Section 7.4 Health Care Facilities - Financial Statements, Etc.

The Company will use its best efforts to obtain from each operator of a Health Care Facility leased by the Company or on which the Company holds a Mortgage Loan, a consent to deliver to the Agent and each Bank copies of the financial statements, notices and information described in (a), (b) and (d) below. The Company will deliver to the Agent and each Bank:

- (a) upon the later of receipt by the Company or, in the case of quarterly information, 45 days after the close of the quarter, or in the case of annual information, 90 days after the close of the year, copies of any quarterly or annual balance sheets and statements of income of any operator of any Health Care Facility leased by the Company or on which the Company holds a Mortgage Loan and copies of any quarterly or annual balance sheets and statements of income of any Person which is a guarantor of any such lease or loan, including in each case a calculation by the Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer of the Company of the applicable Facility Coverage Ratio;
- (b) promptly upon receipt thereof by the Company, any notice of deficiency with respect to any of its Health Care Facilities from any governmental authority, licensing board or agency, or any notice of any inquiry, proceeding, investigation, or other action with respect to any of its Health Care Facilities, including, without limitation, any notice from any federal, state or local environmental agency or board of potential liability, that could materially affect the financial condition, properties or business of the Company;
- (c) upon request, an appraisal, made at the Company's expense (except as limited hereby) in form and substance satisfactory to the Agent, of any Health Care Facility of the Company (other than those leased to UHS or a UHS Subsidiary) that has a Facility Coverage

Ratio of less than 1.6 to 1.0 for the most recent four fiscal quarters; provided that the Company shall not be required to pay for more than one appraisal of any single Health Care Facility during any period of twenty-four (24) consecutive months; and

(d) with reasonable promptness, such other information related to the operators of such Health Care Facilities as the Agent or any Bank may reasonably request in writing.

# Section 7.5 Tangible Net Worth.

The Company will maintain at all times (but which shall be calculated only for the last day of each fiscal quarter) Tangible Net Worth of not less than \$115,000,000 <u>plus</u> 50% of the net proceeds received by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries from any issuance of equity securities.

# Section 7.6 Ratio Of Debt To Total Capital.

The Company will not permit the ratio of Debt of the Company and its Subsidiaries to Total Capital to exceed .55 to 1.0 as of the last day of each fiscal quarter of the Company.

# Section 7.7 <u>Debt Service Coverage Ratio</u>.

The Company will not permit the Debt Service Coverage Ratio to be less than 1.25 to 1.0 as of the last day of each fiscal quarter of the Company.

# Section 7.8 Debt To Cash Flow Available For Debt Service.

The Company will not permit the ratio of Debt of the Company and its Subsidiaries to Cash Flow Available for Debt Service of the Company and its Subsidiaries (for the four most recently ended fiscal quarters) to be greater than 3.5 to 1.0 as of the last day of each fiscal quarter of the Company.

# Section 7.9 Indebtedness.

The Company will not, nor will it permit any Subsidiary to, incur or permit to exist or remain outstanding any Indebtedness to any Person provided, however, that the Company and its Subsidiaries may incur or permit to exist or remain outstanding:

- (a) Indebtedness of the Company arising under this Agreement or the other Loan Documents;
- (b) Indebtedness in respect of taxes, including withholding and payroll taxes, assessments, governmental charges or levies, and claims for labor, materials and supplies to the extent that payment therefor is not at the time required to be made in accordance with the provisions of Section 7.20:

- (c) Indebtedness incurred in connection with the acquisition after the date hereof of any real or personal property by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries provided that the aggregate principal amount of all such Indebtedness shall not exceed the lesser of (i) 100% of the aggregate cost, to the Company or such Subsidiary of the real or personal property so acquired and (ii) the fair market value of such acquired property, determined on or about the time of such acquisition on the basis of an MAI appraisal or such other valuation method as may from time to time be acceptable to the Majority Banks (it being understood that an MAI appraisal shall be a valuation method which is acceptable to the Majority Banks) and further provided that after giving effect to such Indebtedness the Company would be in compliance with Section 7.9;
- (d) Indebtedness in respect of leases of real and personal property by the Company and its Subsidiaries provided that the aggregate amount due is not greater than \$2,000,000 in any one fiscal year;
  - (e) Non-Recourse Debt;
- (f) Indebtedness and obligations owing under Hedging Agreements entered into to manage existing or anticipated interest rate, exchange rate or commodity price risks and not for speculative purposes;
- (g) Indebtedness outstanding on the date of this Agreement and described on <u>Schedule 7.9</u> of such Agreement (and renewals, refinancings or extensions thereof in a principal amount not in excess of that outstanding as of the date of such renewal, refinancing or extension); and
- (h) Indebtedness incurred after the date hereof which is secured by a mortgage, pledge, security interest or other lien or encumbrance on any of its property provided that (i) the ratio of unsecured Indebtedness of the Company and its Subsidiaries including, without limitation, the Loans hereunder, to the sum of the Facility Cash Flow Available for Debt Service generated by the operation of all the Unencumbered Properties for the four fiscal quarters of the Company then most recently ended shall not exceed 2.5 to 1.0 and (ii) the aggregate amount of all such secured Indebtedness shall not exceed \$20,000,000.

# Section 7.10 Security Interests And Liens; Negative Pledge.

The Company will not, nor will it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, create or permit to exist any mortgage, pledge, security interest or other lien or encumbrance on any of their respective properties except:

(a) liens arising from attachments or similar proceedings, pending litigation, judgments or taxes or assessments in any such event whose validity or amount is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which adequate reserves have been established and are maintained in accordance with GAAP, or taxes and assessments which are not due and delinquent;

- (b) liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics and materialmen and other like liens;
- (c) pledges or deposits made in connection with workmen's compensation, unemployment or other insurance, old age pensions, or other Social Security benefits, and good faith deposits in connection with tenders, contracts or leases to which it is a party or deposits to secure, or in lieu of, surety, penalty or appeal bonds, performance bonds and other similar obligations;
- (d) such minor defects, irregularities, encumbrances, easements, rights of way, and clouds on title as normally exist with respect to similar properties which do not materially impair the property affected thereby for the purpose for which it was acquired;
- (e) liens existing on the date of this Agreement and described on <u>Schedule 7.11(e)</u> of such Agreement and purchase money security interests in or purchase money mortgages on, or mortgages given in connection with the contemporaneous refinancing of, real property acquired after the date hereof to secure purchase money indebtedness of the type incurred in connection with the acquisition or refinancing of such property, which security interests or mortgages cover only the real or personal property so acquired or refinanced and proceeds thereof and reasonable attachments and accessions thereto; and
  - (f) liens permitted by Section 7.9.

# Section 7.11 No Further Negative Pledge.

The Company will not, nor will it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, enter into any commitment or agreement with any other party that limits or impairs the ability of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to grant security interests, liens or mortgages in favor of the Banks, except that this Section 7.11 shall not be deemed to prohibit the granting of any lien permitted by Section 7.9.

# Section 7.12 Guarantees.

The Company will not, nor will it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, guarantee or otherwise in any way become or be responsible for indebtedness or obligations (including working capital maintenance, take-or-pay contracts, etc.) of any other Person, contingently or otherwise, except:

- (a) the endorsement of negotiable instruments of deposit in the normal course of business;
- (b) guarantees by the Company or a Subsidiary issued to secure Indebtedness permitted by Sections 7.9; and

(c) guarantees (other than those described in (a) and (b) of this Section) made in the ordinary course of business which shall not at any time exceed \$2,000,000 in the aggregate.

# Section 7.13 Notice Of Litigation And Judgments.

The Company will give notice to the Agent and each of the Banks in writing, in form and detail satisfactory to the Banks, within ten (10) Business Days of becoming aware of any litigation or proceedings threatened in writing or any pending litigation and proceedings affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or becomes a party involving an uninsured or unindemnified claim of more than \$500,000 against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and stating the nature and status of such litigation or proceedings. The Company will give notice, in writing, in form and detail satisfactory to the Banks, within ten (10) Business Days of any judgment, final or otherwise, against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in an amount in excess of \$500,000.

# Section 7.14 Notice Of Defaults; Material Adverse Effect.

- (a) The Company will give notice to the Agent and each of the Banks immediately upon becoming aware of the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default under this Agreement. If any Person shall give any notice or take any other action in respect of a claimed default (whether or not constituting an Event of Default) under this Agreement or any other note, evidence of Indebtedness, indenture or other obligation to which or with respect to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or obligor, whether as principal or surety, and such claimed default has potential total liability in excess of \$500,000 the Company shall forthwith give written notice thereof to each of the Banks, describing the notice or action and the nature of the claimed default.; and
- (b) The Company will give notice to the Agent and each of the Banks immediately upon becoming aware, but in any event within five (5) Business Days, of the occurrence of any event that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect.

# Section 7.15 Notices With Regard To Health Care Operators.

The Company will give notice to the Agent and each of the Banks, and will provide information to the Agent and each of the Banks, of the types set forth in Sections 7.13 and 7.14 hereof as to each operator of Health Care Facilities owned by the Company or on which the Company holds a mortgage, provided, that such operator consents in writing to the release of such information. The Company will use its best efforts to acquire the written consent of each operator for the release of such information.

# Section 7.16 Books And Records.

The books and records relating to the financial affairs of the Company and its Subsidiaries shall at all times be maintained in accordance with GAAP consistently applied.

# Section 7.17 Maintenance Of Properties.

The Company shall maintain (or cause to be maintained) and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries to maintain (or cause to be maintained) each of its properties in good physical condition and shall make (or cause to be made) all necessary repairs, replacements and renewals thereon.

# Section 7.18 Insurance.

The Company will require that the lessees of its properties maintain at all times with financially sound and reputable insurers insurance with respect to their properties and business and against such casualties and contingencies and in such types and such amounts as shall be in accordance with sound business practices and reasonably satisfactory to the Agent. Without limiting the foregoing, the Company will cause such lessees to (i) keep all of its physical property insured against fire and extended coverage risks in amounts and with deductibles equal to those generally maintained by businesses of similar size engaged in similar activities in similar geographic areas, (ii) maintain all such workers' compensation or similar insurance as may be required by law, and (iii) maintain, in amounts and with deductibles equal to those generally maintained by businesses of similar size engaged in similar activities in similar geographic areas, general public liability insurance against claims for bodily injury, death or property damage occurring on, in or about the properties of the Company and business interruption insurance. In the event that any lessee shall fail to maintain such insurance, the Company will maintain such insurance. The Company will notify the Agent and each Bank of any cancellation of any such insurance. Evidence of all renewals or replacements of such insurance from time to time in force, satisfactory to the Agent shall be delivered to the Agent before the expiration date of the then current insurance.

# Section 7.19 Taxes.

The Company will pay all taxes or other assessments or governmental charges or levies imposed upon it or upon its income or profits or upon its property prior to the time when any penalties or interest (except interest during extensions of time for filing of federal income tax returns not in excess of six months) accrue with respect thereto, as well as all claims for labor, materials or supplies that if unpaid might by law become a lien or charge upon any of its property unless, in any such case, the amount, applicability or validity of such amounts is contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and other appropriate action and an adequate reserve therefor has been established and is maintained in accordance with GAAP. The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, also pay all such taxes, assessments, charges, levies or claims forthwith upon the commencement of proceedings to foreclose any lien that may have attached as security therefor.

# Section 7.20 Compliance With Laws, Contracts, And Licenses.

The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to (i) comply with all laws, including CERCLA and Environmental Laws, rules, regulations, orders, writs, judgments, injunctions, decrees or awards to which it may be subject, the Company's or Subsidiary's

noncompliance with which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, including, without limitation, the provisions of the Code and related regulations governing real estate investment trusts, as the same may be as amended and in effect from time to time and (ii) promptly obtain, maintain, apply for renewal, and not allow to lapse, any authorization, consent, approval, license or order, and accomplish any filing or registration with, any court or judicial, administrative or governmental authority which may be or may become necessary in order that it perform in all material respects all of its obligations under this Agreement or the other Loan Documents and in order that the same may be valid and binding and effective in accordance with their terms and in order that the Banks may be able freely to exercise and enforce any and all of their rights under this Agreement or the other Loan Documents, (iii) comply with the provisions of its charter documents and by-laws and (iv) comply with all agreements and instruments by which it or any of its properties may be bound.

# Section 7.21 Access.

The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, permit any Bank, by its representatives and agents, to inspect any of the properties, including, without limitation, corporate books, computer files and tapes and financial records of the Company and its Subsidiaries to examine and make copies of the books of accounts and other financial records of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and to discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of the Company and its Subsidiaries with, and to be advised as to the same by, its officers at such reasonable times and intervals as such Bank may designate.

# Section 7.22 ERISA Compliance.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries will permit any employee pension benefit plan (as that term is defined in Section 3 of ERISA) maintained by the Company to (x) engage in any "prohibited transaction" as such term is defined in Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, that is likely to result in a material liability for the Company; or (y) incur any "accumulated funding deficiency", as such term is defined in Section 302 of ERISA, whether or not waived; or (z) terminate any such benefit plan in a manner which could result in the imposition of a lien or encumbrance on the assets of the Company pursuant to Section 4068 of ERISA.

# Section 7.23 Reserves.

The Company will, and will cause each of its Subsidiaries to, maintain reserves, appropriate for the Company and its Subsidiaries, for depreciation, taxes and other expenses or liabilities in accordance with GAAP.

# Section 7.24 <u>Distributions</u>.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries will make any Distributions other than (a) Distributions required by the Code and related regulations governing real estate investment trusts, (b) Distributions by a Subsidiary to the Company and (c) Distributions to shareholders in excess of the amounts permitted by clause (a) above provided that no Default or Event of Default

then exists or would result from such payment; <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, in no event may the Company make any Distributions with respect to any fiscal year that exceed ninety-five percent (95%) of the Company's Cash Available for Distributions for such fiscal year unless and to the extent that such Distributions are required to be made by the Code and related regulations governing real estate investment trusts.

### Section 7.25 Investments.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries will make or maintain any Investment, except for Investments which consist of:

- (a) obligations having an original maturity of not greater than three years issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of America;
- (b) certificates of deposit issued by any of the Banks or any other bank organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof and having capital and unimpaired surplus of at least \$50,000,000 or of foreign subsidiaries of such banks;
- (c) commercial paper or finance company paper which is rated not less than BBB or its equivalent by Standard & Poor's Corporation or Moody's Investor Services, Inc.;
  - (d) repurchase agreements secured by any one or more of the Investments permitted by paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) above;
- (e) Direct or indirect Investments in domestic (United States) Health Care Facilities which Investments either (i) existed on December 31, 2002, or (ii) were or are made after such date, provided that no Investment in any one Health Care Facility made after such date shall be made or maintained with respect to any Health Care Facility the acquisition cost of which exceeds the lesser of \$20,000,000 or the fair market value of the acquired property, determined on the basis of an MAI appraisal or such other valuation method as may from time to time be acceptable to the Majority Banks. Any indirect Investment shall be restricted to an Investment made by the Company in a Person engaged exclusively in the business of owning or operating domestic Health Care Facilities and in which the Company has an equity interest of at least 25%.
  - (f) Mortgage Loans permitted by Section 7.26; and
  - (g) Construction Loans permitted by Section 7.27.

# Section 7.26 Mortgage Loans.

The Company will not permit at any time the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Mortgage Loans held by the Company and its Subsidiaries to exceed \$30,000,000 and will not make any Mortgage Loan in an original principal amount in excess of \$20,000,000. In no

event may the Company or any of its Subsidiaries provide any Mortgage Loan to any Person except on a full recourse basis to an owner or operator of a domestic (United States) Health Care Facility and except upon using the Company's best efforts to obtain the agreement and consent of such Person to provide its quarterly and annual balance sheets and income statements to the Company or to the its Subsidiary for delivery to the Agent and each Bank.

# Section 7.27 Construction Loans.

- (a) In the event that any portion of the Loans is to be used by the Company to finance the construction of Health Care Facilities, the Company will monitor such construction to insure that all approvals, consents, waivers, orders, agreements, acknowledgments, authorizations, permits and licenses required under any law, ordinance, code, order, rule or regulation of any governmental authority, or under the terms of any restriction, covenant or easement affecting the construction project, or otherwise necessary, for the ownership and acquisition of the subject properties and the improvements thereon, the construction and equipping of the improvements being constructed on the subject properties, and the use, occupancy and operation of the construction project as a Health Care Facility following completion of construction of the improvements on the subject property, have been obtained, whether from a governmental authority or other Person. Further, the Company will give notice to the Agent and each of the Banks immediately after becoming aware that any construction project will likely not be completed in a timely manner or on budget. The Company shall from time to time deliver such further information and take such further action as may be reasonably requested by the Agent or any Bank to effect the purposes of this Section 7.27.
- (b) The Company will not permit at any time the aggregate outstanding principal amount of Construction Loans to exceed \$15,000,000. In no event may the Company provide any Construction Loans to any Person except on a full recourse basis to an owner or operator of a domestic (United States) Health Care Facility and except upon using the Company's best efforts to obtain the agreement and consent of such Person to provide its quarterly and annual balance sheets and income statements to the Company for delivery to the Agent and each Bank.

# Section 7.28 Environmental Audits.

The Company will not make any Investment, Mortgage Loan or Construction Loan otherwise permitted by Section 7.25(e), 7.26 or 7.27, respectively, unless the Company shall have first received a Phase I environmental audit report with respect to the property involved, which audit shall have been conducted not earlier than twenty-four (24) months prior to the date of the transaction, a copy of such audit shall have been furnished to the Banks, and such audit shall not have reported or uncovered any environmental matters which could have a material adverse effect on such property or on the financial condition, properties or business of the Company.

# Section 7.29 Merger, Consolidation And Disposition Of Assets.

Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, will at any time merge or consolidate with or into any Person or sell or otherwise dispose of any Health Care Facility of the Company

leased to UHS or to a UHS Subsidiary, except (i) that the Company may sell, if after giving effect to such sale no Default or Event of Default exists or would result as a consequence thereof, any Health Care Facility of the Company leased to UHS or to a UHS Subsidiary so long as such Health Care Facilities do not in the aggregate account for more than 5% of the total assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries as determined in accordance with GAAP over the term of this Agreement, (ii) a Subsidiary of the Company may merge with and into any wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Company and (iii) any Subsidiary of the Company may merge with and into the Company so long as the Company is the surviving corporation.

# Section 7.30 Sale And Leaseback.

Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, will enter into any arrangement, directly or indirectly, whereby the Company or a Subsidiary shall sell or transfer any property owned by it and then or thereafter lease such property or lease other property that the Company or such Subsidiary intends to use for substantially the same purpose as the property being sold or transferred.

# Section 7.31 Use Of Proceeds.

After the date of this Agreement the Company will use the proceeds of the Loans (a) to refinance certain existing indebtedness of the Company, (b) to pay any fees and expenses, (c) to provide for the working capital and general corporate requirements of the Company and its Subsidiaries (including to make Investments permitted by Section 7.25(e)), (d) to provide mortgage and construction financing permitted by Sections 7.26 and 7.27, (e) to make Distributions permitted by Section 7.24, and (f) for other general corporate purposes. The Company will not use the proceeds of any Loan, either directly or indirectly, for the purpose, whether immediate, incidental or ultimate, of buying or carrying margin stock within the meaning of Regulation U of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, as amended from time to time.

# Section 7.32 Fiscal Year; Organizational Documents; Material Contracts.

Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, will, upon less than thirty (30) days prior written notice, change its fiscal year or accounting policies except to comply with changes in GAAP. Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, will amend, modify or change its declaration of trust (or corporate charter or other similar document) in any matter materially adverse to the Banks, without the prior written consent of the Majority Banks. Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, will, without the prior written consent of the Agent, amend, modify, cancel or terminate or fail to renew or extend any of the Material Contracts, except in the event that such amendments, modifications, cancellations, terminations or failure to renew could not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

# Section 7.33 Subsidiary Guarantors.

The Company shall (a) promptly, and in any event within 30 days following the Closing Date, cause each of its Subsidiaries (other than 73 Medical Building, L.L.C.) to (i) execute a

guaranty of the Obligations hereunder, such guaranty to be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Agent and (ii) deliver such organizational documents, secretary's certificates and legal opinions in connection therewith as the Agent may reasonably request and (b) promptly upon the formation or acquisition of any additional Subsidiary, and in any event within 30 days of such formation or acquisition, (i) cause such additional Subsidiary to (i) execute a guaranty of the Obligations hereunder, such guaranty to be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Agent and (ii) deliver such organizational documents, secretary's certificates and legal opinions in connection therewith as the Agent may reasonably request.

# Section 7.34 Further Assurances.

The Company shall at any time or from time to time execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may reasonably be requested by the Agent or any Bank, in each case further and more perfectly to effect the purposes of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

# ARTICLE VIII EVENTS OF DEFAULT; ACCELERATION

If any of the following events (an "Event of Default") has occurred and is continuing:

- (a) if the Company shall fail to pay any principal of or interest on the Loans or any other amount payable hereunder or under the LOC Documents when the same shall become due and payable, whether at the stated date of maturity or any accelerated date of maturity or at any other date fixed for payment;
  - (b) if the Company shall fail to comply with any of its covenants contained in Sections 7.1, 7.2, 7.5-7.12, or 7.24-7.32;
- (c) if the Company or any Subsidiary shall fail to perform any term, covenant or agreement contained herein or in any other Loan Document (other than those specified in subsections (a) and (b) above) and the continuance of such failure shall exist for 30 days after written notice of such failure has been given to the Company by the Agent;
- (d) if any representation or warranty of the Company in this Agreement or in any other Loan Document shall prove to have been false in any material respect upon the date when made or deemed to have been made or repeated;
- (e) if the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries shall fail to make any payment due on any obligation for borrowed money (having a total amount outstanding in excess of \$500,000), or shall fail to observe or perform any material term, covenant or agreement contained in any agreement by which it is bound, evidencing or securing such obligation and the effect of such failure could or would have permitted (assuming the giving of appropriate notice if required) the holder or holders thereof or a trustee for such holder or holders or of any obligations issued thereunder to accelerate the maturity thereof;

- (f) if the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries shall be involved in financial difficulties as evidenced:
  - (i) by its admission in writing of its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due;
- (ii) by its commencement of a voluntary case under Title 11 of the United States Code as from time to time in effect, or by its authorizing, by appropriate proceedings of its board of directors or other governing body, the commencement of such a voluntary case;
- (iii) by its filing an answer or other pleading admitting or failing to deny the material allegations of a petition filed against it commencing an involuntary case under Title 11, or seeking, consenting to or acquiescing in the relief therein provided, or by its failing to controvert or challenge in a timely manner the material allegation of any such petition;
- (iv) by the entry of an order for relief against it in any involuntary case commenced under Title 11 which remains undischarged or unstayed for more than sixty (60) days;
- (v) by its seeking relief as a debtor under any applicable law, other than Title 11, of any jurisdiction relating to the liquidation or reorganization of debtors or to the modification or alteration of the rights of creditors, or by its consenting to or acquiescing in such relief;
- (vi) by entry of an order by a court of competent jurisdiction (A) finding it to be bankrupt or insolvent or (B) ordering or approving its liquidation, reorganization or any modification or alteration of the rights of its creditors which remains undischarged or unstayed for more than sixty (60) days;
- (vii) by the entry of an order by a court of competent jurisdiction assuming custody of, or appointing a receiver or other custodian for, all or a substantial part of its property which remains undischarged or unstayed for more than sixty (60) days; or
- (viii) by its making an assignment for the benefit of, or entering into a composition with, its creditors, or appointing or consenting to the appointment of a receiver or other custodian for all or a substantial part of its property;
- (g) if there shall remain in force, undischarged, unsatisfied and unstayed, for more than sixty days, whether or not consecutive, any final judgment against the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries which, with other outstanding final judgments, undischarged, against such Person(s) exceeds \$500,000 in aggregate amount with respect to the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries;

- (h) if UHS of Delaware, Inc., a subsidiary of UHS, shall cease to be the real estate investment trust advisor to the Company and a new advisor satisfactory to each of the Banks has not been appointed, or a group of managers satisfactory to each of the Banks has not been hired, within ninety (90) days of such cessation;
- (i) (i) if any Person or group of Persons (within the meaning of Section 13 or 14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) shall have acquired beneficial ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under said Act) of thirty percent (30%) or more of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company; or, (ii) during any period of twelve consecutive calendar months, individuals who were directors of the Company on the first day of such period shall cease to constitute a majority of the board of directors of the Company;
- (j) if any guarantee by UHS of any lease by the Company to a UHS Subsidiary is disavowed, terminated, or ceases to be in full force and effect, or is waived or amended without the prior written consent of the Majority Banks (other than the termination of a guarantee of such a lease in connection with the sale of a Health Care Facility permitted by Section 7.29);
- (k) any lease by the Company to a UHS Subsidiary is terminated prior to its stated term, or is amended or compliance by the lessee is waived, without the prior written consent of the Majority Banks (other than the termination of a lease of a Health Care Facility in connection with a sale of such Health Care Facility permitted by Section 7.29); or
- (I) if the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries shall fail to make any payment due under any Hedging Agreement or if the Company or any of its Significant Subsidiaries shall fail to observe or perform any material term, covenant or agreement contained in any Hedging Agreement and the effect of such failure could or would have permitted (assuming the giving of appropriate notice if required) the counterparty thereof to terminate such Hedging Agreement and demand payment from the Company or such Significant Subsidiary in excess of \$500,000;

then, and in any such event, unless the same shall be cured or waived, the Agent (i) shall, upon the request of the Majority Banks, or (ii) may, with the consent of the Majority Banks, by notice in writing to the Company, terminate this Agreement and upon such termination the Banks shall have no further obligation to make Loans to the Company or issue Letters of Credit for the account of the Company, and shall declare all Obligations, including, without limitation the Notes, to be, and they shall thereupon forthwith mature and become, immediately due and payable without presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Company; provided, that in the event of any Event of Default described in clauses (f) and (g) hereof, all Obligations shall become immediately due and payable automatically, and all obligations of the Banks to make Loans or issue Letters of Credit shall automatically terminate, without any requirement of notice from the Banks. To the extent that the Obligations accelerated hereunder relate to Letters of Credit, the amount becoming due and payable shall be the aggregate outstanding amount of the Letters of Credit, whether or not any drawings or claims have been presented thereunder. No termination of the credit hereunder shall relieve the Company of any Obligations or any of its existing obligations to any of the

Banks arising under other agreements or instruments. No remedy herein conferred upon the Banks is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy and each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or any other provision of law.

# ARTICLE IX SETOFF; SHARING

Regardless of the adequacy of any collateral, any deposits or other sums credited by or due from the Banks to the Company and any securities or other property of the Company in the possession of the Banks may be applied to or set-off against the payment of Obligations of the Company hereunder, under the Notes and any and all other liabilities, direct, or indirect, absolute or contingent, due or to become due, now existing or hereafter arising, of the Company to the Banks at any time. Each Bank agrees to promptly notify the Company, the Agent and the other Banks after any such set-off and application made by such Bank, provided that the failure to give such notice shall not affect the validity of such set-off and application. Each Bank agrees with the other Banks that if such Bank shall receive from the Company or any other source whatsoever, whether by voluntary payment, exercise of the right of set-off, counterclaim, cross-action or enforcement of any claim evidenced by the Notes or this Agreement, or by proof thereof in bankruptcy, reorganization, liquidation, receivership or similar proceedings or otherwise, and retain and apply to the payment of the amounts owing with respect to the Notes or to any amounts due to such Bank under this Agreement any amount which is in excess of its ratable portion of the payments received by all of the Banks, then such Bank will make such dispositions and arrangements with each other Bank with respect to such excess, either by way of distribution until the amount of such excess has been exhausted, assignment of claims, subrogation or otherwise, as shall result in each such Bank receiving in respect of its Notes and the amounts due such Bank under this Agreement its ratable share of such payments; provided, however, that if all or any part of such excess payment is thereafter recovered from such Bank, such disposition and arrangements shall be rescinded and the amount restored to the extent of such recovery, but without interest.

# ARTICLE X THE AGENT

# Section 10.1 Appointment.

Each Bank hereby irrevocably designates and appoints Wachovia Bank, National Association as the Agent of such Bank under this Agreement, and each such Bank irrevocably authorizes Wachovia Bank, National Association, as the Agent for such Bank, to take such action on its behalf under the provisions of this Agreement and to exercise such powers and perform such duties as are expressly delegated to the Agent by the terms of this Agreement, together with such other powers as are reasonably incidental thereto. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary elsewhere in this Agreement, the Agent shall not have any duties or responsibilities, except those expressly set forth herein, or any fiduciary relationship with any

Bank, and no implied covenants, functions, responsibilities, duties, obligations or liabilities shall be read into this Agreement or otherwise exist against the Agent.

# Section 10.2 Delegation of Duties.

The Agent may execute any of its duties under this Agreement by or through agents or attorneys-in-fact and shall be entitled to advice of counsel concerning all matters pertaining to such duties. The Agent shall not be responsible for the negligence or misconduct of any agents or attorneys-in-fact selected by it with reasonable care. Without limiting the foregoing, the Agent may appoint one of its affiliates as its agent to perform the functions of the Agent hereunder relating to the advancing of funds to the Company and distribution of funds to the Banks and to perform such other related functions of the Agent hereunder as are reasonably incidental to such functions.

# Section 10.3 Exculpatory Provisions.

Neither the Agent nor any of its officers, directors, employees, agents, attorneys-in-fact or affiliates shall be (i) liable for any action lawfully taken or omitted to be taken by it or such Person under or in connection with this Agreement (except for its or such Person's own gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct) or (ii) responsible in any manner to any of the Banks for any recitals, statements, representations or warranties made by the Company or any officer thereof contained in this Agreement or in any certificate, report, statement or other document referred to or provided for in, or received by the Agent under or in connection with, this Agreement or for the value, validity, effectiveness, genuineness, enforceability or sufficiency of any of the Loan Documents or for any failure of the Company to perform its obligations hereunder or thereunder. The Agent shall not be under any obligation to any Bank to ascertain or to inquire as to the observance or performance by the Company of any of the agreements contained in, or conditions of, this Agreement, or to inspect the properties, books or records of the Company.

# Section 10.4 Reliance by Agent.

The Agent shall be entitled to rely, and shall be fully protected in relying, upon any Note, writing, resolution, notice, consent, certificate, affidavit, letter, cablegram, telegram, telecopy, telex or teletype message, statement, order or other document or conversation believed by it in good faith to be genuine and correct and to have been signed, sent or made by the proper Person or Persons and upon advice and statements of legal counsel (including, without limitation, counsel to the Company), independent accountants and other experts selected by the Agent. The Agent may deem and treat the payee of any Note as the owner thereof for all purposes unless (a) a written notice of assignment, negotiation or transfer thereof shall have been filed with the Agent and (b) the Agent shall have received the written agreement of such assignee to be bound hereby as fully and to the same extent as if such assignee were an original Bank party hereto, in each case in form satisfactory to the Agent. The Agent shall be fully justified in failing or refusing to take any action under this Agreement unless it shall first receive such advice or concurrence of the Majority Banks as it deems appropriate or it shall first be indemnified to its satisfaction by the Banks against any and all liability and expense which may be incurred by it

by reason of taking or continuing to take any such action. The Agent shall in all cases be fully protected in acting, or in refraining from acting, under any of the Loan Documents in accordance with a request of the Majority Banks or all of the Banks, as may be required under this Agreement, and such request and any action taken or failure to act pursuant thereto shall be binding upon all the Banks and all future holders of the Notes.

# Section 10.5 Notice of Default.

The Agent shall not be deemed to have knowledge or notice of the occurrence of any Default or Event of Default hereunder unless the Agent has received notice from a Bank or the Company referring to this Agreement, describing such Default or Event of Default and stating that such notice is a "notice of default". In the event that the Agent receives such a notice, the Agent shall give prompt notice thereof to the Banks. The Agent shall take such action with respect to such Default or Event of Default as shall be reasonably directed by the Majority Banks; provided, however, that unless and until the Agent shall have received such directions, the Agent may (but shall not be obligated to) take such action, or refrain from taking such action, with respect to such Default or Event of Default as it shall deem advisable in the best interests of the Banks except to the extent that this Agreement expressly requires that such action be taken, or not taken, only with the consent or upon the authorization of the Majority Banks, or all of the Banks, as the case may be.

# Section 10.6 Non-Reliance on Agent and Other Banks.

Each Bank expressly acknowledges that neither the Agent nor any of its officers, directors, employees, agents, attorneys-in-fact or affiliates has made any representation or warranty to it and that no act by the Agent hereinafter taken, including any review of the affairs of the Company, shall be deemed to constitute any representation or warranty by the Agent to any Bank. Each Bank represents to the Agent that it has, independently and without reliance upon the Agent or any other Bank, and based on such documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own appraisal of and investigation into the business, operations, property, financial and other condition and creditworthiness of the Company and made its own decision to make its Loans hereunder and enter into this Agreement. Each Bank also represents that it will, independently and without reliance upon the Agent or any other Bank, and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit analysis, appraisals and decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement, and to make such investigation as it deems necessary to inform itself as to the business, operations, property, financial and other condition and creditworthiness of the Company. Except for notices, reports and other documents expressly required to be furnished to the Banks by the Agent hereunder, the Agent shall not have any duty or responsibility to provide any Bank with any credit or other information concerning the business, operations, property, condition (financial or otherwise), prospects or creditworthiness of the Company which may come into the possession of the Agent or any of its officers, directors, employees, agents, attorneys-in-fact or affiliates.

# Section 10.7 Indemnification.

The Banks agree to indemnify the Agent in its capacity hereunder (to the extent not reimbursed by the Company and without limiting the obligation of the Company to do so), ratably according to their respective Commitment Percentages in effect on the date on which indemnification is sought under this Section, from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind whatsoever which may at any time (including, without limitation, at any time following the payment of the Notes) be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the Agent in any way relating to or arising out of any Loan Document or any documents contemplated by or referred to herein or therein or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby or any action taken or omitted by the Agent under or in connection with any of the foregoing; provided, however, that no Bank shall be liable for the payment of any portion of such liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements to the extent resulting from the Agent's gross negligence or willful misconduct, as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction. The agreements in this Section 10.7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and payment of the Notes and all other amounts payable hereunder.

# Section 10.8 Agent in Its Individual Capacity.

The Agent and its affiliates may make loans to, accept deposits from and generally engage in any kind of business with the Company as though the Agent were not the Agent hereunder. With respect to its Loans made or renewed by it and any Note issued to it, the Agent shall have the same rights and powers under this Agreement as any Bank and may exercise the same as though it were not the Agent, and the terms "Bank" and "Banks" shall include the Agent in its individual capacity.

# Section 10.9 Successor Agent.

The Agent may resign as Agent upon 30 days' prior notice to the Company and the Banks. If the Agent shall resign as Agent under this Agreement and the Notes, then the Majority Banks shall appoint from among the Banks a successor agent for the Banks, which successor agent shall be approved by the Company, whereupon such successor agent shall succeed to the rights, powers and duties of the Agent, and the term "Agent" shall mean such successor agent effective upon such appointment and approval, and the former Agent's rights, powers and duties as Agent shall be terminated, without any other or further act or deed on the part of such former Agent or any of the parties to this Agreement or any holders of the Notes. After any retiring Agent's resignation as Agent, the provisions of this Section 10.9 shall inure to its benefit as to any actions taken or omitted to be taken by it while it was Agent under this Agreement.

# Section 10.10 Other Agents.

Except as otherwise expressly stated herein, any agent (other than the Agent) listed from time to time on the cover page of this Agreement shall have no obligations, responsibilities or duties under this Agreement or under any other Loan Document other than obligations, responsibilities and duties applicable to all Banks in their capacity as Banks; provided, however,

that such agents and arrangers shall be entitled to the same rights, protections, exculpations and indemnifications granted to the Agent under this Article X in their capacity as an agent or arranger.

# ARTICLE XI MISCELLANEOUS

# Section 11.1 Expenses.

Whether or not the transactions contemplated hereby shall be consummated, the Company will pay (a) the reasonable cost of (i) producing and reproducing this Agreement and other instruments mentioned herein and (ii) any taxes (including any interest and penalties in respect thereto) or filing fees payable by the Agent and the Banks (other than taxes based upon the Agent's or any Bank's net income) on or with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the Company hereby agreeing to indemnify the Agent and the Banks with respect thereto); (b) the reasonable fees, out-of-pocket expenses and disbursements of the Agent and the reasonable fees, expenses and disbursements of the Agent's special counsel incurred in connection with the preparation, administration or interpretation of this Agreement and other instruments mentioned herein, each closing hereunder, amendments, modifications, approvals, consents or waivers hereto or hereunder; (c) all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, which attorneys may be employees of any Bank or the Agent, and reasonable consulting, accounting, appraisal, investment banking and similar professional fees and charges) incurred by the Agent or any Bank in connection with (i) the enforcement of or preservation of the Agent's or any Bank's rights under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents or the administration thereof after the occurrence of a Default or Event of Default and (ii) in connection with any litigation, proceeding or dispute whether arising hereunder or otherwise, in any way related to the Agent's or any Banks' relationship with the Company hereunder or under any predecessor financing arrangement. The covenants of this Section 11.1 shall survive payment or satisfaction of payment of amounts owing with respect to the Notes.

# Section 11.2 Indemnification.

The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Agent and the Banks from and against any and all claims, actions and suits whether groundless or otherwise, and from and against any and all liabilities, losses, damages and expenses of every nature and character arising out of this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents or the transactions contemplated hereby including, without limitation, (a) any actual or proposed use by the Company of the proceeds of any of the Loans, and (b) the Company entering into or performing this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents or in each case including, without limitation, the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel and allocated costs of internal counsel incurred in connection with any litigation or other proceeding, except that the Company shall not be obligated for any liability or loss to the extent arising from the indemnitee's own gross negligence or willful misconduct. In litigation, or the preparation therefor, the Banks and the Agent shall be entitled to select their own counsel and, in addition to the foregoing indemnity, the Company agrees to

pay promptly the reasonable fees and expenses of such counsel. If, and to the extent that the obligations of the Company under this Section 11.2 are unenforceable for any reason, the Company hereby agrees to make the maximum contribution to the payment in satisfaction of such obligations which is permissible under applicable law. The covenants of this Section 11.2 shall survive payment or satisfaction of payment of amounts owing with respect to the Notes.

# Section 11.3 Survival of Covenants.

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, in the Notes or in any Loan Documents or other papers delivered by or on behalf of the Company pursuant hereto shall be deemed to have been relied upon by the Banks and the Agent, notwithstanding any investigation heretofore or hereafter made by any of them, and shall survive the making by the Banks of the Loans as herein contemplated, and shall continue in full force and effect so long as any amount due under this Agreement or the Notes remains outstanding and unpaid or the Banks have any obligation to make any Loans hereunder.

# Section 11.4 Parties in Interest.

All the terms of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto and thereto; provided, that the Company shall not assign or transfer its rights hereunder without the prior written consent of the Banks.

# Section 11.5 Notices.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, all notices and other communications made or required to be given pursuant to this Agreement or the other Loan Documents shall be in writing and shall be delivered in hand, mailed by United States registered or certified first-class mail, postage prepaid, sent by overnight courier or sent by telegraph, telecopy, telefax, or telex and confirmed by delivery via courier or postal service, addressed as follows (or at such other address for notices as is furnished in writing in accordance with this Section):

Address for notices to the Agent:

Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Agent Charlotte Plaza CP-23 201 South College Street Charlotte, NC 28288-0680

Attention: Brandy Coffield, Syndication Agency Services

Telecopier: 704-383-0288 Telephone: 704-383-6882 with a copy to:

Wachovia Securities, Inc.
PA 4152
1339 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, PA 19107
Attention: Jeanette A. Griffin, Credit Management

Telecopier: 267-321-6702 Telephone: 267-321-6615

Address for notices to the Banks are as set forth on Schedule 11.5

Address for notices to the Company:

Cheryl K. Ramagano
Vice President & Treasurer
Universal Health Realty Income Trust
367 South Gulph Road
King of Prussia, PA 19406
Telecopier: 610-382-4407
Telephone: 610-768-3402

Any Bank (including Wachovia in its capacity as Agent) giving any notice to the Company shall simultaneously send a copy thereof to the other Banks.

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein with respect to any particular notice or demand to be given or made hereunder, any such notice or demand shall be deemed to have been duly given or made and to have become effective (a) if delivered by hand, overnight courier or facsimile to a responsible officer of the party to which it is directed, at the time of the receipt thereof by such officer, (b) if sent by registered or certified first-class mail, postage prepaid, on the earlier of actual receipt thereof or three (3) Business Days after the posting thereof, and (c) if sent by telex or cable, at the time of the dispatch thereof, if in normal business hours in the country of receipt, or otherwise at the opening of business on the following Business Day.

# Section 11.6 Governing Law.

THIS AGREEMENT AND THE NOTES SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE CONTRACTS UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA AND SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA, WITHOUT REFERENCE TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OR CHOICE OF LAW. THE COMPANY AGREES THAT ANY SUIT FOR THE ENFORCEMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS MAY BE BROUGHT IN THE COURTS OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA OR ANY FEDERAL COURT SITTING THEREIN AND CONSENTS TO THE NONEXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT AND THE SERVICE OF PROCESS IN ANY SUCH SUIT BEING MADE UPON THE COMPANY BY MAIL AT THE

ADDRESS SPECIFIED INSECTION 11.5. THE COMPANY HEREBY WAIVES ANY OBJECTION THAT IT MAY NOW OR HEREAFTER HAVE TO THE VENUE OF ANY SUCH SUIT OR ANY SUCH COURT OR THAT SUCH SUIT IS BROUGHT IN AN INCONVENIENT COURT. The rights and remedies herein expressed are cumulative and not exclusive of any other rights which the Banks would otherwise have. The captions in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not define or limit the provisions hereof. This Agreement and any amendment hereof may be executed in several counterparts and by each party on a separate counterpart, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one instrument. In proving this Agreement it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart signed by the party against whom enforcement is sought.

# Section 11.7 Entirety of Agreement, Etc.

This Agreement, together with the other Loan Documents and any other documents executed in connection herewith or therewith, express the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby. Neither this Agreement nor any term hereof may be changed, waived, discharged or terminated orally or in writing, except as provided in Section 19.

# Section 11.8 Waiver of Jury Trial; Damages.

THE COMPANY AND THE BANKS HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RESPECTIVE RIGHTS TO A JURY TRIAL WITH RESPECT TO ANY ACTION OR CLAIM ARISING OUT OF ANY DISPUTE IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE NOTES, ANY RIGHTS OR OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER OR THEREUNDER OR THE PERFORMANCE OF SUCH RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS.

# Section 11.9 Consents, Waivers, Amendments, Etc.

Neither this Agreement, nor any of the other Loan Documents, nor any terms hereof or thereof may be amended, supplemented, waived or modified except in accordance with the provisions of this Section. The Majority Banks may, or, with the written consent of the Majority Banks, the Agent may, from time to time, (a) enter into with the Company written amendments, supplements or modifications hereto and to the other Loan Documents for the purpose of adding any provisions to this Agreement or the other Loan Documents or changing in any manner the rights of the Banks or of the Company hereunder or thereunder or (b) waive, on such terms and conditions as the Majority Banks may specify in such instrument, any of the requirements of this Agreement or the other Loan Documents or any Default or Event of Default and its consequences; provided, however, that no such waiver and no such amendment, waiver, supplement, modification or release shall:

(i) reduce the amount or extend the scheduled date of maturity of any Loan or Note or any installment thereon, or reduce the stated rate of any interest or fee payable hereunder (except in connection with a waiver of interest at the increased post-default rate) or extend the scheduled date of any payment thereof

or increase the amount or extend the expiration date of any Bank's Commitment, in each case without the written consent of each Bank directly affected thereby; or

- (ii) amend, modify or waive any provision of this Section 11.9 or reduce the percentage specified in the definition of Majority Banks, without the written consent of all the Banks; or
  - (iii) amend, modify or waive any provision of Article X without the written consent of the then Agent; or
- (iv) amend, modify or waive any provision of Section 3.2 without the written consent of each Bank directly affected thereby; or
- (v) release the Company, in its entirety, from its obligations under the Loan Documents, without the written consent of all of the Banks: or
- (vi) amend, modify or waive any provision of the Loan Documents requiring consent, approval or request of the Majority Banks or all Banks, without the written consent of all of the Majority Banks or Banks as appropriate; or

provided, <u>further</u>, that no amendment, waiver or consent affecting the rights or duties of the Agent or the Issuing Bank under any Loan Document shall in any event be effective, unless in writing and signed by the Agent and/or the Issuing Bank, as applicable, in addition to the Banks required hereinabove to take such action.

Any such waiver, amendment, supplement or modification and any such release shall apply equally to each of the Banks and shall be binding upon the Company, the Banks, the Agent and all future holders of the Notes. In the case of any waiver, the Company, the Banks and the Agent shall be restored to their former position and rights hereunder and under the outstanding Loans and Notes and other Loan Documents, and any Default or Event of Default permanently waived shall be deemed to be cured and not continuing; but no such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Default or Event of Default, or impair any right consequent thereon.

Notwithstanding any of the foregoing to the contrary, the consent of the Company shall not be required for any amendment, modification or waiver of the provisions of Article X (other than the provisions of Section 10.9); <u>provided</u>, <u>however</u>, that the Agent will provide written notice to the Company of any such amendment, modification or waiver. In addition, the Company and the Banks hereby authorize the Agent to modify this Agreement by unilaterally amending or supplementing <u>Schedule 2.1(a)</u> from time to time in the manner requested by the Company, the Agent or any Bank in order to reflect any assignments or transfers of the Loans as provided for hereunder; <u>provided</u> further, however, that the Agent shall promptly deliver a copy of any such modification to the Company and each Bank.

Notwithstanding the fact that the consent of all the Banks is required in certain circumstances as set forth above, (x) each Bank is entitled to vote as such Bank sees fit on any bankruptcy reorganization plan that affects the Loans, and each Bank acknowledges that the

provisions of Section 1126(c) of the Bankruptcy Code supersedes the unanimous consent provisions set forth herein and (y) the Majority Banks may consent to allow the Company to use cash collateral in the context of a bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding.

# Section 11.10 Severability.

The provisions of this Agreement are severable and if any one clause or provision hereof shall be held invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part in any jurisdiction, then such invalidity or unenforceability shall affect only such clause or provision, or part thereof, in such jurisdiction, and shall not in any manner affect such clause or provision in any other jurisdiction, or any other clause or provision of this Agreement in any jurisdiction.

# Section 11.11 Confidentiality.

The Agent and each of the Banks agrees that they will not disclose without the prior consent of the Company (other than to its employees, affiliates, auditors or counsel or to another Bank) any information with respect to the Company which is furnished pursuant to this Agreement including such information as is obtained by the Banks pursuant to Section 7.21, any other Loan Document or any documents contemplated by or referred to herein or therein and which is designated by the Company to the Banks in writing as confidential or as to which it is otherwise reasonably clear such information is not public, except that any Bank may disclose any such information (a) as has become generally available to the public other than by a breach of this Section 11.11, (b) as may be required or appropriate in any report, statement or testimony submitted to any municipal, state or federal regulatory body having or claiming to have jurisdiction over such Bank or to the Federal Reserve Board or the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the OCC or the NAIC or similar organizations (whether in the United States or elsewhere) or their successors, (c) as may be required or appropriate in response to any summons or subpoena or any law, order, regulation or ruling applicable to such Bank (including, without limitation, the tax shelter regulations under Internal Revenue Code Sections 6011, 6111 and 6112), (d) to any prospective Participant or assignee in connection with any contemplated transfer pursuant to Section 11.13; provided that such prospective transferee shall have been made aware of, and shall agree to comply with, this Section 11.11 or (e) to Gold Sheets and other similar bank trade publications, such information to consist of deal terms and other information regarding the credit facilities evidenced by this Credit Agreement customarily found in such publications. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, "information" deemed confidential per this Section 11.11 shall not include, and the Agent and each Bank may disclose to any and all persons, without limitation of any kind, any information with respect to the U.S. federal income tax treatment and U.S. federal income tax structure of the transactions contemplated hereby and all materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are provided to the Agent or such Bank relating to such tax treatment and tax structure.

# Section 11.12 Acknowledgments.

The Company acknowledges that:

- (a) it has been advised by counsel in the negotiation, execution and delivery of each Loan Document;
- (b) neither the Agent nor any Bank has any fiduciary relationship with or duty to the Company arising out of or in connection with this Agreement and the relationship between Agent and the Banks, on one hand, and the Company, on the other hand, in connection herewith is solely that of debtor and creditor; and
  - (c) no joint venture exists among the Banks by virtue of the Loan Documents or among the Company and the Banks.

# Section 11.13 Successors and Assigns; Participations; Purchasing Banks.

- (a) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, the Banks, the Agent, all future holders of the Notes and their respective successors and assigns, except that the Company may not assign or transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement or the other Loan Documents without the prior written consent of each Bank.
- Any Bank may, in the ordinary course of its business and in accordance with applicable law, at any time sell to one or more banks or other entities ("Participants") participating interests in any Loan owing to such Bank, any Note held by such Bank, any Commitment of such Bank, or any other interest of such Bank hereunder. In the event of any such sale by a Bank of participating interests to a Participant, such Bank's obligations under this Agreement to the other parties to this Agreement shall remain unchanged, such Bank shall remain solely responsible for the performance thereof, such Bank shall remain the holder of any such Note for all purposes under this Agreement, and the Company and the Agent shall continue to deal solely and directly with such Bank in connection with such Bank's rights and obligations under this Agreement. No Bank shall transfer or grant any participation under which the Participant shall have rights to approve any amendment to or waiver of this Agreement or any other Loan Document except to the extent such amendment or waiver would (i) extend the scheduled maturity of any Loan or Note or any installment thereon in which such Participant is participating, or reduce the stated rate or extend the time of payment of interest or fees thereon (except in connection with a waiver of interest at the increased post-default rate) or reduce the principal amount thereof, or increase the amount of the Participant's participation over the amount thereof then in effect (it being understood that a waiver of any Default or Event of Default shall not constitute a change in the terms of such participation, and that an increase in any Commitment or Loan shall be permitted without consent of any participant if the Participant's participation is not increased as a result thereof), or (ii) consent to the assignment or transfer by the Company of any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement. In the case of any such participation, the Participant shall not have any rights under this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents (the Participant's rights against such Bank in respect of such participation to be those set forth in the agreement executed by such Bank in favor of the

Participant relating thereto) and all amounts payable by the Company hereunder shall be determined as if such Bank had not sold such participation; <u>provided</u> that each Participant shall be entitled to the benefits of Sections 3.6, 3.7, 3.8, 11.1 and 11.2 with respect to its participation in the Commitments and the Loans outstanding from time to time; <u>provided further</u>, that no Participant shall be entitled to receive any greater amount pursuant to such Sections than the transferor Bank would have been entitled to receive in respect of the amount of the participation transferred by such transferor Bank to such Participant had no such transfer occurred.

Any Bank may, in the ordinary course of its business and in accordance with applicable law, at any time, sell or assign to any Bank or any Affiliate or Related Fund thereof and, with the consent of the Agent and, so long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Company (in each case, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), to one or more additional banks or financial institutions or entities (each a "Purchasing Bank"), all or any part of its rights and obligations under this Agreement and the Notes in minimum amounts of \$2,500,000 (or, if less, the entire amount of such Bank's obligations), pursuant to a Commitment Transfer Supplement, substantially in the form of Exhibit 12.1 (c), executed by such Purchasing Bank and such transferor Bank (and, to the extent required above, the Agent and the Company), and delivered to the Agent for its acceptance and recording in the Register; provided, however, that any sale or assignment to an existing Bank shall not require the consent of the Agent or the Company nor shall any such sale or assignment be subject to the minimum assignment amounts specified herein. Upon such execution, delivery, acceptance and recording, from and after the Transfer Effective Date specified in such Commitment Transfer Supplement, (x) the Purchasing Bank thereunder shall be a party hereto and, to the extent provided in such Commitment Transfer Supplement, have the rights and obligations of a Bank hereunder with a Commitment as set forth therein, and (y) the transferor Bank thereunder shall, to the extent provided in such Commitment Transfer Supplement, be released from its obligations under this Agreement (and, in the case of a Commitment Transfer Supplement covering all or the remaining portion of a transferor Bank's rights and obligations under this Agreement, such transferor Bank shall cease to be a party hereto; provided, however, that such Bank shall still be entitled to any indemnification rights that expressly survive hereunder). Such Commitment Transfer Supplement shall be deemed to amend this Agreement to the extent, and only to the extent, necessary to reflect the addition of such Purchasing Bank and the resulting adjustment of Commitment Percentages arising from the purchase by such Purchasing Bank of all or a portion of the rights and obligations of such transferor Bank under this Agreement and the Notes. On or prior to the Transfer Effective Date specified in such Commitment Transfer Supplement, the Company, at its own expense, shall execute and deliver to the Agent in exchange for the Notes delivered to the Agent pursuant to such Commitment Transfer Supplement new Notes to the order of such Purchasing Bank in an amount equal to the Commitment assumed by it pursuant to such Commitment Transfer Supplement and, unless the transferor Bank has not retained a Commitment hereunder, new Notes to the order of the transferor Bank in an amount equal to the Commitment retained by it hereunder. Such new Notes shall be dated the Closing Date and shall otherwise be in the form of the Notes replaced thereby. The Notes surrendered by the transferor Bank shall be returned by the Agent to the Company marked "canceled".

- (d) The Agent shall maintain at its address referred to in Section 11.5 a copy of each Commitment Transfer Supplement delivered to it and a register (the "Register") for the recordation of the names and addresses of the Banks and the Commitment of, and principal amount of the Loans owing to, each Bank from time to time. The entries in the Register shall be conclusive, in the absence of manifest error, and the Company, the Agent and the Banks may treat each Person whose name is recorded in the Register as the owner of the Loan recorded therein for all purposes of this Agreement. The Register shall be available for inspection by the Company or any Bank at any reasonable time and from time to time upon reasonable prior notice.
- (e) Upon its receipt of a duly executed Commitment Transfer Supplement, together with payment to the Agent by the transferor Bank or the Purchasing Bank, as agreed between them, of a registration and processing fee of \$3,500.00 for each Purchasing Bank listed in such Commitment Transfer Supplement and the Notes subject to such Commitment Transfer Supplement, the Agent shall (i) accept such Commitment Transfer Supplement, (ii) record the information contained therein in the Register and (iii) give prompt notice of such acceptance and recordation to the Banks and the Company.
- (f) The Company authorizes each Bank to disclose to any Participant or Purchasing Bank (each, a "<u>Transferee</u>") and any prospective Transferee any and all financial information in such Bank's possession concerning the Company and its Affiliates which has been delivered to such Bank by or on behalf of the Company pursuant to this Agreement or which has been delivered to such Bank by or on behalf of the Company in connection with such Bank's credit evaluation of the Company and its Subsidiaries prior to becoming a party to this Agreement, in each case subject to Section 11.11.
- (g) At the time of each assignment pursuant to this Section 11.13(c) to a Person which is not already a Bank hereunder and which is not a United States person (as such term is defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code) for Federal income tax purposes, the respective assignee Bank shall provide to the Company and the Agent the appropriate Internal Revenue Service Forms described in Section 3.8.
- (h) Nothing herein shall prohibit any Bank from pledging or assigning any of its rights under this Agreement (including, without limitation, any right to payment of principal and interest under any Note) to any Federal Reserve Bank or any other financial institution in accordance with applicable laws.
- (i) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall have no obligation to make payments to a Purchasing Bank hereunder (including, without limitation, Sections 3.6, 3.7 and 3.8 hereof) in excess of the corresponding amounts the Company would have been allocated to pay to such transferring Bank had such transfer not occurred.

# Section 11.14 Compliance with Usury Laws.

All agreements between the Company and each Bank are hereby expressly limited so that in no contingency or event whatsoever, whether by reason of acceleration of maturity of the

indebtedness evidenced hereby or otherwise, shall the amount paid or agreed to be paid to such Bank for the use or the forbearance of the indebtedness evidenced hereby exceed the maximum permissible under applicable law. As used herein, the term "applicable law" shall mean the law in effect as of the date hereof; provided, however, that in the event there is a change in the law which results in a higher permissible rate of interest, then this Agreement shall be governed by such new law as of its effective date. In this regard, it is expressly agreed that it is the intent of the Company and each Bank in the execution, delivery and acceptance of this Agreement to contract in strict compliance with the laws of the State of North Carolina from time to time in effect. If, under or from any circumstances whatsoever, fulfillment of any provision hereof or of any of the Loan Documents at the time of performance of such provision shall be due, shall involve transcending the limit of such validity prescribed by applicable law, then the obligation to be fulfilled shall automatically be reduced to the limits of such validity, and if under or from circumstances whatsoever any Bank should ever receive as interest an amount which would exceed the highest lawful rate, such amount which would be excessive interest shall be applied to the reduction of the principal balance evidenced hereby and not to the payment of interest. This provision shall control every other provision of all agreements between the Company and each Bank.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have duly executed this Agreement under seal as of the date first set forth above.

# By: Title: WACHOVIA BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, individually as a Bank and as Agent By:

Title:

UNIVERSAL HEALTH REALTY INCOME TRUST

# CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14 AND 15d-14 UNDER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

- I, Alan B. Miller certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Universal Health Realty Income Trust;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:
- a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared; and
- b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
- a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
- b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: August 12, 2003	/s/ Alan B. Miller
	Alan B. Miller President and Chief Executive Officer

# CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14 AND 15d-14 UNDER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

- I, Charles F. Boyle certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Universal Health Realty Income Trust;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:
- a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared; and
- b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
- c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
- a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
- b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting.

Date: August 12, 2003	/s/ Charles F. Boyle
	Charles F. Boyle Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

# CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Universal Health Realty Income Trust (the "Trust") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Alan B. Miller, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Trust, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Trust at the end of, and for, the period covered by the Report.

 /s/ Alan B. Miller	
Alan B. Miller President and Chief Executive Officer August 12, 2003	

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Trust and will be retained and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

# CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Universal Health Realty Income Trust (the "Trust") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Charles F. Boyle, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Trust, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Trust at the end of, and for, the period covered by the Report.

 /s/ Charles F. Boyle	
Charles F. Boyle Vice President and Chief Financial Officer August 12, 2003	

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Trust and will be retained and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.